
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING •  AUGUST 6, 2009 • Page 1 of 5 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MEETING OF THE  
 

TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL 
 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
 

2 NORTH MAIN STREET 
 

THURSDAY, AUGUST 6, 2009 
 

3:30 P.M. 
 

3RD FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM 
 

WORKSHOP AGENDA 
 

 
1. Discuss, as may be needed, Regular Meeting agenda items for the meeting posted for 

Thursday, August 6, 2009. 
 
2. Discuss the use of private property as recreational areas. 
 
3. Discuss parking in residential areas. 
 
4. Discuss proposed amendments to the utility service fees. 

 
5. Discuss upcoming appointments to various boards and commissions. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING •  AUGUST 6, 2009 • Page 2 of 5 
 

                                                          5:00 P.M. 
 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
 

2 NORTH MAIN STREET 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS – 2ND FLOOR 

 
TEMPLE, TX 

 
TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL 

 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 
 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
1. Invocation 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 
II. PUBLIC APPEARANCES 
 
3. Receive comments from Ron Stewart, Temple Firefighter, regarding MDA Fill the Boot 

Campaign and presentation of check to Kristen Wheeler, MDA representative. 
 
 
III. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may sign up to do so prior to this meeting.  
Public comments will be received during this promotion of the meting.  Please limit comments to 3 
minutes.  No discussion or final action will be taken by the City Council. 
 
 
IV. BUDGET ITEMS 
 
 
4. (A)  PUBLIC HEARING - Receive presentation by the City Manager and conduct a public 

hearing on the proposed 2009-2010 operating budget. 
(B) 2009-5761-R: Discuss proposed tax rate and consider adopting a resolution scheduling the 
adoption of the proposed tax rate for September 3, 2009, and setting public hearings for 
August 14, 2009 and August 20, 2009 on the proposed tax rate for FY 2009-2010. 

 
 
V. CONSENT AGENDA 



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING •  AUGUST 6, 2009 • Page 3 of 5 
 

 
All items listed under this section, Consent Agenda, are considered to be routine by the City Council 
and may be enacted by one motion.  If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be 
removed from the Consent Agenda at the request of any Councilmember and will be considered 
separately. 
 
5. Consider adopting a resolution approving the Consent Agenda items and the appropriate 

resolutions for each of the following: 
 
Minutes: 

  
(A) July 10, 2009 Special Called Meeting  
(B) July 16, 2009 Special Called Meeting and Regular Meeting 
 
Contracts, Leases & Bids: 
 
(C) 2009-5762-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the renewal of a Cooperative 

Working Agreement (CWA) with Bell County for the Bell County Crime Coalition project 
that is administered by the Bell County Juvenile Probation Department.   

 
(D) 2009-5763-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a tax abatement agreement 

with Texquest Investments LLC for property located at 2006 South First Street. 
 
(E) 2009-5764-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a construction contract with 

Chaney–Cox Construction, Inc. of Temple for remediation of failing portions of the 
exterior at the Santa Fe Depot in the amount of $291,810, and approving a deductive 
change order in the amount of $66,810 for a net contract amount of $225,000. 

 
(F) 2009-5765-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an amendment to a lease 

contract with the Health and Human Services Commission (HHSC), formerly the Texas 
Department of Human Services, for 19,617 sq. ft. in the Public Services Annex, 102 
East Central Avenue. 

 
Plats 
 
(G) 2009-5766-R: P-FY-09-34: Consider adopting a resolution approving the final plat of 

Scallions Addition, 4 single-family lots on 2.71± acres located on the north side of FM 
3117, 181± feet east of the City limits, in Temple’s Eastern E.T.J, with exceptions to 
Subdivision Ordinance Section 33-94(a) Curbs and Gutters. 

 
 
Ordinance – Second & Final Reading: 
 
(H) 2009-4300: SECOND READING – Z-FY-09-24: Consider adopting an ordinance 

authorizing a zoning change from Agricultural District (A) to Light Industrial District (LI) 
located on 6.9 ± acres east of Pegasus Drive, west of Interstate 35, 180 ± feet south of 
Moore’s Mill Road, out of the Vincent Barrow Survey, Abstract No. 64. 

 
 
 
 



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING •  AUGUST 6, 2009 • Page 4 of 5 
 

Misc.: 
 
(I) 2009-5767-R: Consider adopting a resolution ratifying a grant application submission in 

the amount of $1,146,285 for funding assistance for the construction of Fire Station 8 
through the Department of Homeland Security’s Federal Emergency Management 
Agency’s Fire Station Construction Grant Program. 

 
(J) 2009-5768-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the use of Child Safety Funds 

to upgrade the school zone at Jefferson Elementary and Lamar Middle School on North 
3rd Street in the amount of $15,758. 

 
(K) 2009-5769-R: Consider adopting a resolution approving the Temple Film Guidelines 

that will enable Temple to become a certified Texas Film Friendly Community and assist 
City and State tourism staff in recruiting filmmakers to consider Temple when producing 
films. 

 
(L) 2009-5770-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing budget amendments for fiscal 

year 2008-2009. 
 
VII. REGULAR AGENDA 
 
RESOLUTIONS 
 
6. 2009-5771-R: Consider adopting a resolution naming the new Municipal Court & Utility 

Business Office facility at 401 North 3rd Street after Jamie Hager Clements.   
 
ORDINANCES 
 
7. 2009-4301: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING Z-FY-09-16: Consider adopting an 

ordinance authorizing a zoning change from the Central Area District (CA) and Multiple Family 
Two District (MF2) to Single Family One District (SF1) and/or Neighborhood Services District 
(NS) for all of Blocks 1 and 26, Moore’s First Addition; all of Blocks, 4, 7, 8, 9, & 10, and Block 
3, Lots 2-4, L.R. Taylor Addition; and Outblocks, 263-2A, 2B, 2C, 2D, and 23, Temple Original. 

 
8. 2009-4302: FIRST READING — PUBLIC HEARING - Consider adopting an ordinance 

amending Chapter 12, “Fire Prevention and Protection,” of the Code of Ordinances of the City 
of Temple, Texas, by adopting the 2006 International Fire Code. 

 
9. 2009-4303: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING – Consider adopting an ordinance 

amending Chapter 37, "Traffic," Article IV, "Stopping, Standing and Parking," of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Temple, Texas, by amending Section 37-93, entitled, "Two-Hour 
Parking Zone," to provide that the City Manager may suspend by decree the fine for parking 
longer than two hours in the downtown area during public events or when the municipal 
parking lot adjacent to City Hall is closed. 

 
10. 2009-4304: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING – Consider adopting an ordinance 

extending the life of preliminary plats for single family residential subdivisions that were: (1) 
approved in the past 2 years; (2) extended by the approval of a final plat for a phase of the 
subdivision in the past 2 years; or (3) that would have expired in the past 2 years, by giving 
them an additional life of 2 years from the effective date of this ordinance. 

 



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING •  AUGUST 6, 2009 • Page 5 of 5 
 

11. FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING – Consider adopting ordinances establishing the prima 
facie speed of motor vehicles on a certain section of SH 36/LP363, within the City limits, as 
follows: 

 
(A) 2009-4305: The speed limit on Loop 363 access roads will be increased from 40 mph to 45 

mph from Airport Road to a point 2,375 feet south of FM 2305 and from 30 mph to 50 mph 
from a point 2,375 feet south of FM 2305 to South 5th Street; and  

 
(B) 2009-4306: The speed limit on Loop 363 will be increased from 55 mph to 60 mph from 

Airport Road to South 5th Street. 
  
12. 2009-4307: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING – Consider adopting an ordinance 

establishing school crosswalks and setting speed limits within school zones to conform to 
school schedules. 

 
  

 
The City Council reserves the right to discuss any items in executive (closed) session 

Whenever permitted by the Texas Open Meetings Act. 
 
I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of this Notice of Meeting was posted in a public place at 
9:15 AM, on July 31, 2009. 
 

 
 
I certify that this Notice of Meeting Agenda was removed by me from the outside bulletin board in front of the City 
Municipal Building at _________on the _________day of __________2009.    __________________________________ 
 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
08/06/09 
Item #3 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
David Blackburn, City Manager 
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Receive comments from Ron Stewart, Temple Firefighter, regarding MDA Fill 
the Boot Campaign and presentation of check to Kristen Wheeler, MDA representative.  
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Receive comments as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Ron Stewart, Temple Professional Firefighters, will give a report on the MDA Fill 
the Boot Campaign and present a check for those funds to Kristen Wheeler, MDA representative. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Request for placement on agenda 





 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
08/06/09 

Item #4(A)-(B) 
Regular Agenda 

Page 1 of 4 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
David Blackburn, City Manager 
Traci Barnard, Director of Finance 
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:   (A) PUBLIC HEARING - Receive presentation by the City Manager and 
conduct a public hearing on the proposed 2009-2010 operating budget. 
(B) Discuss proposed tax rate and consider adopting a resolution scheduling the adoption of the 
proposed tax rate for September 3, 2009, and setting public hearings for August 14, 2009 and August 
20, 2009 on the proposed tax rate for FY 2009-2010. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: (A) Receive presentation and conduct public hearing. Final action is to 
be taken by the Council at their September 3rd meeting; (B) Adopt resolution as presented in item 
description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: (A) Budget- Public Hearing - The City Manager’s recommended budget was filed 
in accordance with the City Charter on June 26, 2009. Council has met for budget related work 
sessions on July 2nd, 10th and 16th.   
  
This is the initial public hearing on the proposed 2009-2010 budget, and complies with the State and 
Charter requirements that must be met before the budget can be adopted by the Council.  A 
supplemental second public hearing on the budget will be conducted at the September 3rd Council 
meeting, prior to budget adoption. 
 
(B) Proposed Tax Rate – Resolution setting dates for 2 public hearings and date for adoption - 
The proposed tax rate will be presented and discussed at the 5:00 pm meeting, prior to adoption of a 
resolution scheduling the adoption of the proposed tax rate for September 3rd.  Two public hearings 
must also be set on the proposed tax rate, August 14th special Council meeting and a regular meeting 
on August 20th.  Following this action, the publication of a “Notice of Public Hearing on Tax Increase,” 
will occur on August 7th and “Notice of Tax Revenue Increase,” on August 15th and August 21st.   
 
These proposed meeting dates and publication schedules comply with the Truth-In-Taxation 
requirements set forth in Senate Bill 18 adopted by the 79th Legislature and the City Charter. 
 
 



08/06/09 
Item #4(A)-(B) 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 4 

FISCAL IMPACT:  
(A) Budget:  The proposed FY 2010 budget filed on June 26, 2009, totaled $95,456,531 for all funds 
(expenditures/transfers). 

Adopted Proposed %
Budget Budget Increase/

Expenditures/Transfers FY 2009 FY 2010 (Decrease)

General Fund 55,934,881$              (1) 54,440,929$             (2) -2.67%
Water & Wastewater Fund 26,033,246                26,369,924               1.29%
Debt Service Fund 7,430,032                  8,534,733                 14.87%
Hotel/Motel Tax Fund 1,276,000                  1,231,250                 -3.51%
Federal/State Grant Fund 533,154                     515,539                    -3.30%
Drainage Fund 959,735                     999,373                    4.13%
Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Fund 4,154,262                  3,364,783                 -19.00%
Total Expenditures/Transfers 96,321,310$             95,456,531$            -0.90%

(2) Includes $1,414,024 in Capital ($1,362,243) and TEDC Matrix allocation ($51,781) funded with Undesignated Fund Balance - Capital Projects

(1) Includes $1,626,292 in Capital ($1,141,292), Strategic Investment Zone ($85,000) and TEDC Matrix allocation ($400,000) funded with 
Undesignated Fund Balance - Capital Projects

 
 

Changes from the preliminary budget filed on June 26, 2009 to the proposed budget as presented 
August 6, 2009, assuming a proposed tax rate of 56.46¢.  Changes are as follows: 
 
General Fund: 

Proposed Budget

Filed Copy Current Increase
as of  6-26-09 as of  8-6-09 (Decrease)

Projected Revenues 53,026,905$     53,303,747$       276,842$           A

Proposed Budget Expenditures 54,043,470       54,320,312         276,842             B

Excess Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (1,016,565)        (1,016,565)          -                     

Transfers In (Out):

     Less: Transfer Out To Debt Service Fund [Energy Program] (98,440)             (98,440)               -                     

     Less: Transfer Out To Debt Service Fund [Limited Tax Note] (299,019)           (299,019)             -                     
Total Transfer In (Out) (397,459)           (397,459)             -                     

Excess Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures for FY 2010 (1,414,024)$     (1,414,024)$        $0.00

Recommended Use of Undesignated Fund Balance-Capital Projects
     -Capital Equipment Funding 1,362,243$       1,362,243$         -$                   
     -TEDC Funding 51,781              51,781                -                     

1,414,024$       1,414,024$         -$                   

 
 



08/06/09 
Item #4(A)-(B) 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 4 

General Fund (continued): 
Explanation of Changes from Filed Budget to Proposed Budget @ 8/6/2009:

A Revenue Changes:

     Increased property tax - from preliminary to certified roll 703$                   
     Increased solid waste revenues ($1.25 per month rate increase) 276,139              

Total Revenue Changes 276,842$            

B Expenditure Changes:

     Increased personnel services, operations and capital to maintain 2x per week Residential 276,139$            
        garbage service and Brush/Bulk pickup at current service level
     Corrected allocation for Keep Temple Beautiful - funded an additional $7,400 for a total 7,400                  
        recommended funding level of $23,900
     Decrease in request for funding Bell County Communications Contract in FY 2010 based on (14,530)               
        their final budget as approved by their Executive Board
     Increased Contingency for Judgments & Damages 7,833                  

Total Expenditures Changes 276,842$            

Net Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures -$                   

 
Debt Service Fund: 
Explanation of Changes from Filed Budget to Proposed Budget @ 8/6/2009:

A Revenue Changes:
     Increased property tax - from preliminary to certified roll 7,430$              
     Increased line item for property tax discount (7,430)              

Total Revenue Changes -$                 

B Expenditure Changes:

Total Expenditures Changes -$                 

Net Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures -$                

 
 
 
 
 
 



08/06/09 
Item #4(A)-(B) 

Regular Agenda 
Page 4 of 4 

 
(B) Tax Rate:  The proposed tax rate for FY 2010 is 56.46¢. This rate is comprised of two 
components, maintenance and operations (M&O) of 31.73¢ and the interest & sinking (I&S) rate of 
24.73¢.  The proposed tax rate represents a 2.45% increase above the effective tax rate of 55.11¢.  
The current FY 2009 tax rate is 55.95¢. 
 

2009 2010 +/-
I &S Rate 0.2273 0.2473 0.0200

M& O Rate 0.3322 0.3173 (0.0149)
Total Rate 0.5595 0.5646 0.0051  

 
 
The effective tax rate is the calculated rate that would provide the same amount of revenue received 
in the previous year on properties taxed in both years. 
 
Note:  The tax rate proposed in the budget document filed on June 26, 2009 was 57.45¢.  The rate 
was developed based on estimates.  Subsequent to the budget filing, staff received the Certified Roll 
and the Effective Tax Rate calculations.   
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
FY 2009-2010 Budget Message 
Tax Rate 
Resolution 

























City of Temple, Texas
Impact of Tax Rates and Fee Increases

Taxable Home Value = $100,000

Monthly Cost
Preliminary Budget Current Proposed Increase/
Proposed Increases FY 2009 FY 2010 (Decrease)

AV Tax  (1) 46.63$          47.05$          0.42$           
Solid Waste - $1.25 14.55            15.80            1.25             
Drainage 2.75              2.75              -               
Water -
    10,000 gallons 35.60            35.60            -               
Sewer -
      6,000 gallons 27.00            27.00            -               

126.53$        128.20$        1.67$           

(1) Assuming no increase in property value in 2010

Taxable Home Value = $100,000 (with and without re-appraisal)
Impact on Preliminary 

FY 2010 Budget
  - Certified Roll and Effective Tax 
Rate received

Proposed tax rate of 56.46¢ at 8/6/09 (2.45% above ETR): + $703
Current Proposed Increase/
FY 2009 FY 2010 (Decrease)

No change in value 46.63$          47.05$          0.42$           
.90% (average) 46.63            47.47            0.84             

10.00% (maximum) 46.63            51.76            5.13             

Effective tax rate of 55.11¢: - $386,665
Current Proposed Increase/
FY 2009 FY 2010 (Decrease)

No change in value 46.63$          45.93$          (0.70)$          
.90% (average) 46.63            46.34            (0.29)            

10.00% (maximum) 46.63            50.52            3.89             

7/30/2009
J:\Finance_ONLY\FY2009-2010\Revenues\Impact of Tax Rates and Fee Increases
Prepared by City of Temple Finance Dept - tlb/mh



 
 
 
 RESOLUTION NO. _____________________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
SCHEDULING THE ADOPTION OF THE PROPOSED TAX RATE FOR 
SEPTEMBER 3, 2009, AND SETTING  PUBLIC HEARINGS FOR AUGUST 14, 
2009, AND AUGUST 20, 2009, ON THE PROPOSED TAX RATE FOR FY2009-
2010; DIRECTING THE CITY SECRETARY TO PUBLISH THE REQUIRED 
NOTICE OF THE PUBLIC HEARINGS; DECLARING FINDINGS OF FACTS; 
AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 
  

 
Whereas, Chapter 26 of the Property Tax Code requires all taxing entities to comply with 

truth-in-taxation laws in adopting their tax rates in an effort to make taxpayers aware of tax rate 
proposals and, in certain cases, to roll back or limit a tax increase; and  
 

Whereas, the City Council has determined that it is in the public interest to schedule the 
adoption of the proposed tax rate for September 3, 2009, and to set public hearings for August 14, 
2009, and August 20, 2009, on the proposed tax rate for FY2009-2010. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

 
Part 1: The City Council sets the proposed tax rate at $0.5646 per $100 of assessed property 

valuation, and schedules the adoption of the proposed tax rate for September 3, 2009, at  the regular 
scheduled meeting at 5:00 p.m. in the City Council Chambers on the second floor of the Municipal 
Building located at Main and Central in Temple, Texas. 

 
Part 2: Public hearings to discuss the proposed tax rate of $0.5646 per $100 of assessed 

property valuation will be held in the City Council Chambers on the second floor of the Municipal 
Building located at Main and Central in Temple, Texas, at a special meeting at 5:00 p.m. on Friday, 
August 14, 2009, and at a regular meeting at 5:00 p.m. on Thursday, August 20, 2009. 
 

Part 3: The City Secretary is hereby directed to publish notice of said public hearings as 
required by the City Charter and applicable portions of the Texas Property Tax Code. 
 

Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Resolution is 
passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said 
meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of August, 2009. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 

       
WILLIAM A. JONES, III, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
              
Clydette Entzminger     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary     City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
08/06/09 

Item #5(A)-(B) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 

 
 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Clydette Entzminger, City Secretary   
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Approve Minutes: 
 

(A) July 10, 2009 Special Called Meeting  
(B) July 16, 2009 Special Called Meeting & Regular Meeting 

 
 

 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve minutes as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Copies of minutes are enclosed for Council review. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
July 10, 2009 Special Called Meeting 
July 16, 2009 Special Called Meeting & Regular Meeting 



SPECIAL MEETING OF THE TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL  
  

JULY 10, 2009  
 
 
The City Council of the City of Temple, Texas conducted a Special Meeting on Friday, July 10, 
2009 at 8:30 am in the Morris Ballroom - Sammons Community Center, 2222 West Avenue D.  
 
Present:  

 

 
David Blackburn, City Manager, began the session with a review of the topics to be 
discussed today and during the July 16th budget work session. 
 
Next, Ken Cicora, Director of Parks and Leisure Services, showed the Council a video the 
department developed as part of the National Parks and Recreation Gold Medal Award 
program.  The City of Temple Parks Department was rated in the top four departments 
nationwide and is now competing for the gold medal.  Winners will be announced in 
October 2009. 
 
Mr. Blackburn used the Parks and Leisure Services original budget submission to explain 
how the budget was developed for the upcoming year.  He discussed the various programs 
and activities and how they are presented in the budget document.  City support for 
community events, such as Kite Day and Community Market, will be eliminated next year 
unless sponsors for the events are obtained.  Clark Pool, located at Wilson Park, will also 
be closed in FY 2010 in order to reduce costs.  These cuts, as well as other detailed in the 
handout provided, are based on the total dollars needing to be saved in the Parks and 
Leisure Services budget. 
 
The Council discussed mowing services and the practice of placing liens on properties 
when necessary.  They also discussed other ways to recoup the cost of mowing private 
property, including the possibility of issuing citations.  Rates at the Sammons Community 
Center and Summit Recreation Center were also reviewed.  The dual goals are to provide 
these services to the community and still break even with revenues and expenditures, 
although neither break even now.  $350,000 is included in the budget (bond funds) to 
resurface the greens, redesign some of the tees and update the irrigation at Sammons Golf 
Links.  This project will be coordinated with the Public Works project at Thornton Dam.  The 
Council also asked how many golf courses break even.  The City's electric costs, as it 
relates to field lighting and other recreational uses, was discussed.   
 
The next topic Mr. Blackburn discussed was the capital improvement program for the 
upcoming year.  He reviewed several of the major projects that are funded, including the 
Bird Creek Wastewater Line Replacement, South Temple Water System Improvements, 
and the Pepper Creek Tank Rehab.  Mr. Blackburn discussed the replacement of non-
routine capital equipment, such as the street sweeper requested by the Public Works 

Councilmember Tony Jeter  
Councilmember Marty Janczak  
Mayor Pro Tem Patsy Luna  
Councilmember Russell Schneider  
Mayor William A. Jones, III  

1. Discuss FY 2009-2010 preliminary budget.

Special Meetings

Page 1 of 2



Department.  Only a few pieces of equipment will be replaced this year.  About half of the 
bond funds allocated for the Library renovation project will be used on the roof replacement 
and foundation repairs.  It was discussed whether unallocated fund balance could be used 
for that portion of the project.  Airport T-hangars are not included in the current CIP but but 
they might be added to meet some needs of AMCOM.  It would also free up some of the 
hangars being used for storage now.  An increase in hangar rates might be necessary to  
support building new ones in the future. 
 
Regarding Solid Waste services, the Council discussed the cost for additional or larger 
containers if once per week service is approved.  They also asked about the cost to keep 
the twice per week service currently provided and the twice per month brush/bulk service.  
If once per month brush service is approved, the rules for setting out the brush might need 
to modified.   
 
 
In conclusion, Mr. Blackburn noted the budget items for discussion at the July 16th work 
session. 
 

                                               

  

 
________________________ 
 
William A. Jones, III, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 
____________________
 
Clydette Entzminger  
City Secretary  

 

Special Meetings

Page 2 of 2



TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL  
  

JULY 16, 2009  
  

The City Council of the City of Temple, Texas conducted a Special Meeting on Thursday, July 
16, 2009, at 2:00 PM in the 3rd Floor Conference Room, 2 North Main Street.  
 
Present:  

 

 
Employee Benefits Trust Item: Amy House, Director of Human Resources, provided an 
overview of the item authorizing the purchase of various insurances for City of Temple 
employees.  She discussed the Healthcare Savings Account that is being recommended as 
the fully City paid option for medical and prescription insurance.   
 
Item 5(E) - Mayborn Center interior renovations: Jonathan Graham, City Attorney, 
explained the low bid for this contract was $44,000 less than the next lowest bidder.  The 
low bidder has acknowledged they made about a $60,000 error on their bid.  The low 
bidder may withdraw their bid but they will forfeit the bid bond ($14,000) if they do.  
Therefore, the low bidder has decided to honor their bid.  Mr. Bert Pope will oversee this 
project. 
 

 
Jonathan Graham, City Attorney, presented this report to the City Council.  He stated of the 
7,609 bills filed in 2009, about 1,500 were city-related bills and of those, 120 passed.  Mr. 
Graham highlighted those bills that most directly impact the City of Temple. 
 
The City’s primary concern was regarding bills that would have established appraisal or 
revenue caps but none were approved this session, Mr. Graham explained. Other bills 
relating to Finances, Taxation and Administration related to changes in "truth in taxation" 
language, additional property tax exemptions, sales tax exemptions, appraised value of 
property, local preference purchasing laws, elections and open records.  Other bills Mr. 
Graham reviewed were related to municipal courts, economic development, eminent 
domain, employment and civil service, public safety, utilities and transportation.   
 
A special legislative session was also conducted, beginning July 1st, to consider only three 
items - the sunset review of 5 state agencies, legislation allowing TxDOT to issue general 
obligation bonds for highway improvement projects, and legislation extending the authority 
of TxDOT and a regional mobility authority to use comprehensive development agreements 
to design, finance, build and maintain transportation infrastructure.  All three items were 
approved.   
 
 

Councilmember Marty Janczak  
Councilmember Tony Jeter  
Mayor Pro Tem Patsy E. Luna  
Councilmember Russell Schneider  
Mayor William A. Jones, III  

1. Discuss, as may be needed, Regular Meeting agenda items for the meeting posted
for Thursday, July 16, 2009.  

2. Receive briefing regarding the 81st legislative session.

City Council

Page 1 of 9



 
Mr. Graham discussed this proposed ordinance which would give a one time, two-
year extension of the life of existing residential preliminary plats that have either recently 
expired or will expire in the short term.  This action is being recommended because of the 
slow down in residential building activity and the adverse impact of this on phased in 
subdivisions.  Currently, a preliminary plat would die after two years.   
 
Mr. Graham explained more substantive changes are needed to the Subdivison Ordinance 
but these will require additional time for analysis and discussion with stakeholders.  
However, this ordinance to extend the plat life by two years is proposed to go to the 
Planning and Zoning Commission on July 20th, then to Council for first reading on August 
6th and final reading on August 20th.  
 

 
Lonzo Wallace, Fire Chief, presented the proposed amendments to the Fire Code.  He 
stated the Fire Code has not been totally updated since 1997, resulting in some significant 
changes between the proposed 2006 code and the current 1997 one.  Chapter 12 of 
the Code of Ordinances, relating to Fire Protection, has also been rewritten in a more 
logical and comprehensive manner.  The 2006 Code will complete the adoption of a series 
of codes, including the International Codes and Building and Mechanical Codes.   
 
Significant changes being proposed with the adoption of the 2006 Fire Code relate 
to sprinkler systems, fire extinguishers, public dead-end fire apparatus access roads within 
residential developments, commercial kitchen supression systems, firewalls in multi-tenant 
commercial buildings, recreational fires and outside fires for domestic purposes and fire 
lanes.  Chief Wallace added that many of these requirements are already being met in new 
construction throughout the community. 
 
Councilmember Schneider asked that the width of the fire lane be clarified as to how it is 
measured - from curb to curb, back to back or within the pavement markings.  
 
 

 
David Blackburn, City Manager, reviewed the questions raised at the July 10th budget work 
session with Council, noting issues staff is working on.  These issues related to lot mowing, 
operations at the Sammons Community Center and Summit Recreation Center, electricity 
costs and lighting, Library renovations, Airport t-hangar rates, and a replacement street 
sweeper. 
 
Mr. Blackburn reviewed the vehicle replacement guidelines that are followed for the 
City's equipment.  This is the model followed by the Fleet Division to determine what 
equipment needs to be replaced each year.   
 
Councilmember Janczak stated he previously questioned the process by which it was 
determined that a street sweeper needed to be replaced in the upcoming year.  He added 
he was comfortable with the process used and would concur with the recommendation to 
replace the street sweeper. 

3. Discuss proposed ordinance which would, on a one time basis, extend the life of
preliminary plats that would otherwise have expired in the last two years, by giving
those plats two additional years from the effective date of this new ordinance.  

4. Discuss proposed amendments to the Fire Code.

5. Discuss FY 2009-2010 preliminary budget.

City Council

Page 2 of 9



 
Councilmember Jeter stated he asked for the compensation information provided to 
Council.  He has no particular issue, he stated, but does not agree with the civil service 
step increases when there are no funds allocated for other compensation increases, 
although he understands the issues. 
 
The next budget related topic discussed related to solid waste services.  Councilmember 
Jeter asked how the City would deal with apartments, restaurants, and other 
establishments if we go to once per week pickup.   
 
Mr. Blackburn explained he has proposed once per week pickup for residential only, with 
twice per week service for commercial establishments.   
 
Councilmember Jeter expressed his concern with raising the rates because many people in 
the community do not use the full service.   
 
Councilmember Schneider asked why providing twice per week residential service would 
cost any more money since we are already performing that service.   
 
Mr. Blackburn stated the City needs the revenue to keep the tax rate the same.  If we 
decrease residential service to once per week, the City can save $250,000 with that 
revenue applied elsewhere in the budget.   
 
Following some discussion, the consensus of the Council was that most people are willing 
to pay more to keep the current level of service.  Mr. Blackburn stated the increase would 
be $1.25 per month to keep the twice per week residential collection. 
 
Councilmember Jeter stated he is concerned that some items are being pushed into capital 
in order to use fund balance.  He also expressed his concern that the City is overly 
optimistic on sales tax revenues, property taxes and fuel costs for the upcoming year.  If we 
take the fund balance down to $1.7M at year end, Councilmember Jeter stated that 
would concern him.  
 
Traci Barnard, Director of Finance, stated $1M will be added to fund balance this year 
because we budgeted more than needed for fuel.   
 
Councilmember Jeter stated his expectation would be that all public service agencies we 
provide funding to will not be giving bonuses or salary increases next year.   
 
Mayor Jones asked if the foundation and roof repairs for the Library are being funded out of 
the original bond funding.  If so, he would assume this would take away from the interior 
renovations.  Mayor Jones stated he felt this would be an appropriate use of fund balance 
as it is an unexpected need beyond the original scope of work.   
 
The City Council of the City of Temple, Texas conducted a Regular Meeting on Thursday, 
July 16, 2009 at 5:00 PM in the Council Chambers, Municipal Building, 2nd Floor, 2 North 
Main Street.   
 
Present:  
Councilmember Marty Janczak  
Councilmember Tony Jeter  

City Council

Page 3 of 9



 

 

 
Fire Chief Lonzo Wallace voiced the invocation. 
 

 
Thomas Pechal and 2009 Junior Fire Cadets led the Pledge of Allegiance to the 
United States flag. 
 

 

 
Mayor Jones presented this proclamation to Mary Ann Garrett.  
 
(B)   Recognition of 2009 Junior Fire Cadet Program  
 
Thomas Pechal and members of the 2009 Junior Fire Cadet Program expressed their 
appreciation to the City Council for their support of this great program.  They 
displayed photos of the kids participating in the program this year.   
 

 
Betty Elliott, 305 East Xavier, addressed the City Council.  She stated she was traveling 
south on North 3rd Street on a Saturday when she found a very large dead dog in the 
street.  She notified the Police Department so it could be removed from the street but was 
informed it would be picked up on Monday.  Ms. Elliott expressed her concern with the 
extreme heat and decided to call Tony Jeter, her Councilmember, about this issue and he 
took care of the problem by removing the animal from the street himself.  She only wanted 
a phone number from him but he took care of the problem and she expressed her 
appreciation to him.  This is not good for the appearance of Temple or the health of our 
community.  Animals are like our family members and need to be taken care of.  The City 
needs to have someone on standby to take care of dead animals over the weekends.   
 
Edward Luna, 216 South 26th Street, addressed the City Council.  He circulated a petition 
and gathered 75 signatures from citizens who oppose the Council closing City 
streets without the consent of the voters.  It is not democratic for just three 
Councilmembers to close public streets when they choose to do so.  This is probably not in 
the City Charter but it should be included. How many more signatures are needed on the 
petition to get the Charter changed, Mr. Luna asked.   
 
Mr. David Blackburn, City Manager, discussed the City’s current water conservation efforts 
and usage.  He stated system modifications and adjustments have been made over the 
past 10 days and additional water to the 835 Zone is now available.  Beginning July 14th, 
the City will begin transitioning customers in that Zone to voluntary Stage 1 water 

Mayor Pro Tem Patsy E. Luna  
Councilmember Russell Schneider 
Mayor William A. Jones, III  

I. CALL TO ORDER 

1. Invocation

2. Pledge of Allegiance

II. PROCLAMATIONS & SPECIAL RECOGNITIONS

3. (A)   Recognize Mary Ann Garrett -Texas’ Top CIS Volunteer of the Year for 2009 

III. PUBLIC COMMENTS

City Council

Page 4 of 9



conservation measures.  In addition, the City will immediately implement a city-wide no 
watering window between 2:00 a.m. and 8:00 a.m. seven days per week until further 
notice.   
 
Mr. Milton Hensley, 301 Mitchell Drive, addressed the City Council, on behalf of the Ronald 
McDonald House.  This facility operates on gifts and donations.  He asked that they be 
allowed to collect the proceeds of the aluminum cans collected at the City’s recycling 
center.  This would double the income to the Ronald McDonald House.  Lisa Sebek wrote a 
letter to city management but there has been no discussions about the logistics of how the 
cans would be collected from the City. 
 
 

 

 
Lois Whitley, Traylor & Associates, reviewed the 5-year Annual Action Plan, the total 
resources available and how those funds are proposed to be allocated.  She also 
discussed the action plan schedule of actions to date.  No comments from the public 
have been received but staff has learned the proposed seal coat project is not eligible 
under CDBG guidelines so it is recommended that those funds be allocated for the 
Avenue G sidewalk project.   
 
Mayor Jones declared the public hearing to be open with regard to agenda item 4 and 
asked if anyone wished to address this item.  There being no comments, Mayor 
Jones closed the public hearing.   
 
Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Patsy E. Luna to adopt resolution,  seconded by 
Councilmember Russell Schneider. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 

 

 
(A) July 2, 2009 Special Called Meeting and Regular Meeting  
 
(B) 2009-5749-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a construction 
contract with Matous Construction, Ltd., of Temple for rehabilitation of Mixed 
Media Filters 1 through 6 and Replacement of Lagoon #4 at the Conventional 
Water Treatment Plant in the amount of $1,674,000.  
 
(C) 2009-5750-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a construction 
contract with C.A.P.’s Mechanical of Moody for providing plumbing services on 
an as needed basis through September 30, 2010, in the estimated annual 
amount of $25,000.  

IV. BUDGET ITEMS

4. 2009-5748-R: PUBLIC HEARING - Conduct a final public hearing and consider
adopting a resolution approving the 2009-2010 Action Plan and Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) budget.  

V. CONSENT AGENDA

5. Consider adopting a resolution approving the Consent Agenda items and the
appropriate resolutions for each of the following:  

City Council

Page 5 of 9



 
(D) 2009-5751-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an increase to the 
guaranteed maximum price (GMP) construction contract with Vanguard 
Contractors, LP of Temple for Phase 1 renovations to the Temple Public Library 
in the amount of $308,347 for a revised GMP of $448,389.  
 
(E) 2009-5752-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a construction 
contract with Thaten Construction, Inc. of Sanger for the interior renovations to 
the Frank W. Mayborn Civic & Convention Center in the amount of $299,664.  
 
(F) 2009-5753-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of 
kitchen equipment as part of the interior renovation at the Frank W. Mayborn 
Civic & Convention Center by utilizing the Buy Board Contract in the amount of 
$96,753.87.  
 
(G) 2009-5754-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the emergency 
purchase of two check valves for raw water pumps from ACT Pipe & Supply of 
Temple in the amount of $27,408.32, and the installation of those new check 
valves from Bell Contractors of Belton in the amount of $3,425.  
 
(H) 2009-5755-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing annual purchase 
agreements through September 30, 2010, with Superior Crushed Stone of 
Jarrell and Miller Springs Materials of Temple for the purchase of rock, sand, 
crusher fines, crushed rock, construction rock and rip rap rock in the estimated 
annual amount of $25,000.  
 
(I) 2009-5756-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an Interlocal 
Agreement with the Belton Independent School District (BISD) to provide after 
school latchkey programming.  
 
(J) 2009-5757-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a tax abatement 
agreement with McLane Group, LP, and McLane Advanced Technologies, LLC, 
for property located at 4001 Central Pointe Parkway.  
 
(K) 2009-4298: SECOND READING - Consider adopting an ordinance 
abandoning a 0.2+ acre tract of land in that portion of East Barton Avenue from 
the west side of North 4th Street to the west side of the nearest alley, 
approximately 130 linear feet.  
 
(L) 1.  2009-4299: SECOND READING - Consider adopting an ordinance setting 
out the civil service classifications and setting the number of positions in each 
classification in the Temple Police Department.  
 

 
(M) 2009-5759-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing budget 
amendments for fiscal year 2008-2009.  
 

2. 2009-5758-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an
Interlocal Agreement with the Temple Independent School District to
add one School Resource Officer to the Temple Police Department.  

City Council

Page 6 of 9



Motion by Councilmember Marty Janczak to adopt resolution approving Consent 
Agenda, seconded by Councilmember Russell Schneider. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 

 
ORDINANCES  
 

 
Tim Dolan, Planning Director, presented this rezoning case to the City Council.  This 
property is proposed for an office development and he displayed maps of the site 
location, which is south of the proposed Outer Loop.  The Planning and Zoning 
Commission recommended approval because the request complies with the future 
land use plan and thoroughfare plan and adequate public facilities exist to serve the 
site.  
 
Mayor Jones declared the public hearing to be open with regard to agenda item 6 and 
asked if anyone wished to address this item.  There being no comments, Mayor 
Jones closed the public hearing.  
 
Motion by Councilmember Russell Schneider to adopt ordinance on first reading, with 
second and final reading scheduled for August 6, 2009,   seconded by 
Councilmember Marty Janczak. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 

RESOLUTIONS  
 

 
(B)   2009-5760-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional 
services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP, (KPA) of Temple, 
for engineering services, including design phase services, bid phase services, 
and construction phase services, required to design Phase I of the Temple 
Medical and Education District (TMED) South First Street improvements along 
South First Street in the vicinity of Temple College in an amount not to exceed 
$114,800.  
 
Kim Foutz, Assistant City Manager, presented this item to the City Council.  She 
displayed the Framework Plan for the TMED.  She then discussed the various uses 
within the entire district.  Mrs. Foutz displayed the open space plan, noting the hike 
and bike trails; street plan heirarchy map; high density mixed use and residential 

V. REGULAR AGENDA

6. 2009-4300: FIRST READING - PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-09-24: Consider 
adopting an ordinance authorizing a zoning change from Agricultural District
(A) to Light Industrial District (LI) located on 6.9 ± acres east of Pegasus Drive, 
west of Interstate 35, 180 ± feet south of Moore’s Mill Road, out of the Vincent 
Barrow Survey, Abstract No. 64.  

7. (A)   Receive briefing on the Temple Medical and Education District (TMED)
concept plan and charette design for South First Street.  

City Council

Page 7 of 9



development; monumentation and signage plan; design and development standards; 
and streetscapes.  She also presented some products from the charette design 
meetings.   
 
Staff is seeking Council authorization to begin phase 1 of the project by awarding a 
professional services agreement for design services to Kasberg, Patrick and 
Associates. This phase of the project will include the area from the pedestrian 
overpass to the entrance of the Temple College campus.  Next steps will involve 
more meetings with the coordinating group, prioritizing ideas and improvements, 
discussing funding options and incentives and finalizing and adopting the design 
standards for 1st Street.  Mrs. Foutz noted a  design charette for South 5th Street will 
also be conducted.  
 
Councilmember Jeter stated this is a great project and he fully supports it.  He asked 
that Council also continue to focus on other corridors and develop overlays as a 
proactive planning mechanism to determine what we want developed in these areas.  
 
Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Patsy E. Luna to adopt resolution,  seconded by 
Councilmember Marty Janczak. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
Mayor Jones adjourned the regular meeting of the Temple City Council and convened 
the City of Temple Employee Benefits Trust Meeting.  He noted the City 
Councilmembers also serve as members of the trust.  
 

 

 
(A) MetLife for life insurances and accidental death and dismemberment insurances 
for FY2009-2010 through FY2011-2012;  
 
(B) The Standard for long term disability insurance for FY2009-2010 through FY2010-
2011;  
 
(C) MetLife for dental insurance for FY2009-2010; and  
 
(D) Scott & White Health Plan for medical and prescription insurance for FY2009-
2010.  
 
Amy House, Director of Human Services, presented this item to the Trust members.  She 
discussed each type of insurance coverage being recommended for purchase, as follows: 
 
Life insurance/accidental death and dismemberment insurances - Six proposals received.  
Insurance Committee recommends award to MetLife for a 3-year term as it maintains 
current benefits and reduces cost by almost $2,000. 
 
Long term disability insurance - Five proposals received.  Insurance Committee 

VI. AGENDA - CITY OF TEMPLE EMPLOYEE BENEFITS TRUST 

1. Conduct a meeting of the City of Temple Employee Benefits Trust to purchase
insurance policies from:  

City Council

Page 8 of 9



recommends award to the Standard for a two year term as it maintains the current rates 
and benefits. 
 
Dental insurance - Five proposals received.  Insurance Committee recommends award to 
MetLife because it maintains current benefits, requires the smallest increase and has the 
most in-network dental providers.  If employees do not wish to participate in dental 
insurance, the City’s contribution will be contributed to either their healthcare savings 
account or flexible spending account. 
 
Medical and prescription insurance - Four proposals received, with three being a significant 
increase over current rates to maintain current benefits.  The one proposal with a decrease 
in cost does not include Scott & White providers in their network.  Staff recommends the 
City contribute the same amount towards medical benefits as in the current year for the 
City paid option. In order to reduce the cost to the employee and have an option fully 
funded by the City, a healthcare savings account (HSA) is being proposed.  Ms. House 
provided the details of this plan.  Under the HSA, the City will contribute $16.52 per month 
to the employee’s account. In addition, the current option 1 and option 4 plans will be 
offered to employees.  The Insurance Committee recommends award of this contract to 
Scott & White Health Plan.  
 
Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Patsy E. Luna to authorize the purchase of insurances as 
recommended,  seconded by Councilmember Russell Schneider. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 

                                               

  

 
________________________ 
 
William A. Jones, III, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 
____________________ 
 
Clydette Entzminger  
City Secretary  

 

City Council

Page 9 of 9



 

 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
08/06/09 

Item #5(C) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Gary O. Smith, Chief of Police 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the renewal of a Cooperative 
Working Agreement (CWA) with Bell County for the Bell County Crime Coalition project that is 
administered by the Bell County Juvenile Probation Department.   
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  This agreement will allow Temple Police Officers assigned to investigate juvenile 
crimes to work with Bell County Juvenile Probation Officers in making home visits of children on court 
ordered probation within the City of Temple.  This program has been in place for a number of years. 
The program provides reimbursement for the overtime pay incurred by officers performing home visits 
after normal business hours. 
 
The goal of this program is to team Juvenile Police Officers with Juvenile Probation Officers to 
monitor and reduce technical violations of court imposed sanctions through home visits, curfew 
checks, and drug screening for juveniles on court ordered probation.   
 
The term of this contract will commence on August 1, 2009 and will end on July 31, 2010. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  This program is funded through the Federal Juvenile Accountability Block 
Program, JB 98 JOC 13623. Bell County will receive grant funds and will provide a cash match. There 
is no requirement upon the City of Temple to provide any funding to this program. All expenditures 
with regard to the payment of Temple Police Officers will be reimbursed by Bell County. Should the 
grant funds be exhausted prior to the end date of the agreement, Bell County agrees to continue full 
reimbursement for the personnel costs incurred by the City of Temple.   
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution 



RESOLUTION NO. __________________________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE RENEWAL OF A 
COOPERATIVE WORKING AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE AND BELL COUNTY FOR THE BELL COUNTY CRIME 
COALITION PROJECT THAT IS ADMINISTERED BY THE BELL 
COUNTY JUVENILE PROBATION DEPARTMENT; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the Bell County Crime Coalition project is administered by the Bell 
County Juvenile Probation Department – the goal of the program is to team juvenile 
police officers with juvenile probation officers to monitor and reduce technical violations 
of court imposed sanctions through home visits, curfew checks, and drug screening for 
juveniles on court ordered probation; 
 
 Whereas, the City is required to enter into a cooperative working agreement with 
Bell County to participate in this program; 
 
 Whereas, the City will not be required to provide any funding for the program, 
and all expenditures with regard to the payment of Temple police officers will be 
reimbursed by Bell County; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1:  The City Manager, or his designee, is authorized to execute a Cooperative 
Working Agreement between the City of Temple, Texas, and Bell County, after approval 
as to form by the City Attorney, for the Bell County Crime Coalition project. 
 
 Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of August, 2009. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
              

    WILLIAM A. JONES, III, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
              
Clydette Entzminger     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary     City Attorney 



 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
08/06/09 

Item #5(D) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Kim Foutz, Assistant City Manager 
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a tax abatement agreement with 
Texquest Investments LLC for property located at 2006 South First Street. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in the item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The proposed resolution authorizes the City Manager to execute an agreement 
with Texquest Investments LLC (Texquest), which if approved gives Texquest 100% tax abatement 
for five years on the increased taxable value of real and eligible personal property improvements.  
The tax abatement applies only to new real and personal property improvements with a useful life of 
ten or more years. 
 
Texquest has filed an application to receive tax abatement on improvements on a facility to be 
redeveloped at 2006 South First Street.  In May 2008, the City Council designated the property as 
Tax Abatement Reinvestment Zone #13.  Tax abatement is being sought for the redevelopment of the 
facility which includes refinishing all four sides of the building facades with EIFS and stone or brick; 
installing new doors and windows; installing landscaping and irrigation system as per TMED concept 
design; installing sidewalks and handicap ramps as per TMED concept design; and 
replacing/upgrading the asphalt parking lot (“the Improvements).  The taxable value of real and 
personal property with a useful life of ten or more years at the facility will be increased by an 
estimated $600,000. 
 
The City’s Economic Development Policy for the South First Street Corridor sets out the criteria and 
guidelines for granting tax abatement.  The renovations proposed meet the minimum criteria 
established for tax abatement consideration.   
 
The Staff has provided the other taxing entities involved with notice and a copy of the proposed 
agreement.  Under State law, the other taxing entities will have 90 days to elect to enter into an 
agreement with identical terms.  The proposed agreement is drafted for the signature of each taxing 
entity, but will be effective between Texquest and any of the taxing entities which sign the agreement  
 

 



08/06/09 
Item #5(D) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
even if not all sign.  Under State law, taxes on supplies and inventory are not eligible for tax 
abatement. 
 
Additionally, the agreement has all of the other terms required by Chapter 312 of the Texas Tax Code 
for tax abatement agreements, including: (1) listing the kind and number of improvements; (2) 
providing for inspections of the facility by the taxing entities; (3) requiring compliance with State and 
local laws; (4) recapturing abated taxes in the event of a default under the agreement; and (5) 
requiring Texquest to annually certify to all the taxing entities that it is in compliance with all of the 
terms and conditions of the agreement. 
 
Texquest’s application meets the standards for granting tax abatement on the increase in real and 
personal property improvements established by the City’s Criteria and Guidelines for Tax Abatement.   
The agreement should add to the continued redevelopment of the South First Street corridor, which 
would not have occurred in the absence of tax abatement. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   A 100%, 5 year tax abatement would save the applicant approximately $16,785 
in taxes over the five year period assuming the proposed fiscal year 2009 tax rate of $0.5595 for the 
full 5 years.  This savings also assumes the taxable value of real and personal property with a useful 
life of ten or more years at the facility will be increased by an estimated $600,000. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Application for tax abatement 
Resolution 



















 
 1 

 
 RESOLUTION NO. _________________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A TAX 
ABATEMENT AGREEMENT WITH TEXQUEST INVESTMENTS, LLC, 
FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2006 SOUTH FIRST STREET; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
Whereas, the City adopted a Resolution dated June 15, 1989, stating that it elects to 

be eligible to participate in tax abatement; 
 

Whereas, on March 5, 2009, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 2009-4284, 
establishing a comprehensive economic development policy for the City of Temple, which 
policy includes criteria and guidelines for granting tax abatement within the City of Temple 
in accordance with Chapter 312 of the Tax Code; 
 

Whereas, Texquest Investments, LLC, is the owner of property within the City’s Tax 
Abatement Reinvestment Zone Number Thirteen, and has requested that the City consider 
granting tax abatement for proposed improvements to said property; 
 

Whereas, the contemplated use of the property by Texquest Investments, LLP, as 
hereinafter described, and the contemplated improvements to said property in the form and 
amounts set forth in the agreement, are consistent with encouraging economic development, 
and in accordance with the criteria and guidelines for tax abatement in the City’s Economic 
Development Policy; 
 

Whereas, as required by law the City has notified the other taxing entities of its intent 
to enter into the agreement; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and finds that the proposed tax 
abatement with Texquest Investments, LLC, is in compliance with State law and the City’s 
Guidelines and Criteria governing tax abatement, and that the proposed improvements by 
Texquest Investments, LLC, are feasible and likely to attract major investment and expand 
employment within the City. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Manager, or his designee, is authorized to execute a tax abatement 
agreement on eligible property between the City of Temple and Texquest Investments, LLC, 
after approval as to form by the City Attorney, governing property located at 2006 South 
First Street in Temple, Bell County, Texas. 
 



 
 2 

Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of August, 2009. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 

      
WILLIAM A. JONES, III, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
             
Clydette Entzminger     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary     City Attorney 



 
 

 
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

  
 

08/06/09 
Item #5(E) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Ken Cicora, Director of Parks and Leisure Services  

 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a construction contract with 
Chaney–Cox Construction, Inc. of Temple for remediation of failing portions of the exterior at the 
Santa Fe Depot in the amount of $291,810, and approving a deductive change order in the amount of 
$66,810 for a net contract amount of $225,000. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The City of Temple acquired and restored the Santa Fe Depot in 1999-2000. The 
building not only houses the Railroad and Heritage Museum and the Amtrak Station but is also used 
as rental space for several functions throughout the year. Over the last 9 years the building exterior 
has experienced accelerated aging problems allowing water to infiltrate numerous window sections 
and door components as well as into the building in other locations. Also, the paint on the exterior of 
the building is beginning to fail. 
 
The City of Temple engaged 1113 Architects, Inc. to conduct an analysis of the facility.  Their report 
identified approximately $310,500 in restoration work that needs to be accomplished.  1113 Architects 
then developed plans and specifications to address the problems at this historic building as part of the 
CIP program.  
 
Bids were opened on June 23, 2009 with two bidders responding. The low base bid was from 
Chaney-Cox Construction of Temple in the amount of $291,810. This amount exceeded the budget 
established for these repairs so the Architect and Contractor have modified the scope of the project 
and portions of the specifications so this needed work can be completed within budget to protect this 
asset. 
 
Work to be accomplished in this project includes repairing or reconstructing all windows/doors, 
preparing all exterior painted surfaces and repainting, and painting all new repairs made to the interior 
of the Depot.  
 
The Parks and Leisure Services Department has previous experience with Chaney-Cox Construction, 
Inc. working with them to construct the Lions Junction Family Water Park, the Sammons Park Indoor 
Pool and the expansion to the Summit Fitness and Recreation Center, and has found them to be a 
very responsible contractor. 

 
 



08/06/09 
Item #5(E) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Funding in the amount of $300,000 is appropriated in account 361-2400-519-
6807, project #100329, from the 2008 Certificate of Obligation Bond Issue  for repairs to the Santa Fe 
Depot. After funding professional services in the amount of $17,000, architectural fees of $31,000, 
roof repairs of $15,931 and $194 of miscellaneous expenditures related to the project, a balance of 
$235,875 remains available for this contract.   
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:     
Bid Tabulation 
Change Order #1 
Resolution 

 



Tabulation of Bids Received
on June 23, 2009 at 2:00 p.m.

Santa Fe Depot Restoration Project

Bidders
G. Creek Construction Chaney-Cox Construction Inc. 

Austin Temple
Description

Total Base Bid $462,816.88 $291,810.00
Total Add Alternate #1 $13,200.00 $8,400.00
Total Add Alternate #2 $2,760.00 $9,900.00
Total Add Alternate #3 $21,600.00 $58,500.00
Total Deduct Alternate #1 -$12,100.00 -$3,000.00
Total Deduct Alternate #2 -$16,000.00 -$6,000.00
Acknowledge Addendum Yes Yes
Local Preference No Yes
Qualification Statement Yes Yes
Bid Bond (required at bid opening) 5% 5%

Bond Affidavit Yes Yes
Insurance Affidavit Yes Yes
Credit Check Authorization Form Yes Yes

I hereby certify that this is a correct and true tabulation of all bids received.

Belinda Mattke 23-Jun-09 Note: Highlighted bid is recommended 

Belinda Mattke, Director of Purchasing Date for Council approval.



CHANGE ORDER 
 

PROJECT:  Santa Fe Depot Remediation Project 
OWNER: City of Temple 
CONTRACTOR: Chaney – Cox Construction, Inc. 
ENGINEER: Eleven Thirteen Architects 
CHANGE ORDER #: 1 
 
Make the following additions, modifications or deletions (circle those that apply) to the 
work described in the Contract Documents: 
 
ITEM#:1 Revised # of doors to be replaced and/or repaired as described in the attached 
schedule. Revised how sash and windows will be repaired or replaced as described in the 
attached schedule.                                                 LUMP SUM AMOUNT:   (-66,810.00) 
 
 
 
 
The compensation agreed upon in this Change Order is full, complete and final payment 
for all costs the Contractor may incur as a result of or relating to this change whether said 
costs are known, unknown, foreseen or unforeseen at this time, including without 
limitation, any cost for delay (for which only revised time is available), extended 
overhead, ripple or impact cost, or any other effect on changed or unchanged work as a 
result of this Change Order. 
 
 
Original Contract Amount     $       291,810.00 
Previous Net Change in Contract Amount   $        
Net Change in Contract Amount    $      (66,810.00) 
Revised Contract Amount     $       225,000.00 
Original Contract Time                            120 days 
Previous Net Change in Contract Time                                    N/A days 
Net Change in Contract Time                            N/A days 
Revised Contract Time                            120 days 
Original Final Completion Date      
Revised Final Completion Date      
 
Contractor:  Chaney-Cox Construction  Engineer/Architect/Contract Administrator: 
 
By___________________________              By__________________________ 

       date               date 
Approved by City of Temple:    Approved as to Form:: 
 
By___________________________   By___________________________ 
          date   City Attorney’s Office    date 





 1

 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. _____________________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A CONSTRUCTION 
CONTRACT WITH CHANEY-COX CONSTRUCTION, INC., OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, FOR REMEDIATION OF FAILING PORTIONS 
OF THE EXTERIOR AT THE SANTA FE DEPOT IN THE AMOUNT 
OF $291,810, AND APPROVE A DEDUCTIVE CHANGE ORDER IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $66,810, FOR A NET CONTRACT AMOUNT OF 
$225,000; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, on June 23, 2009, the City received 2 bids for remediation of failing 
portions of the exterior at the Santa Fe Depot; 
 
 Whereas, the Staff recommends accepting the bid ($291,810) received from 
Chaney-Cox Construction, Inc., of Temple, Texas, and approving a deductive change 
order in the amount of $66,180, for a net contract amount of $225,000; 
 
 Whereas, funding for this project is available in Account No. 361-2400-519-
6807, project # 100329; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1:  The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to 
execute a construction contract, not to exceed $291,810, with Chaney-Cox 
Construction, Inc., of Temple, Texas, after approval as to form by the City Attorney, 
and a deductive change order in the amount of $66,810, for a net contract amount of 
$225,000, for the remediation of failing portions of the exterior at the Santa Fe Depot. 
  
 Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 
this Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of 
the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open 
Meetings Act. 
 
 
 
 



 2

 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of August, 2009. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    WILLIAM A. JONES, III, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Clydette Entzminger    Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary     City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
08/06/09 

Item #5(F) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Jonathan Graham, City Attorney 
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the an amendment to a lease 
contract with the Health and Human Services Commission (HHSC), formerly the Texas Department 
of Human Services, for 19,617 sq. ft. in the Public Services Annex, 102 East Central Avenue. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The current lease with the Health and Human Services Commission (HHSC) is for 
19,617 sq. ft at $0.60/sq. ft. monthly for a total of $11,770.20 per month in the Public Services Annex 
(old Sears building).  The lease will expire on February 28, 2010.  HHSC is requesting an extension 
of the lease at this time from March 1, 2010 through August 31, 2011.  The lease extension would 
remain under the same terms and conditions as the current lease and includes a 90 day cancellation 
clause.   
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   The total anticipated HHSC annual rent amount is $141,242.40 ($7.20/ sq. ft. 
annually). 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution 



RESOLUTION NO. _____________________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE AN AMENDMENT TO THE LEASE AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, AND THE HEALTH 
AND HUMAN SERVICES COMMISSION (HHSC) FOR LEASE OF 
SPACE IN THE PUBLIC SERVICES ANNEX LOCATED AT 102 EAST 
CENTRAL AVENUE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE. 

_______________________________________________________________________  
 
 Whereas, the current lease with the Health and Human Services Commission 
(formally Texas Department of Human Services ) for 19,617 sq. ft. at $0.60 sq. ft. in the 
Public Services Annex (old Sears building) will expire on February 28, 2010;  
 
 Whereas, HHSC is requesting an extension of the lease from March 1, 2010 
through August 31, 2011—the lease extension would remain under the same terms and 
conditions as the current lease; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1:  The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute 
an amendment to the lease agreement between the City of Temple, Texas, and the Health 
and Human Services Commission, after approval as to form by the City Attorney, for 
lease of space in the Public Services Annex from March 1, 2010 through August 31, 
2011. 
 
 Part 2:  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that the public notice of the 
time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of August, 2009. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
      _________________________________ 

WILLIAM A. JONES, III, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________  ____________________________ 
Clydette Entzminger      Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary     City Attorney 



 
 

              
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
 

 
08/06/09 

Item #5(G) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Tim Dolan, Planning Director  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: P-FY-09-34: Consider adopting a resolution approving the final plat of 
Scallions Addition, 4 single-family lots on 2.71± acres located on the north side of FM 3117, 181± feet 
east of the City limits, in Temple’s Eastern E.T.J with exceptions to Subdivision Ordinance Section 
33-94(a) Curbs and Gutters. 
 
P&Z COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  At its July 20, 2009 meeting the Planning and Zoning 
Commission voted 7/0 in accordance with Staff recommendation for approval of Final Plat P-FY-09-
34 with exceptions to the Subdivision Ordinance Sec. 33-94(a), Curbs and Gutters.  Commissioners 
Martin and Dusek were absent.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  Please refer to the Staff Report and draft minutes for case P-FY-09-34, from the 
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting, July 20, 2009.  The proposed subdivision consists of four 
lots, two of which are flag lots.  Except for the exception requested for the rural curb and gutter 
standards in Sec. 33-94(a) of the Subdivision Ordinance, the plat meets the minimum requirements of 
the Subdivision Ordinance.  The City Council is the final plat authority since exceptions have been 
requested.    
 
Staff and the Planning and Zoning Commission support the requested exception due to the lack of 
nearby rural curbs and gutters and because the lots (0.6 - 0.7 acres each) have sufficient area to 
accommodate storm water runoff. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Park fees in the amount of $900 will be paid for this subdivision. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Plat 
P&Z Staff Report 
P&Z Excerpts 
Resolution 





       PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
07/20/09 
Item #4 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

 
 
APPLICANT / DEVELOPMENT:  Turley Associates for Kenny Scallions 
 
CASE MANAGER: Brian Mabry, AICP, Senior Planner 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  P-FY-09-34    Consider a recommendation to approve the Final Plat of 
Scallions Addition, 4 single-family lots on 2.71± acres with exceptions to Section 33-94(a) Curbs and 
Gutters located on the north side of FM 3117,181± feet East from the City Limits, in Temple’s Eastern 
E.T.J. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the Final Plat subject to the applicant’s 
requested exception for ribbon curb. 
 
BACKGROUND:   
The Design Review Committee (DRC) reviewed the Final Plat on June 9th and June 30th, 2009 and 
deemed the Final Plat complete on July 2nd, 2009.  As the DRC requested, the applicant has 
submitted a letter with an engineer’s seal stating that fire flow for the subdivision is adequate for four 
lots. Park fees in the sum of $900 are required for this proposed subdivision.  Except for the 
exception requested for the rural curb and gutter standards in Sec. 33-94(a) of the Subdivision 
Ordinance, the plat meets the minimum requirements of the Subdivision Ordinance.  The City Council 
is the final plat authority since exceptions have been requested.    
 
The proposed subdivision consists of four lots, two of which are flag lots. The easement lines and lot 
lines on the plat drawing may appear confusing.  The red lines in the graphic below make the lot lines 
more obvious. 
 

 
 



 
The applicant requests exceptions to the following provision. 
 
Subdivision 
Regulations Citation Requirement Applicant’s Justification Staff 

Support? 

33-94 
Rural streets shall be 

edged with 12 inch wide 
concrete ribbons. 

FM 3117 is in a rural area and 
the frontage of the lots is 

limited (276’) 
Yes 

*See explanations below 
 
The rural curb and gutter standard in Section 33-94 of the Subdivision Ordinance applies to the lots 
adjacent to FM 3117, but not to the proposed private access easement that runs up the middle of the 
subdivision. 
 
Staff supports the applicant’s requested exception for a ribbon curb for the lots adjacent to FM 3117.  
The one-half acre or larger lots have sufficient area to mitigate storm water runoff from any built 
structure.  The lots have access from a single driveway, and the curb would be isolated along the 
north side of FM 3117. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Plat 
 
 



EXCERPTS FROM THE 
  

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 
 

MONDAY, JULY 20, 2009 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
Item 4: P-FY-09-34: Consider a recommendation to approve the Final Plat of 

Scallions Addition, 4 single-family lots on 2.71± acres with exceptions 
to Section 33-94(a) Curbs and Gutters located on the north side of 
FM 3117,181+ feet East from the City Limits, in Temple’s Eastern 
E.T.J. (Applicant: Turley & Associates). 

Mr. Brian Mabry gave an overview to the Commission and stated this case would 
go to City Council on August 6th for final approval for the exception request. 

Mr. Mabry stated the property is on FM 3117, known as Barnhardt Road and lies 
very close to the eastern city limits.  Currently two manufactured homes exist on 
the property and is platted for 4 lots and the applicants would like to add two 
more manufactured homes.   

Mr. Mabry stated all lots have access to 3117 via a private access easement that 
serves all of the lots which is 50 feet wide so if the land to the rear and north of 
the property were developed in the future, there would be sufficient room to add 
a public right-of-way to serve the properties in the back, if subdivided. 

Mr. Mabry stated DRC deemed the plat complete on July 8, 2009.   

Mr. Mabry stated the applicants requested exception to Section 33-94(a) of the 
Subdivision Regulations which required rural streets to have a 12” wide ribbon 
curb which apply to Lots 1 and 4 only.  It would not apply to the access way down 
the middle of the property.  The lots are large enough to accommodate storm 
water runoff without the ribbon curb. 

Staff recommended approval of the final plat for Scallions Addition with exception 
to Subdivision Regulation Section 33-94(a), Curbs and Gutters.  Part of that 
recommendation is with any additions or alterations to the engineering plans as 
required by the Engineering Department. 

Commissioner Talley made a motion to approve the final plat of P-FY-09-34 with 
the exceptions and Commissioner Hurd made a second. 

Motion passed:  (7:0) 
Commissioners Dusek and Martin were absent. 



 RESOLUTION NO. ________________ 
 

(Planning No. P-FY-09-34) 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
APPROVING THE FINAL PLAT OF SCALLIONS ADDITION, 4 SINGLE-
FAMILY LOTS ON APPROXIMATELY 2.71 ACRES LOCATED ON THE NORTH 
SIDE OF FM 3117, APPROXIMATELY 181 FEET EAST OF THE CITY LIMITS, 
IN TEMPLE’S EXTRATERRITORIAL JURISDICTION (ETJ), SUBJECT TO THE 
DEVELOPER’S REQUESTED EXCEPTION TO THE SUBDIVISION 
ORDINANCE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

             _______ 
 

Whereas, on July 20, 2009, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved the final plat of 
Scallions Addition, 4 single-family lots on approximately 2.71 acres located on the north side of FM 
3117, approximately 181 feet east of the City limits, in Temple’s ETJ, subject to the developer’s 
requested exception to the Subdivision Ordinance; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
approve the final plat of  Scallions Addition. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council approves the final plat of Scallions Addition, 4 single-family lots on 
approximately 2.71 acres located on the north side of FM 3117, approximately 181 feet east of the 
City limits, in Temple’s ETJ, more fully shown on the Plat which is on file in the City's Planning 
Department, incorporated herein and referred to by reference, and including the following exception 
to the Subdivision Ordinance: Section 33-94(a) to allow a ribbon curb for the lots adjacent to FM 
3117. 
 

Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Resolution is 
passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said 
meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of August, 2009. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
              
       WILLIAM A. JONES, III, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
              
Clydette Entzminger     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary     City Attorney 



   
 
            

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
 

 
08/06/09 

Item #5(H) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
 
DEPT. /DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Tim Dolan, Planning Director  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: SECOND READING – Z-FY-09-24: Consider adopting an ordinance 
authorizing a zoning change from Agricultural (A) to Light Industrial (LI) located on 6.9+ acres east of 
Pegasus Drive, west of Interstate 35, 180+ feet south of Moore’s Mill Road, out of the Vincent Barrow 
Survey, Abstract No. 64. 
 
P&Z COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  At its July 6, 2009 meeting, the Planning and Zoning 
Commission voted 8/0 in accordance with staff recommendation to recommend approval of a zoning 
change from A to LI because the request: 
 

1. Conforms to the Future Land Use and Character Plan for Suburban Commercial,  
2. Conforms to the Thoroughfare Plan for access to existing Arterials, and 
3. Conforms to the Adequacy of Public Facilities Plan since water and sewer will be extended 

as part of the plat. 
 
Commissioner Pilkington was absent. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt ordinance on second reading and final adoption. 
 
  
ITEM SUMMARY:  Please refer to the Staff Report and draft minutes of case Z-FY-09-24, from the 
Planning and Zoning meeting, July 6, 2009. 
 
The applicant proposes a six-lot office park subdivision with access from a proposed collector sized 
roadway which intersects North General Bruce Drive and Pegasus Drive. 
 
A total of four notices of the P&Z public hearing were sent out.  No notices have been returned.  The 
newspaper printed notice of the P&Z public hearing on Friday, June 26, 2009 in accordance with 
state law and local ordinance. 
 
The action of the Planning and Zoning Commission are shown in the draft minutes. The Commission 
did not raise any issues requiring additional staff attention. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  NA 



08/06/09 
Item #5(H) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Zoning Map 
Land Use and Character Map 
Aerial 
Notice Map 
P&Z Staff Report (Z-FY-09-24) 
P&Z Minutes (July 6, 2009) 
Ordinance 



 







 



        PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
07/06/09 
Item #5 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

 
 
APPLICANT / DEVELOPMENT: WRA Enterprises, Inc. 
 
CASE MANAGER:  Tim Dolan, AICP, Planning Director 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION - Z-FY-09-24: Public Hearing: Discuss and recommend action on a rezone 
request from Agricultural (A) to Light Industrial (LI) located on 6.9+ acres east of Pegasus Drive, west 
of Interstate 35, 180+ feet south of Moore’s Mill Road, out of the Vincent Barrow Survey, Abstract No. 
64. 
 
BACKGROUND - The applicant’s request is for a six-lot business park subdivision. Water and 
wastewater will be extended to this area as part of the development.  The Commission should review 
and take action on a preliminary plat at you next meeting, July 20th. 
 
Surrounding Property and Uses 
The following table shows the existing zoning and current land uses abutting the subject property: 
 

Direction Current Land Use 
North Undeveloped – zoned LI 
East Undeveloped – zoned LI 
South Undeveloped – zoned LI 
West Undeveloped – zoned LI 

A zoning request should be reviewed for compliance with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Future Land Use and Character Plan 
The Future Land Use and Character Plan show the subject area suitable for business park uses, for 
suburban commercial, next to an Industrial Use.  The request conforms to the Future Land Use and 
Character Plan.  Any structures, landscaping and parking will be required to conform to the IH 35 
Overlay District Regulations. 
 
Thoroughfare Plan 
Both Pegasus Drive and North General Bruce are existing Arterial Rights-of-Way and are located on 
the east and west sides of the subject tract.  The request conforms to the Thoroughfare Plan. 
 
Adequacy of Public Facilities Plan 
Adequate water and sewer exist on Pegasus Drive and will be extended through the proposed 
subdivision. 
 
Development Regulations 
The purpose of the Light Industrial District (LI) allows light industrial uses as defined by performance 
standards in the zoning ordinance for land uses not to create excessive noise, air containments, fire, 
explosives, odor, smoke, vibration or glare. The LI District allows building height to any legal limit not 
prohibited by other laws or ordinances. The light industrial district acts as a transition from other 



commercial or retail uses to industrial uses. Any structures, landscaping and parking will be required 
to conform to the IH 35 Overlay District Regulations. This district is intended to be located away from 
areas of low and medium density residential development. The location should be carefully selected 
to avoid or reduce environmental impacts to residential areas. Prohibited uses include single family 
residential uses. Temporary residential include boarding or rooming houses and hotels or motels. 
 
The minimum lot area and setback requirements include 

IH 35 Overlay Requirements 
Dimensions LI 

Min. Lot Area (sq. ft.) NA 
Min. Lot Width (ft.) NA 
Min. Lot Depth (ft.) 100 
Max. Height (stories) to any legal height not 

prohibited by other laws or 
ordinances 

Min. Yard (ft)  
     Front 50’ from the property line 

     Side 10 
     Side (street) 20 
     Rear   10 
Landscaping 15% 

 
Public Notice 
A total of four notices were sent out June 26th, and the newspaper also printed notice of the public 
hearing June 26th in accordance with state law and local ordinance.  As of July 1st at 5 PM, no 
notices were returned. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval of Z-FY-09-24 because the zoning request: 

1. Conforms to the Future Land Use and Character Plan for Suburban Commercial,  
2. Conforms to the Thoroughfare Plan for access to existing Arterials, and 
3. Conforms to the Adequacy of Public Facilities Plan since water and sewer will be extended 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Zoning Map 
Land Use and Character Map 
Aerial 
Notice Map 



EXCERPTS FROM THE 
  

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 
 

MONDAY, JULY 6, 2009 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
Item 6: Z-FY-09-24: Public Hearing: Discuss and recommend action on a 

rezone request from Agricultural (A) to Light Industrial (LI) located on 
6.9+ acres east of Pegasus Drive, west of Interstate 35, 180+ feet 
south of Moore’s Mill Road, out of the Vincent Barrow Survey, 
Abstract No. 64. (Applicant: WRA Enterprises, Inc.) 

Mr. Tim Dolan stated if this item continues on to City Council, first reading would 
be July 16th and the second reading would be August 6th.  This area is planned 
for office park development on seven (7) acres.  The Land Use Plan, while 
contemplated for suburban/residential uses, the recently approved I35 Overlay 
showed this area planned for industrial uses.   

Five letters were mailed and no letters were received in favor of or opposition to 
this issue.  Staff is recommending approval of this zoning case because it 
complies with the Future Land Use Plan Map, the Comprehensive Plan, the 
Thoroughfare Plan and adequate public facilities will be planned to serve the 
area as part of the plat. 

Chair Pope opened the public hearing to allow anyone to speak regarding this 
matter. There being no speakers Chair Pope closed the public hearing. 

Commissioner Luck made a motion to approve the zone change from Agricultural 
(A) to Light Industrial (LI) and Commissioner Hurd made the second. 

Motion passed:  (8:0) 
Vice-Chair Pilkington was absent. 



 1

 
 
 
 ORDINANCE NO. _______________ 

 
[PLANNING NO. Z-FY-09-24] 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, APPROVING A ZONING CHANGE FROM AGRICULTURAL 
DISTRICT (A) TO  LIGHT INDUSTRIAL (LI) LOCATED ON 
APPROXIMATELY 6.9 ACRES EAST OF PEGASUS DRIVE, WEST OF 
INTERSTATE 35, APPROXIMATELY 180 FEET SOUTH OF MOORE’S 
MILL ROAD, OUT OF THE VINCENT BARROW SURVEY, ABSTRACT 
NO. 64; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 
  
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS,   

THAT: 
 
Part 1: The City Council approves a zoning change from Agricultural District (A) to 

Light Industrial (LI) on approximately 6.9 acres east of Pegasus Drive, west of Interstate 35, 
approximately 180 feet south of Moore’s Mill Road, out of the Vincent Barrow Survey, 
Abstract No. 64, more fully described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part hereof 
for all purposes. 
 

Part 2: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 
changes to the City Zoning Map accordingly. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid by the 
final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not 
affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this 
ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City Council without the 
incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 4: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 
 

Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

 
 



 2

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 16th day of 

July, 2009. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 6th day of August, 2009. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       __________________________________ 

WILLIAM A. JONES, III, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Clydette Entzminger     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary     City Attorney 



 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
08/06/09 

Item #5(I) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
David Blackburn, City Manager 
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution ratifying a grant application submission in the 
amount of $1,146,285 for funding assistance for the construction of Fire Station 8 through the 
Department of Homeland Security’s Federal Emergency Management Agency’s Fire Station 
Construction Grant Program. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The purpose of the Fire Station Construction Grant (‘FSC’) Program is to achieve 
the goals of firefighter safety and improved response capability/capacity based on need through the 
construction, renovation or modification of fire stations.  
 
FSC grants provide financial assistance directly to fire departments on a competitive basis to build 
new or modify existing fire stations in order for departments to enhance their response capability and 
protect the community they serve from fire and fire-related hazards. The authority for FSC is derived 
from the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) of 2009. Congress appropriated a total of 
$210 million for this Fiscal Year (FY) 2009 program. The primary program goal is to help fire 
departments meet their firefighting and emergency response needs. 
 
As noted above, construction of new fire stations, to include stations that have previously committed 
and/or acquired funding, are eligible for this grant.  
 
Staff is recommending $1,146,285 in grant funding be sought for the construction of Fire Station 8. 
The projected cost of the Fire Station 8/Training Center/EOC project is $4,859,929. Of this amount 
$837,879 is estimated for expenditures that are not eligible for grant funding such as furniture/fixtures, 
bunker gear equipment, and technology/communications equipment. Additionally, fire training centers 
and emergency operation centers are not eligible for funding under the program. However, non-
operational space (training, EOC, etc.) may be incorporated into a structure funded through the grant 
program, but the costs of that space will not be eligible for Federal funding nor inclusion as a local 
cost-share. The grant guidelines specify that, for dual-use stations, eligible costs will be determined 
based on square footage totals of operational vs. non-operational space. The total Fire Station 
8/Training Center/EOC project, less the $837,879 for grant ineligible items, is estimated to cost  

 



08/06/09 
Item #5(I) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
$4,022,050. 57% of the total square footage of the project is estimated to be used for grant eligible 
fire station operational facilities and 43% of the total square footage of the project is estimated to be 
used for grant ineligible training center and emergency operations center facilities. Therefore, based 
on the grant program guidelines, 57% of the $4,022,050 cost (or $2,292,569) is eligible for grant 
funding. Of the $2,292,569, the Staff recommends requesting 50% of that amount, $1,146,285, in 
grant funding from the FSC grant program for the construction of Fire Station 8. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Total grant funding requested totals $1,146,285 which would be used in 
conjunction with General Obligation Bond funds for the construction and equipping of the Fire Station 
8/Training Center/EOC project. 
 
Funding for the city’s grant match of $1,146,285 is available using 2008 General Obligation Bonds, 
which were approved by voters on May 10, 2008. The issue included the construction of Fire Station 
#8/Training Center/Emergency Operations Facility for a total cost of $4,775,160.  Bonds are 
scheduled to be issued in the fall of 2009.  
 
An additional $84,769 of 2006 Certificate of Obligation bonds is designated for the completion of the 
Emergency Operations Center to be located at Fire Station #8.  
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 
Resolution 



 1

 
 
 RESOLUTION NO. _______________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS; RATIFYING A GRANT APPLICATION SUBMISSION IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $1,146,285 FOR FUNDING ASSISTANCE FOR THE 
CONSTRUCTION OF FIRE STATION 8 THROUGH THE 
DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY’S FEDERAL 
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY’S FIRE STATION 
CONSTRUCTION GRANT PROGRAM; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 
  

 
Whereas, the purpose of the Fire Station Construction Grant (FSC) Program is to 

achieve the goals of firefighter safety and improved response capability/capacity based 
on need through the construction, renovation or modification of fire stations; 

 
Whereas, FCS grants provide financial assistance directly to fire departments on a 

competitive basis to build new or modify existing fire stations in order for departments to 
enhance their response capability and protect the community they serve from fire and 
fire-related hazards; 

 
Whereas, the Staff requests ratification of a grant application in the amount of 

$1,146,285 for funding assistance for the construction of Fire Station 8; 
 
Whereas, funding for the City’s match of $1,146,285 is available using 2008 

General Obligation Bonds, which were approved by the voters on May 10, 2008, which 
issue included the construction of Fire Station 8/Training Center/Emergency Operations 
Facility; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council ratifies a grant application submission in the amount of 
$1,146,285 for funding assistance for the construction of Fire Station 8 through the 
Department of Homeland Security’s Federal Emergency Management Agency’s Fire 
Station Construction Grant Program, and authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to 
execute any documents, after approval as to form by the City Attorney, that may be 
necessary for the grant process. 
 

Part 2: The City Council accepts any funds that may be received for this grant. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 

 



 2

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of August, 2009. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
             

WILLIAM A. JONES, III, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
            ____ 
Clydette Entzminger    Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary     City Attorney 



 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
    08/06/09 

Item #5(J) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Bruce Butscher, Director of Public Works 
Michael Newman, Assistant Director of Public Work/City Engineer  
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:   Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the use of Child Safety Funds to 
upgrade the school zone at Jefferson Elementary and Lamar Middle School on North 3rd Street in the 
amount of $15,758. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The requested Child Safety Funds will be used to consolidate and upgrade the 
two school zones serving Jefferson Elementary and Lamar Middle School to include one extended 
school zone with pole and mast arm type solar powered flashers. 
 
The City has received concerns from TISD that there is a need to make the school zone more visible, 
due to North 3rd Street being a wide and heavily traveled street.  There are a great number of 
students that cross this street during peak traffic hours. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  A budget adjustment is presented for Council’s approval appropriating $ 15,758 to 
account 110-2800-532-6323, project # 100513, from Child Safety Fees collected by the County on 
behalf of the City.  
 
After approval of this funding, there will be $ 218,502 available in Child Safety Funds for future 
eligible expenditures. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Budget Adjustment 
Pole and Mast Arm Flasher Example 
Resolution 



FY 2009
BUDGET ADJUSTMENT FORM

Use this form to make adjustments to your budget.  All adjustments must balance within a Department.
Adjustments should be rounded to the nearest $1. 

+ -

ACCOUNT NUMBER
PROJECT 

# DECREASE

110-0000-452-01-64
110-2800-532-63-23 100513  

TOTAL……………………………………………………………………………… -$            

DOES THIS REQUEST REQUIRE COUNCIL APPROVAL? x Yes  No
DATE OF COUNCIL MEETING

WITH AGENDA ITEM? x Yes  No

Approved
Disapproved

Approved
Disapproved

Approved
Disapproved

To appropriate Child Safety Funds in the amount of $ 15,758 to consolidate and upgrade the two school zones serving Jefferson 
Elementary and Lamar Middle School to one extended school zone with pole and mast arm type solar powered flashers.  The 
City has received concerns from TISD that there is a need to make the school zone more visible.  After approval of this budget 
adjustment, $ 218,502 will remain in Child Safety Funds for future eligible expenditures.

8/6/2009

EXPLANATION OF ADJUSTMENT REQUEST- Include justification for increases AND reason why funds in decreased 
account are available.

31,516$      

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

Child Safety Fee Revenue
Traffic Signals

INCREASE

15,758$      
15,758        

Date

Date

Date

City Manager

Department Head/Division Director

Finance

Revised form - 10/27/06





 1

 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. __________________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE USE OF $15,758 IN CHILD 
SAFETY FUNDS TO UPGRADE  THE SCHOOL ZONE AT 
JEFFERSON ELEMENTARY AND LAMAR MIDDLE SCHOOL ON 
NORTH 3RD STREET; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the City of Temple receives an annual allocation of child safety fees 
from Bell County that are collected on every vehicle registered in Bell County; 
 
 Whereas, these funds must be used for programs such as school crossing 
guards, child safety, health or nutrition, child abuse prevention and intervention and 
drug and alcohol abuse prevention; 
 
 Whereas, from those funds, the Street Department request funding to upgrade 
the school zone at Jefferson Elementary and Lamar Middle School; 
 
 Whereas, an amendment to the FY2008-2009 budget needs to be approved to 
transfer the funds to the appropriate expenditure account; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1:  The City Council authorizes the use of $15,758 in Child Safety Funds 
to upgrade the school zone at Jefferson Elementary and Lamar Middle School. 
 
 Part 2: The City Council approves an amendment to the FY2008-2009 budget, 
substantially in the form of the copy attached as Exhibit A, for this purpose. 
 
 Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 
this Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of 
the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open 
Meetings Act. 
 
 
 



 2

 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of  August, 2009. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    WILLIAM A. JONES, III, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Clydette Entzminger    Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary     City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  
 

08/06/09 
Item #5(K) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Ken Cicora, Director of Parks & Leisure Services  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution approving the Temple Film Guidelines that will 
enable Temple to become a certified Texas Film Friendly Community and assist City and State 
tourism staff in recruiting filmmakers to consider Temple when producing films.     
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The Texas Film Commission (TFC) has an ongoing program called Film Friendly 
Texas in which Texas communities are trained and prepared to effectively deal with on-location 
filming, and to put their best foot forward in marketing their resources. Whether it's a two-day 
television commercial or a two-month feature film, the Texas Film Commission wants Texas 
communities to be ready to welcome filmmakers in a way that also benefits their residents, 
businesses and community in general.  
 
The TFC has developed several steps to becoming a certified Film Friendly Community. Film Friendly 
Workshop attendance is the first step in becoming a certified Film Friendly Texas community, with 
recognition as such on the Texas Film Commission's Web site. The steps for certification are: 
 

• Attendance at a daylong Film Friendly Texas workshop by at least one official community 
representative. Nancy Glover attended this workshop several months ago. 

• Passage of Film Guidelines, as approved by the Texas Film Commission. Temple’s Guidelines 
have been developed and have passed through several approval phases to date. 

• Inclusion of selected area locations in the Texas Film Commission's location database. 
Tourism staff have been working with an area photographer to develop a database of locations 
in Temple. The database is nearing completion. 

 
With the recent passage of legislation that increases the incentives offered to film producers in Texas, 
now is the time to ensure Temple is well represented at the State level through this certification. New 
legislation offers filmmakers the opportunity to receive 5-15% of eligible Texas spending upon 
completion of the project. 
 
 
 



08/06/09 
Item #5(K) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
The Film Guidelines developed are intended to protect the personal and property rights of our 
residents and businesses. They cover requests for commercial use of City-owned property (streets, 
right-of-ways, and public buildings), commercial use of private property which may affect adjacent 
public or private property, equipment and personnel in the filming of movies, TV shows, commercials, 
and related activities. The guideline packet addresses the following points: 
 

• City Control/City Manager Authority 
• Permit Requirements 
• Fees 
• Use of City Equipment and Personnel 
• Use of City Property 
• Special Equipment and Vehicles 
• Hours of Filming 
• Notification of Neighbors 
• Insurance Requirements and Liability 

 
Authority for managing filmmaking in Temple is the City Manger or his designee.   Permitting for films 
in Temple follows the process established for all other outdoor events with the permits being issued 
through the Parks and Leisure Services Department.   The Guidelines also include a filmmaking 
application that must be completed prior to the start of any filming project.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Temple Film Guidelines 
Resolution 



 

Filming Guidelines 
Temple, Texas 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



 

 

 

Guidelines for Filming in Temple, TX 
 
 
 
 
 
 

I. Purpose 
 
II. City Control/City Manager Authority 
 
III. Permit Requirements and Fees 
 
IV. Fees 
 
V. Use of City Equipment and Personnel 
 
VI. Use of City Property 
 
VII. Special Equipment and Vehicles 
 
VIII. Hours of Filming 
 
IX. Notification of Neighbors 
 
X. Certificate of Insurance 
 
XI. Hold Harmless Agreement 
 
XII. Liability 



 

 

 

Guidelines for Filming in Temple, TX 
 
 
I. PURPOSE 
The following guidelines are intended to protect the personal and property rights of our Temple, 
TX residents and businesses. The City Manager reserves the right to impose additional 
regulations in the interest of public safety if deemed necessary. 
 
These guidelines cover requests for commercial use of City-owned property (streets, right-of-
ways, and public buildings), commercial use of private property which may affect adjacent 
public or private property, equipment and personnel in the filming of movies, TV shows, 
commercials, and related activities. 
 
II. CITY CONTROL/CITY MANAGER AUTHORITY 
The City Manager, or his designee,  may authorize the use of any street, right-of-way, or public 
building, equipment or personnel for commercial uses in the filming or taping of movies, 
television programs, commercials, or training films and related activities. In conjunction with 
these uses, the City Manager, or his designee, may require that any or all of the conditions and/or 
remuneration as specified on the application be met as a prerequisite to that use. 
 
The applicant agrees that the City of Temple, TX shall have full control over the use of public 
streets and buildings of the City while being used, as well as control over the hours of production 
and the general location of the production. The City reserves the full and absolute right to 
prohibit all filming or to order cessation of filming if determined to be detrimental to the public 
health, safety and welfare. 
 
The applicant shall agree to allow the respective City departments (i.e., Police, Fire, Building) to 
inspect all structures and/or devices and equipment to be used in connection with the filming and 
taping if required by the City Manager. 
 
III. PERMIT REQUIREMENTS 
Before filing an application for filming in Temple, TX, the Parks and Leisure Services 
Department – Permit Office must be contacted to discuss the production's specific filming 
requirements and the feasibility of filming in Temple, TX. 
 
Any commercial producer who desires to undertake a commercial film or tape production in 
Temple, TX is required to complete and return the attached application for filming to the Parks 
and Leisure Services – Permit Office:  
   

• Commercials or episodic television a minimum of 2 business days prior to the 
commencement of filming or any substantial activity related to the project. 

• Feature films a minimum of 5 business days prior to the commencement of filming or 
any substantial activity related to the project. 

 
 
 



 

 

 

IV. FEES 
An application processing fee of $25.00 should accompany each application for filming in 
Temple, TX.  
 
The City Manager, or his designee, may waive this fee for non-profit organizations. 
 
V. USE OF CITY EQUIPMENT AND PERSONNEL 
The applicant will agree to pay for the costs of any Police, Fire, Public Works, or other City 
personnel assigned to the project (whether specifically requested by the producer or not). 
Remuneration rates for the use of any City equipment, including Police squad cars and fire 
equipment, will be established on a case-by-case basis. The applicant will agree to pay in full, 
promptly upon receipt of an invoice, the charges incurred or the Parks and Leisure Services 
Director may require a deposit for proposed use of the equipment in advance. 
 
The City Manager, or his designee, has the authority to require additional police or fire coverage 
if it is determined to be in the best interest for public safety. Off-duty police officers or 
firefighters are to be paid one and one-half their hourly rate based on their rank. 
 
VI. USE OF CITY PROPERTY 
The City Manager, or his designee, may authorize the use of any street, right-of-way, or public 
building, use of Temple, Texas name, trademark or logo, equipment or personnel for commercial 
uses in the filming or taping of movies, television programs, commercials, or training films and 
related activities. In conjunction with these uses, the City Manager, or his designee,  may require 
that any or all of the conditions and/or remuneration as specified on the application be met as a 
prerequisite to that use.  A security or damage deposit may be required based on production 
activity. 
 
Depending upon the extent of the use of City property, the producer agrees to reimburse the City 
for inconveniences when using public property. Following is the rate schedule: 
 

A. Total or disruptive use (regular operating hours)   
per day of a public building:      $500 

 
B. Partial non-disruptive use of a public building:    $250 per day 
 
C. Total closure of public street or right-of-way   

(including parking lots and on-street parking):   $50 per day 
 
D. Partial closure or obstruction of public street    

or right-of-way (including parking lots and  
on-street parking):        $25 per day 

 
The applicant agrees that The City of Temple, TX shall have full control over the use of the 
name, trademark and logo, public streets and buildings of the City while being used, as well as 
control over the hours of production and the general location of the production. The City reserves 
the full and absolute right to prohibit all filming or to order cessation of filming if determined to 



 

 

 

be hazardous to the public health, safety and welfare. 
 
VII. SPECIAL EQUIPMENT AND VEHICLES 
The applicant shall provide a report listing the number of vehicles and types of equipment to be 
used during the filming including their proposed hours of use and their proposed parking 
locations. Such locations will need to be specifically approved by the City so as to maintain 
traffic safety. On-street parking or use of public parking lots is subject to City approval. The use 
of exterior lighting, power generators, or any other noise or light producing equipment requires 
on-site approval of the City. 
 
VIII. HOURS OF FILMING 
Unless permission has been obtained from the City in advance and affected property owners, 
tenants and residents are notified, filming will be limited to the following hours: Monday thru 
Friday 7:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m. and Saturday, Sunday and holidays 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. 
 
IX. NOTIFICATION OF NEIGHBORS 
The applicant shall provide a short written description, approved by the Parks and Leisure 
Services Director, of the schedule for the proposed production to the owners, tenants and 
residents of each property in the affected neighborhood (as defined by boundaries set by the 
Parks and Leisure Services Director). The applicant, or his designee, shall make a good faith 
effort to notify each owner, tenant and resident of all such property and submit as part of this 
application a report noting any owner or resident's comments, along with the address and phone 
numbers of all such property owners, tenants and residents and their signatures. Based upon this 
community feedback, the Parks and Leisure Services Director may grant or deny the filming 
application. 
 
X. CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE 
The producer shall attach a certificate of insurance, naming The City of Temple, TX as an 
additional insured, in an amount not less than $1,000,000 general liability, including bodily 
injury and property damage with a $5 million umbrella; and automobile liability (if applicable) in 
an amount not less than $1,000,000 including bodily injury and property damage. 
 
XI. LIABILITY 
The applicant agrees to pay in full, promptly upon receipt of an invoice, the costs of repair for 
any and all damage to public or private property, resulting from or in connection with, the 
production, and restore the property to its condition prior to the production or to better than 
original condition. 
 
XII. HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT 
The producer shall sign the following Hold Harmless Agreement holding the City harmless from 
any claim that may arise from their use of designated public property, right-of-way, or equipment 
in conjunction with the permitted use: 
 
I certify that I represent the firm which will be performing the filming/taping at the locations 
specified on the attached permit application. I further certify that I and my firm will perform in 
accordance with the directions and specifications of The City of Temple, TX, and that I and my 



 

 

 

firm will indemnify and hold harmless The City of Temple, TX for and from any loss, damage, 
expense, claims and costs of every nature and kind arising out of or in connection with the 
filming/taping pursuant to this permit. 
 
I further certify that the information provided in this application is true and correct to the best of 
my knowledge, and that I hold the authority to sign this and other contracts and agreements with 
the City of Temple on behalf of the firm. 
 
 

Signed: ________________________________ 

Title: __________________________________ 

Date: __________________________________ 

 
 



 

 

 

 
 

Application for Commercial Filming 
 
 
Title of commercial/film/photo shoot) _________________________________________ 

Type of production: commercial _____  feature film _____ 

   Television _____  training film _____ 

   Public service _____  other ___________________________ 

Location of filming: ______________________________________________________ 

Date(s) of filming: ______________________________________________________ 

 
CONTACTS 
Production Office:  

name: ________________________________ 
address: ________________________________ 
phone: ___________________________  fax: ________________________________ 

 
Producer:  

name: ________________________________ 
address: ________________________________ 
phone: ___________________________  fax: ________________________________ 

 
Location Manager:  

name: ________________________________ 
address: ________________________________ 
phone: ___________________________  fax: ________________________________ 

 
Texas Film Commission representative: _______________________________________ 
 
PRODUCTION (Attach additional sheets if necessary.) 
 
1. Production schedule and activities to include stunts, pyrotechnics, special effects, aerial 

photography, amplified sound or use of animals: (Give dates and times and rain dates. 
Hours should include set-up, holding of sets and restoration.) 

 
 
 



 

 

 

 
2. Number of persons involved with the production, including cast and crew: 
 
 
3. Anticipated need of City personnel, equipment or property: 
 
 
 
 
4. Describe any areas in which public access will be restricted during production: 
 
 
 
 
5. Describe alterations to property: 
 
 
 
 
6. Number and type of production vehicles to be used and location(s) where vehicles will be 

parked: 
 
 
 
7. Location where crew will be fed, if not at production location: 
 
 
 
8. Location where extras will be held, if not at production location: 
 
 
 
9. Attach a map of anticipated street closure(s) or other public area use: 
 
 
 

 

Application completed by: 

Name/Title: ___________________________________ Date: __________________ 

Approved by: __________________________________ Date: __________________ 

The “Guidelines for Filming in Temple, TX” apply to all filming activities, and the Parks and 
Leisure Services – Permit Office may require the applicant to acknowledge receipt of the guidelines 
prior to approving this application. 



RESOLUTION NO. _____________________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, APPROVING THE TEMPLE FILM GUIDELINES 
FOR THE CITY THAT WILL ENABLE TEMPLE TO BECOME A 
CERTIFIED TEXAS FILM FRIENDLY COMMUNITY AND TO 
ASSIST CITY AND STATE TOURISM STAFF TO HELP RECRUIT 
FILMMAKERS TO CONSIDER TEMPLE WHEN PRODUCING FILMS; 
AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, The Texas Film Commission (TFC) has an ongoing program called 
Film Friendly Texas in which Texas communities are trained and prepared to effectively 
deal with on-location filming and to successfully market their resources; 
 
 Whereas, the TFC encourages Texas communities to be ready to welcome 
filmmakers in a way that also benefits their residents, businesses and community in 
general; 
 
 Whereas, the TFC has developed several steps to becoming a Film Friendly 
Community, one of which is passage of Film Guidelines, as approved by the Texas Film 
Commission; 
 
 Whereas, the Staff recommends approval of the Temple Film Guidelines which 
will enable Temple to become a Texas Film Friendly Community to help recruit 
filmmakers to consider Temple when producing films; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1:  The City Council approves the Temple Film Guidelines for the City of 
Temple, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit A, that will enable Temple to become a 
certified Texas Film Friendly Community and assist City and State tourism staff to help 
recruit filmmakers to consider Temple when producing films. 
 
 Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of August, 2009. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
              

    WILLIAM A. JONES, III, Mayor 
 



ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
              
Clydette Entzminger     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary     City Attorney 



  
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
08/06/09 

Item #5(L) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Traci Barnard, Director of Finance   
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing budget amendments for fiscal year 
2008-2009. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  This item is to recommend various budget amendments, based on the adopted 
FY 2008-2009 budget. The amendments will involve transfers of funds between contingency 
accounts, department and fund levels. 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The total amount of budget amendments is 912,288. 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 
Budget amendments 
Resolution  
 



CITY OF TEMPLE
BUDGET AMENDMENTS FOR FY 2009 BUDGET

August 6, 2009

APPROPRIATIONS
ACCOUNT # PROJECT # DESCRIPTION Debit Credit

110-2000-521-2516 Judgments & Damage - Police Dept. 285$                
110-1500-515-6531 Contingency - Judgments & Damages 285$              

Attorney fees for lawsuit filed against City - - Steven Taylor v. City of Temple

110-3700-524-2516 Judgments & Damages - Construction Safety 7,253$             
110-1500-515-6531 Contingency - Judgments & Damages 7,253$           

Attorney fees -- Martha's Kitchen Shelter of Texas, Inc. v. City of Temple

260-6400-572-2616 Professional (HOME Grant) 7,300$             
260-6400-572-2625 Advertising/Legals 200$                
260-6400-572-2623 Other Contract Services 375,000$         
260-6400-572-2697 Affordable Housing - General Fund 58,125$           
260-0000-431-0135 HOME Grant 382,500$        
260-0000-490-2582 Transfer In - General Fund 58,125$          
110-9100-591-8160 Transfer Out - General Fund 58,125$           
110-0000-352-1345 Designated Capital Projects - 2008 HOME Grant 58,125$         

To appropriate funds for the 2008 HOME Owner Occupied grant received from the
Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs.

520-5100-535-2118 Chemicals (Water Treatment Plant) 400,000$         
520-5100-535-6310 100300 Buildings & Grounds - Repair/Replace Drives & Valves 105,000$        
520-5500-535-6532 Contingency - Sewer Treatment 295,000$       

To appropriate additional funds needed for chemicals at the Water Treatment Plant.
It is anticipated that an additional $400,000 will be needed to fund chemical costs for
the remainder of FY 2009 in addition to the $730,000 that is currently budgeted
bringing the total amount needed for chemicals during FY 2009 to $1,130,000.  $110,000
to $125,000 of the shortfall is directly attributable to increased costs in chemicals.  
The drought situation that we are currently in causes the quality of the water to decline
causing a need for higher usage of chemicals at the plant.  This account was also 
"under budgeted" in FY 2009.  The proposed FY 2010 budget, includes $1,427,348 in
funding for chemicals for the membrane and conventional plants.

520-5200-535-6532 Contingency  (Water Distribution) 4,000$             
520-5400-535-6532 Contingency (Sewer Collection) 2,000$            
520-5300-535-6532 Contingency (Metering) 6,000$           

This budget adjustment appropriates additional funding for these divisions for future
judgments & damages.

TOTAL AMENDMENTS 912,288$         912,288$       

GENERAL FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance -$                   
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -$                   
Carry forward from Prior Year -$                   
Taken From Contingency -$                   
Net Balance of Contingency Account -$                  

1



CITY OF TEMPLE
BUDGET AMENDMENTS FOR FY 2009 BUDGET

August 6, 2009

APPROPRIATIONS
ACCOUNT # PROJECT # DESCRIPTION Debit Credit

Beginning Judgments & Damages Contingency 70,000$          
Added to Contingency Judgments & Damages from Council Contingency 20,000$          
Taken From Judgments & Damages (83,416)$         
Net Balance of Judgments & Damages Contingency Account 6,584$           

Beginning SAFER Grant Match Contingency 46,821$          
Added to SAFER Grant Match Contingency -$                   
Taken From SAFER Grant Match Contingency (41,968)$         
Net Balance of SAFER Grant Match Contingency Account 4,853$           

Beginning Compensation Contingency 184,700$        
Added to Compensation Contingency -$                   
Taken From Compensation Contingency (118,395)$       
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account 66,305$         

Net Balance Council Contingency 77,742$         

Beginning Balance Budget Sweep Contingency -$                   
Added to Budget Sweep Contingency -$                   
Taken From Budget Sweep -$                   
Net Balance of Budget Sweep Contingency Account -$                  

WATER & SEWER FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance 174,121$       
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -$                   
Taken From Contingency (166,411)$       
Net Balance of Contingency Account 7,710$           

Beginning Compensation Contingency 34,334$          
Added to Compensation Contingency -$                   
Taken From Compensation Contingency (34,334)$         
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account -$                  

Beginning Approach Mains Contingency 500,000$        
Added to Approach Mains Contingency -$                   
Taken From Approach Mains Contingency (11,730)$         
Net Balance of Approach Mains Contingency Account 488,270$       

Beginning T-BRSS Future Plant Expansion Contingency 450,000$        
Added to T-BRSS Future Plant Expansion Contingency -$                   
Taken From T-BRSS Future Plant Expansion Contingency (445,424)$       
Net Balance of T-BRSS Future Plant Expansion Contingency 4,576$           

Net Balance Water & Sewer Fund Contingency 500,556$       

HOTEL/MOTEL TAX FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance 75,221$          
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -$                   
Taken From Contingency -$                   
Net Balance of Contingency Account 75,221$         

Beginning Compensation Contingency 5,401$            
Added to Compensation Contingency -$                   
Taken From Compensation Contingency (3,222)$           
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account 2,179$           

Net Balance Hotel/Motel Tax Fund Contingency 77,400$         

2



CITY OF TEMPLE
BUDGET AMENDMENTS FOR FY 2009 BUDGET

August 6, 2009

APPROPRIATIONS
ACCOUNT # PROJECT # DESCRIPTION Debit Credit

DRAINAGE FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance -$                   
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -$                   
Taken From Contingency -$                   
Net Balance of Contingency Account -$                  

Beginning Compensation Contingency 4,631$            
Added to Compensation Contingency -$                   
Taken From Compensation Contingency (1,901)$           
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account 2,730$           

Net Balance Drainage Fund Contingency 2,730$           

FED/STATE GRANT FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance 7,962$            
Carry forward from Prior Year 99,254$          
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -$                   
Taken From Contingency (70,458)$         
Net Balance of Contingency Account 36,758$         

3



 RESOLUTION NO. ___________________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, APPROVING  BUDGET AMENDMENTS TO THE 2008-2009 
CITY BUDGET; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 
  

 
Whereas, on the 28th  day of August, 2008, the City Council approved a budget for the 

2008-2009 fiscal year; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council deems it in the public interest to make certain amendments 
to the 2008-2009 City Budget. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council approves amending the 2008-2009 City Budget by adopting 
the budget amendments which are more fully described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and 
made a part hereof for all purposes. 
 

Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of August, 2009. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 

       
WILLIAM A. JONES, III, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Clydette Entzminger     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary     City Attorney 



 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

08/06/09 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
David Blackburn, City Manager 
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution naming the new Municipal Court & Utility 
Business Office facility at 401 North 3rd Street after Jamie Hager Clements.   
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:   The new Municipal Court and Utility Business Office located at 401 N. 3rd Street 
is nearing completion with a projected opening date in early October 2009.  Attached are two citizen 
requests that have been received requesting the naming of this facility after Jamie Hager Clements. 
 
Mr. Clements was born on December 9, 1930, in Crockett, Texas.  Mr. Clements passed away on 
February 26, 2009.   
 
Mr. Clements received his undergraduate degree from the University of Texas and later his law 
degree form the University of Texas School of Law.   At the age of 20 while obtaining his 
undergraduate degree, Mr. Clements became the youngest legislator ever elected to the Texas 
House of Representative.   
 
Mr. Clements became a resident of Temple after being recruited by Scott & White on July 25, 1960.  
During his tenure at Scott & White, Mr. Clements guided the development of Scott & White into the 
regional healthcare facility that it is today, oversaw the development of the partnership between 
Texas A&M University System Health Science Center and its College of Medicine, and led the 
establishment of the Scott & White Health Plan. 
 
Mr. Clements served two terms as Temple mayor from 1970 to 1974.    
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Funds are available in the Municipal Court & Utility Business Office facility budget 
to cover the cost of signage. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Recommendation Letters 
Resolution 









RESOLUTION NO. 2009-5771-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
NAMING THE NEW MUNICIPAL COURT AND UTILITY BUSINESS OFFICE 
FACILITY AT 401 NORTH 3RD STREET AFTER JAMIE HAGER CLEMENTS; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

               
 Whereas, the new Municipal Court and Utility Business Office located at 401 North 3rd Street is 
nearing completion with a projected opening date in early October, 2009; 
 
 Whereas, the City of Temple has received citizen requests to name the new facility after Jamie 
Hager Clements who served two terms as Mayor of Temple from 1970 through 1974, and who was 
instrumental in guiding the development of Scott & White Memorial Hospital into the regional healthcare 
facility that it is today; 
 
 Whereas, Mr. Clements received his undergraduate degree from the University of Texas and later 
his law degree from the University of Texas School of Law – at the age of 20 while obtaining his 
undergraduate degree, he became the youngest legislator ever elected to the Texas House of 
Representatives; 
 

Whereas, his personal, professional, and civic life was built on a foundation of integrity and 
service; he was a man who had strong convictions and lived by them; he was a man who loved challenges, 
and who never hesitated to give of his time and talent to assist others; 

 
Whereas, the City of Temple desires to pay tribute to the late Jamie Hager Clements by naming 

the new Municipal Court and Utility Business Office after him; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
THAT: 
 
 Part 1:  The City Council approves naming the new Municipal Court and Utility Business Office 
facility located at 401 North 3rd Street after Jamie Hager Clements in honor of his many years of support 
and dedication to the citizens of Temple, Texas, and to the entire Central Texas community. 
 
 Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Resolution is 
passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said 
meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of August, 2009. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
              

    WILLIAM A. JONES, III, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
              
Clydette Entzminger     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 

              
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
 
 

08/06/09 
Item #7 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

 
DEPT. /DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Tim Dolan, Planning Director  
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING Z-FY-09-16: Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing a zoning change from the Central Area District (CA) and Multiple Family Two 
District (MF2) to Single Family One District (SF1) and/or Neighborhood Services District (NS) for all of 
Blocks 1 and 26, Moore’s First Addition; all of Blocks, 4, 7, 8, 9, & 10, and Block 3, Lots 2-4, L.R. 
Taylor Addition; and Outblocks, 263-2A, 2B, 2C, 2D, and 23, Temple Original. 
 
P&Z COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  At its July 20, 2009 meeting the Planning and Zoning 
Commission voted 7/0 to recommend SF1 zoning only for Z-FY-09-16. 
 
Commissioners Dusek and Martin were absent. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Conduct public hearing and adopt ordinance as presented in item 
description, on first reading, and schedule second reading and final adoption for August 20, 2009. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  Please refer to the Staff Report and draft minutes of case Z-FY-09-16, from the 
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting, July 20, 2009.  The City Council is the final authority for 
zoning cases. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  NA 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Aerial 
Zoning Map 
Future Land Use & Character Plan 
Buffer 
Respondent’s Letters 
P&Z Staff Report  
P&Z Excerpts 
Ordinance 



W FRENCH AVE

N 
1S

T S
T

N 
9T

H 
ST

W ADAMS AVE

W DOWNS AVE

W BARTON AVE

N 
7T

H 
ST

N 
15

TH 
ST

N 
15

TH 
ST

N 
11

TH 
ST

N 
3R

D 
ST

W CALHOUN AVE

N 
5T

H 
ST

N 
5T

H 
ST

N 
13

TH 
ST N 

MA
IN 

ST

N 
11

TH 
ST

N 
7T

H 
ST

W GARFIELD AVE

W ELM AVE

W CALHOUN AVE

N 
9T

H 
ST

:
1 inch = 300 feet
J Stone  7.7.9

Z-FY-09-16 CA & MF2 District Rezoning

CA & MF2 to SF1 or NSZFY0916



GR
MF2

MF2
MF2

NS

C

CA

O2
CP-177

O2
LI

C

2F

MF2
PD-99

2F SF1

O2 N 
9T

H 
ST

N 
1S

T S
T

W ADAMS AVE

W FRENCH AVE

W CALHOUN AVE

W ELM AVE

W GARFIELD AVE

N 
7T

H 
ST

N 
11

TH 
ST

N 
MA

IN 
ST

N 
13

TH 
ST

N 
5T

H 
ST

N 
9T

H 
ST

W CALHOUN AVE

N 
3R

D 
ST

N 
11

TH 
STN 

15
TH 

ST

N 
15

TH 
ST

N 
7T

H 
ST

W BARTON AVE

W DOWNS AVE

60
9

402

61
0

61
2

61
8

60
5

61
9

60
6

61
8

60
1

604

60
3

60
9

708

60
4

60
6

817
815

811
803

709 707 705

611

603

618

620

41
8

50
1

51
1

51
7

51
6

50
2

51
1

51
7

50
2

50
8

51
8

50
5

51
1

51
9

40
2 

A
-F

412
414

41
6

314

41
5

315 313

40
1

41
5

41
7

40
2

40
4

40
8

41
6

42
0

510
41

1
41

9

41
8

41
0

40
4

31
1

30
3

31
7

30
4

411

21
5

504

31
3

50
1

31
5

31
7

32
0

30
4

21
3 22

0

518

11
6

11
8

12
0

10
5

10
7

10
9

715

11
2

11
4

11
8

20
1

20
9

303

302

20
1

20
7

21
1

20
4

20
6

20
8

21
2

22
0

500

612
614

10
7

11
3

11
5 615

10
8

11
2

11
4

11
8

10
9

11
1 11

8

11
6

11
2

508

10
0

11
5

11
7

11
9

11
8

11
5

11
7

22
1

70
3

70
4

70
9

70
4

71
0

304

61
2

61
8

61
1

60
4

61
0

61
4

50
4

51
2

51
8

50
5

50
9

51
7

50
4

50
8

51
2

51
8

41
8

40
1

40
5

40
9

41
3

41
7

40
2

41
4

41
6

42
0

211

31
0

31
4

200

11
8

60
861
0

61
1

61
7

61
7

60
5

710

51
4

51
6

307

41
5

410

610

700

10
6

215

212
214

204

21
1

11
410

1

519

31
0

30
0

517

711

711

711

610

30
0

511

810

21
4

514

10
7

512

10

11

613

601

70
3

70
7

71
5

70
4

71
0

71
4

71
8

61
7

61
9

60
0

60
6

61
8

50
5

51
1

51
7

102

51
2

51
4

51
8

40
1

31
5

31
9

61
7

70
3

70
7

71
1

71
7

61
5

12
6

52
0

42
0

41
1

11
7

40
4

40
6

40
1

61
5

11551
5

60
5

30
1

30
4

31
0 31

7

21
5

21
7 30

1
31

1
31

5

14

21
9

21
4

22
0

21
5

21
7

14

12

21
3

107 105

40
8

41
0

40
2

62
1

102

60
3

1

2

3

4

1

2
3

4
1

2
3

4
1

1
2

1
2

1

2
1

2

13

1

1

1

2

3

4

1

2

3

3

4

2

3

4

1

2

3

4

1

1

1

1

2

1

8

4

3

4

3
2

1

4

3

2

2

1

4

3

2

1

4

3

2

1

4

3

2

1

3 1
3

3
1

3
1

4

3

2

1

4

3
1

2

1

1

2
3

1

3

1

2

3

4

1

2

3

4

1

2

3

1

3 1 3

2 4

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

2
4

2

1

2
3

4

1

2

1

4

1

2
4

1

2

4

4

1

2

1

2

3

4

1

2
2

3

4

3

4

1 2
3 4

5 6

7 8
9 1011

12
1

2

3

4

1

281-1C

263-2A

282-2B

282-1A

282-3A

282-5

282-7

281-2B

281-2A

281-2C

281-1A

281-1E
281-1B

280-1A

274-1

270-1
270-2

270-4

267-A

265-A

264-B

271-1C
271-1B 271-1A

262-1A

260-1

260-1

263-2B

263-2D
263-2C

263-2E

263-1A

261-2B

261-2A
261-2C

261-1

264-A

274-2

272-2

28

8

1

1

31

1

16

11

5

1
37

1

30

29

4

1

5

30

15

14

1

10

8

7

9

4

3

26

27

1

2

3

4

1

5

6

1

25

2

3

9

2

17

13

12

8

6

2

:
1 inch = 300 feet
J Stone  7.7.9

Z-FY-09-16 CA & MF2 District Rezoning

CA & MF2 to SF1 or NSZFY0916



 



GR
MF2

MF2
MF2

NS

C

CA

O2
CP-177

O2
LI

C

2F

MF2
PD-99

2F SF1

O2 N 
9T

H 
ST

N 
1S

T S
T

W ADAMS AVE

W FRENCH AVE

W CALHOUN AVE

W ELM AVE

W GARFIELD AVE

N 
7T

H 
ST

N 
11

TH 
ST

N 
MA

IN 
ST

N 
13

TH 
ST

N 
5T

H 
ST

N 
9T

H 
ST

W CALHOUN AVE

N 
3R

D 
ST

N 
11

TH 
STN 

15
TH 

ST

N 
15

TH 
ST

N 
7T

H 
ST

W BARTON AVE

W DOWNS AVE

60
9

402

61
0

61
2

61
8

60
5

61
9

60
6

61
8

60
1

604

60
3

60
9

708

60
4

60
6

817
815

811
803

709 707 705

611

603

618

620

41
8

50
1

51
1

51
7

51
6

50
2

51
1

51
7

50
2

50
8

51
8

50
5

51
1

51
9

40
2 

A
-F

412
414

41
6

314

41
5

315 313

40
1

41
5

41
7

40
2

40
4

40
8

41
6

42
0

510
41

1
41

9

41
8

41
0

40
4

31
1

30
3

31
7

30
4

411

21
5

504

31
3

50
1

31
5

31
7

32
0

30
4

21
3 22

0

518

11
6

11
8

12
0

10
5

10
7

10
9

715

11
2

11
4

11
8

20
1

20
9

303

302

20
1

20
7

21
1

20
4

20
6

20
8

21
2

22
0

500

612
614

10
7

11
3

11
5 615

10
8

11
2

11
4

11
8

10
9

11
1 11

8

11
6

11
2

508

10
0

11
5

11
7

11
9

11
8

11
5

11
7

22
1

70
3

70
4

70
9

70
4

71
0

304

61
2

61
8

61
1

60
4

61
0

61
4

50
4

51
2

51
8

50
5

50
9

51
7

50
4

50
8

51
2

51
8

41
8

40
1

40
5

40
9

41
3

41
7

40
2

41
4

41
6

42
0

211

31
0

31
4

200

11
8

60
861
0

61
1

61
7

61
7

60
5

710

51
4

51
6

307

41
5

410

610

700

10
6

215

212
214

204

21
1

11
410

1

519

31
0

30
0

517

711

711

711

610

30
0

511

810

21
4

514

10
7

512

10

11

613

601

70
3

70
7

71
5

70
4

71
0

71
4

71
8

61
7

61
9

60
0

60
6

61
8

50
5

51
1

51
7

102

51
2

51
4

51
8

40
1

31
5

31
9

61
7

70
3

70
7

71
1

71
7

61
5

12
6

52
0

42
0

41
1

11
7

40
4

40
6

40
1

61
5

11551
5

60
5

30
1

30
4

31
0 31

7

21
5

21
7 30

1
31

1
31

5

14

21
9

21
4

22
0

21
5

21
7

14

12

21
3

107 105

40
8

41
0

40
2

62
1

102

60
3

1

2

3

4

1

2
3

4
1

2
3

4
1

1
2

1
2

1

2
1

2

13

1

1

1

2

3

4

1

2

3

3

4

2

3

4

1

2

3

4

1

1

1

1

2

1

8

4

3

4

3
2

1

4

3

2

2

1

4

3

2

1

4

3

2

1

4

3

2

1

3 1
3

3
1

3
1

4

3

2

1

4

3
1

2

1

1

2
3

1

3

1

2

3

4

1

2

3

4

1

2

3

1

3 1 3

2 4

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

2
4

2

1

2
3

4

1

2

1

4

1

2
4

1

2

4

4

1

2

1

2

3

4

1

2
2

3

4

3

4

1 2
3 4

5 6

7 8
9 1011

12
1

2

3

4

1

281-1C

263-2A

282-2B

282-1A

282-3A

282-5

282-7

281-2B

281-2A

281-2C

281-1A

281-1E
281-1B

280-1A

274-1

270-1
270-2

270-4

267-A

265-A

264-B

271-1C
271-1B 271-1A

262-1A

260-1

260-1

263-2B

263-2D
263-2C

263-2E

263-1A

261-2B

261-2A
261-2C

261-1

264-A

274-2

272-2

28

8

1

1

31

1

16

11

5

1
37

1

30

29

4

1

5

30

15

14

1

10

8

7

9

4

3

26

27

1

2

3

4

1

5

6

1

25

2

3

9

2

17

13

12

8

6

2

:
1 inch = 300 feet
J Stone  7.7.9

Z-FY-09-16 CA & MF2 District Rezoning

CA & MF2 to SF1 or NSZFY0916 200' Buffer



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



   
 
            

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEMORANDUM 
 

07/20/09 
Item 4 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

 
APPLICANT: Planning & Zoning Commission 
 
DEPT. /DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  Tim Dolan, AICP, Planning Director 

Z-FY-09-16: Hold a public hearing to discuss and recommend action on a zone change from Central 
Area District (CA) and Multiple Family Two District (MF2) to Single Family One District (SF1) and/or 
Neighborhood Service District (NS) for all of Blocks 1 and 26, Moore’s First Addition; All of Blocks 3, 
4, 7, 8, 9, & 10, L.R. Taylor Addition; and Out blocks 263- 1A, 2A, 2B, 2C, 2D, and 23, Temple 
Original. 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the Commission conduct a public hearing, take 
testimony from the public, close the hearing and make a motion to consider recommending rezoning 
the area described above.  The Commission has several options: 

1. Motion to recommend approval for Z-FY-090-16 subject to the following: 
a. Rezone the area from CA and MF2 to NS; or 
b. Rezone the area from CA and MF2 to SF1; or 
c. Keep the area zoned CA and MF2; or 
d. Reduce the area described above, keeping the similar choices described above. 

 
ITEM SUMMARY: 
The Commission called a public hearing for today’s meeting to consider rezoning some lots south of 
the Historical District, and a small portion of the Historical District from CA and MF2 to either NS or 
SF-1.  At the meeting July 6th, some Commissioners requested rezoning the area to SF-1, NS, or 
keep the area intact with the current CA zoning.  The Commission conducted a special meeting 
Tuesday, June 9th at the First Christian Church to meet with area property owners and receive input 
for proposed Map amendments for rezoning some of the area from Central Area (CA) to 
Neighborhood Service (NS). 
 
A zoning request should be reviewed for compliance with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Future Land Use and Character 
The Future Land Use and Character map designates the subject property as Neighborhood 
Conservation and Urban Retail.  Chapter 3 of the Comprehensive Plan states that the Neighborhood 
Conservation designation is to keep the same residential development pattern allowing for non-
conforming uses to change over time to Neighborhood Conservation.  Urban retails uses are those 
serving the surrounding area with commercial buildings built to the property line, serving the local 
area.  The Comprehensive Plan designates changes from Urban Retail to Neighborhood 
Conservation. 



07/20/09 
Item 4 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
Thoroughfare Plan 
While Nugent Street is shown as a collector sized roadway, it is north of the subject area.  The 
remaining roads in the subject area are shown as local roads. The rezoning request from CA to NS or 
SF1 conforms to the road pattern and action statements of the Thoroughfare Plan requiring parking 
for NS or SF-1 uses. CA zoning does not require on-site parking. 
 
Adequacy of Public Facilities 
Water and sewer serve the area. 
 
Public Notice 
A total of 96notices were sent out to the subject area and to owners 200’ outside of the subject area. 
On Wednesday, July 15th at 2 PM, three notices favored the request and one notice opposed the 
request. One request was returned favoring the SF-1 request, while opposing the NS request. The 
newspaper printed notice of the public hearing on Friday, July 10, 2009 in accordance with state law 
and local ordinance. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  NA 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Future Land Use & Character Plan 
Zoning Map 
Aerial 
Buffer 



EXCERPTS FROM THE 
  

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 
 

MONDAY, JULY 20, 2009 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
Item 3: Z-FY-09-16: Hold a public hearing to discuss and recommend action 

on a zone change from Central Area District (CA) and Multiple Family 
Two District (MF2) to Single Family One District (SF1) and/or 
Neighborhood Service District (NS) for all of Blocks 1 and 26, 
Moore’s First Addition; All of Blocks 3, 4, 7, 8, 9, & 10, L.R. Taylor 
Addition; and Out blocks 263- 1A, 2A, 2B, 2C, 2D, and 23, Temple 
Original. (Applicant: Planning & Zoning Commission) 

Mr. Dolan stated a public hearing would be held on this and if it moved forward to 
City Council the first reading would be August 6th and second reading would be 
August 20th. 

Mr. Dolan gave some history for Commissioners and audience.  The Commission 
asked Staff to look at some of the areas south of the Historical District for land 
uses and zoning.  The Commission recommended some of the changes from the 
Central Area (CA) and Multi-Family Two (MF-2) to Neighborhood Services (NS) 
which changes were also discussed at the community meeting held on June 9th 
at First Christian Church. 

Mr. Dolan stated there were Land Use charts located on both corners of the dais 
for public information for citizens in attendance which were also provided at the 
community meeting.  These charts stated all allowed land uses within the Single 
Family (SF1), Neighborhood Services (NS) and Central Area (CA) zoning 
districts. 

Mr. Dolan stated at the July 6th meeting the Commission asked Staff to also 
consider zoning the area as NS or SF1 which was advertised in the newspaper 
and property owners.  A total of 16 responses have been submitted. 

Mr. Dolan stated the map being shown indicated the original subject area 
outlined in red dashes is what was looked at from previous meetings.  The 
Commission decided to reduce the area size to the solid red outline now 
indicated.  The Commission also looked at including 4 lots of 516, 511, 517 and 
518 into the zoning change.  

Mr. Dolan stated the Future Land Use Plan shows the majority of this area for 
neighborhood conservation—to conserve the neighborhood, to take the Single 
Family awareness that is there.  It would be in keeping in line with what the 



Comprehensive Plan Advisory Committee and the City Council recommended for 
approval. 

Mr. Dolan described and explained some of the uses, symbols, and 
abbreviations on the comparison charts.  Single Family One (SF1) is more 
restrictive than the CA and NS areas.   

Mr. Dolan stated there were a total of 96 notices mailed to property owners within 
the 41 lot area that is being looked at for rezoning and 55 notices mailed for the 
200’ buffer area.  Of the 16 notices the Commission had in their documentation, 
seven (7) were in favor of SF1 and one was opposed to NS and SF1. The 
balance of the notices only stated they were in favor of the request but did not 
indicate any zoning type. 

Mr. Dolan pointed out seven (7) non-confirming uses if the area were rezoned for 
SF.  If the area were zoned NS, condominiums/townhomes and apartments 
would not be allowed but the retail uses would be.  If the areas with the 
apartments and condos were zoned NS, those uses would become legal non-
conforming uses. 

Mr. Dolan stated there were several options for the Commission to consider: 

 CA and MF2 to NS; or 

 CA and MF2 to SF1; or 

 Keep the areas zoned CA and MF2; or 

 Reduce the area described earlier. 

Mr. Dolan informed the Commission they could not enlarge the area 
geographically.  If a larger area were to be considered, the public hearing should 
be closed without taking comments and/or action and instruct Staff to include a 
larger area.  However, a larger area could not be allowed at this meeting. 

Chair Pope asked Mr. Dolan to explain ‘legal non-conforming.’  Mr. Dolan stated 
the businesses are legal uses but non-conforming to the zoning district.  For 
example, if an existing business were purchased as that specific business, and 
the purchaser decided at a later date to cease that specific business and instead 
used the property as a residential homestead or a Single Family use, that action 
will ‘close the door’ on the legal nonconforming use--the preceding business 
would be unable to reestablish itself, if the area were zoned SF1. 

Chair Pope opened the public hearing and asked for public comments. 

Mr. Scott Shine, 415 N. 9th Street, and has owned his home for ten (10) years. 
During this time a business opened next door to his home.  Mr. Shine stated it is 
believed that commercial zoning has the effect of increasing a property’s value 



and always desirable.  Mr. Shine disagreed and stated when commercial zoning 
is improperly applied it has the opposite effect and depresses property values. 

Mr. Shine stated the homes located between French and Nugent that are 
protected by Single Family residential zoning “are on average valued at more 
than $20 a square foot higher than homes that are very similar that are just a few 
feet away in Central Area zoning.”  “On a typical home of 1800 square feet that is 
a difference of $36,000.” 

Mr. Shine stated that since 2006 when the business next door to his home 
opened, the Bell County Tax Appraisal District has continually lowered the value 
of his home from a “proposed value of $156,903 in 2006 to a current value of 
$88,336.  That is a loss of value of over $68,000.” 

Mr. Shine stated the Tax Appraisal District is “very reluctant to lower the taxable 
value of a property, however, given the current zoning and proximity to a 
business, they could come to no other conclusion.”  Mr. Shine feels the damage 
to his home’s value is far greater than the tax savings. 

Mr. Shine stated protecting homeowners’ property values is far more important 
than speculating a commercial expansion.  Within a few blocks of City Hall in the 
downtown business district, there are 17 commercial properties that are actively 
being advertised for lease or sale. There is no lack of appropriate commercial 
space in the downtown Temple area. 

In July of 2002 the City of Temple issued the following statement about zoning of 
this area.  “Staff believes all districts outside the downtown should be compatible 
with their potential and future land uses as in other parts of the city.  The majority 
of the neighborhood is currently zoned Central Area zoning district.  The City 
would like to rezone a portion of this neighborhood to a residential zoning district 
that doesn’t allow businesses, only single family homes.  This would protect the 
existing family homes from a high density business use opening.  The City 
supports the zone change.” 

Mr. Shine stated there is no reason 2009 should be different than 2002. There 
was no infrastructure to support business then and there is no infrastructure to 
support business today.  Mr. Shine stated this is a residential neighborhood, 
commercial expansion will destroy the quality of life for those who live there, it 
will destroy homes’ values and it will destroy the rich history of this beautiful 
neighborhood. 

Mr. Shine stated now is the time to protect the single largest investment most 
people will make and urged the Commission to rezone the neighborhood single 
family residential. 

Mr. Dolan asked Chair Pope if it was possible for anyone speaking that had 
written documentation to please let Staff make xerox copies of that 



documentation for accuracy of taking the meeting minutes.  Chair Pope agreed 
and asked the attending citizens to share their documentation with Staff. 

Mr. Ron German, 511 N. 9th.  Mr. German stated he did some investigation of 
this problem and tried to take a systematic approach to the question.  In his 
unscientific survey, Mr. German had determined that “59 of the 64 properties that 
were in the original block were being used for family quarters” which represents 
“92% of that neighborhood or the shaded area in the single family residential 
platform.”  

Mr. German stated if you go with the average of three (3) people in a family 
which the Census Bureau discussed, it means this decision potentially affects 
177 people.  

Mr. German stated it was ironic to even consider the idea of having a “stable, an 
electric subdivision, a transmission line, a government shop yard, a sewage 
pumping station, utility shops, treatment plant, off and on premise beer and wine 
sales, a stadium, a fitness club, cemetery, community center, halfway house, 
helicopter stop, gas station, convenience store, retail store, dental lab and others 
and temporary asphalt or cement batching plant as the gateway to the Historic 
District.  It just didn’t seem right.” 

Mr. German stated he took a drive down Avenue H and noticed the businesses in 
that area had designated parking.  If the current designation in his neighborhood 
were to continue there is no requirement for parking, yet somehow they manage 
to impose that for the businesses along Avenue H.   

Mr. German stated he is opposed to the NS when there is an option for SF1. 

Ms. Barbara Boson, Executive Director of Texas Housing Authority, wanted to 
speak on behalf of 504 W. Calhoun for this hearing.  The THA owns the Chateau 
Apartments located at 504 W. Calhoun and the apartments have been there 
since the mid-1960s.  Ms. Boson asked the Commission to draw the line back 
and allow the apartments to remain multi-family.  It is a 22 unit complex, houses 
the elderly and near-elderly and there is adequate parking for the residents 
without parking on the street.  There are two buildings and if one were ever 
damaged, it would prevent the Texas Housing Authority from reconstructing. 

Chair Pope asked Ms. Boson if her proposal was to move the line from Calhoun 
to behind the THA north property line and Ms. Boson replied that was correct, to 
take 263-1A out of the area. 

Mr. Kevin Elliott, 417 N. 9th Street stated his wife owned the scrapbook store at 
that property.  Mr. Elliott stated he looked at the downtown Temple area as an 
opportunity to conduct a business venture similar to what is found in 
Fredericksburg and Salado—taking residential homes and turning them into 
profitable businesses.  Mr. Elliott stated his property appraised value had 
increased.   



Mr. Elliott stated he had invested approximately $30,000 into their business and it 
appeared their business would be grandfathered in as a legal non-conforming 
use if this zone change took effect.  Mr. Elliott stated some of the suggested 
restrictions on the area would discourage and deny business interests and 
opportunities from coming into the area. 

Mr. Elliott stated he opposed this zone change because he would like to see 
further opportunities for other like-minded people to come into the area and bring 
the type of quality clientele they have to the area. 

Mr. Chad Lee, 501 N. 9th Street, stated he appreciated the point of view about 
bringing in businesses to the neighborhood but this is “a neighborhood.”  Mr. Lee 
stated families live and have raised their families in this area.   

Mr. Lee stated there were currently six businesses within the area and it is not a 
downtown area for redevelopment.  It is an area for raising your families.  Mr. Lee 
stated he is “offended” and does not appreciate someone entering his residential 
neighborhood and opening a business. 

Mr. Lee asked the Commission to make the change to SF. 

Ms. Hillary Shine, 415 N. 9th Street, stated she and her husband have been 
dealing with this issue for last three (3) years.  Her home was built in 1921 and is 
an arts and crafts bungalow.  Ms. Shine is passionate about her home and 
neighborhood preservation and feels there is a very real threat to her and others’ 
homes with the current Central Area (CA) zoning when this area was intended to 
be a neighborhood.  Ms. Shine had a business move directly next door to her 
home in 2006 and was “shocked.”  Ms. Shine did not believe the City would allow 
a business to locate right next door to her home.  Ms. Shine approached the City 
to find out about this situation and discovered what Central Area zoning meant, 
or in her opinion, “no zoning.” 

Ms. Shine stated almost “anything you can think of can be located right next 
door” to her and “unbelievably” CA zoning has been “exempted from most every 
commercial code.” 

Ms. Shine has been pursuing this residential zone change for nearly three years 
through City Council, City Staff and Planning and Zoning and thanked the 
Commission for finally bringing it to the table. 

Ms. Shine stated her goal is not to have the business closed next door to her but 
to prevent future business uses in this “residential” neighborhood.  The 
predominant use is residential. 

Ms. Shine stated businesses in the area lowers property values, increases traffic, 
destroys the historic integrity of properties and chases people like Ms. Shine 
away.  Ms. Shine also stated the infrastructure and current uses support no 



zoning other than single family or residential and there is no other way to prevent 
further deterioration of historic properties. 

Ms. Shine asked the Commission to vote in favor of the zone change single 
family and do what is in the best interest for families that call this area home, to 
secure the future of the historic district and its surrounding areas, and improve all 
of the property values by disallowing inappropriate uses. 

Ms. Shine addressed issues previously raised: using alleys as “creative” parking.  
Ms. Shine’s utilities and trash containers are located in the alley.  Someone 
recently drove down the alley and destroyed the Shines’ gas meter and they 
experienced loss of power due to vehicles in the alley. 

Ms. Shine also stated Neighborhood Services would require “buffers.”  When a 
“house sits three feet off the ground, a six foot fence does nothing to buffer you 
from your neighbor.” 

Ms. Katherine Mowbray, 418 N. 9th Street, stated she lived directly across from 
the scrapbook store.  Ms. Mowbray purchased her home in ’98 which was being 
used as a church and have slowly remodeled the house.  Ms. Mowbray stated 
she feels the scrapbook store seems to be “the center viewpoint of this whole 
mess and that’s how it got started.” 

Ms. Mowbray stated she has never had any issues with any of the scrapbook 
store’s customers.   

Ms. Mowbray stated her property values have increased and did not understand 
how the Shines’ property taxes would have been lowered.  Ms. Mowbray stated 
she did not want any zoning that would allow businesses such as a “strip club or 
something of that nature” but at the same time she feels small family businesses 
are fine. 

Ms. Mowbray stated she did not welcome the idea of looking out her window and 
having large parking lots and asphalt or having homes torn down in order to have 
parking lots but she felt the businesses currently in the area were not causing 
any harm.  Ms. Mowbray stated the businesses have not lowered her property 
taxes nor other neighbors she had spoken with and doesn’t understand why the 
Shines’ have been lowered.  Ms. Mowbray felt this issue might be related to 
computer error. 

Ms. Mowbray stated she did not want the neighborhood overrun by businesses 
but she didn’t feel there was any harm in it.  If Ms. Mowbray were to sell her 
home, the increased traffic would provide more people to look at her home and 
other area homes for potential purchase. 

Ms. Mowbray stated she did not feel this situation was so drastic and being 
vindictive was not the answer. 



Mr. Edwin Bailey, 317 N. 9th Street, stated he would like to see the area stay 
single family and did not feel the area is conducive to a successful business. 

Mr. William McGarvey, 401 N. 9th Street, stated there is a tendency to allow 
older cities to be encroached upon in areas that are contemplated to be single 
family.  Mr. McGarvey stated “encroachment is a subtle means of deterioration” 
over a period of time.   

Mr. McGarvey stated most inner cities desperately need businesses but the outer 
parts do not since “it conflicts and does not comport with overall ambience that 
should be preserved” and anything other than single family would be 
counterproductive. 

Mr. James Roskey, 201 N. 9th, stated anyone who is considering the purchase of 
a home in this area should look at the zoning first.  Mr. Roskey stated small 
businesses seemed to have helped some neighborhoods in surrounding areas 
and the property values had increased. 

Mr. Roskey stated he is in favor of businesses in the area. 

Ms. Patty Branson, 1101 N. 3rd Street, asked the Commission how they would 
feel if the property next door to them were sold and became some type of 
business.  Ms. Branson lives just outside the subject property but is concerned 
about the possibility of fighting for her own neighborhood in the future. Ms. 
Branson asked the Commission to consider keeping this as a residential area. 

Mr. Tim Norton, 1410 N. 7th Street, stated he moved to Temple to live in a 
residential neighborhood.  Mr. Norton stated the “type of zoning currently in place 
is great strategy” if the area is contemplated for “revitalization” but that 
neighborhood “does not need to be revitalized with businesses--it needs to be 
kept with families.” 

Mr. Norton stated he wanted people to move into Temple but to “live” in his 
neighborhood—not to “shop.”  Mr. Norton stated the area needed to remain 
single family. 

Chair Pope closed the public hearing since there were no more speakers. 

Two motions were made on this Item: 

Commissioner Barton made a motion to exclude 504 W. Calhoun and 402, 410, 
412, 414 and 416 N. 5th Street from the rezoned area to be considered and 
Commissioner Hurd made a second. 

Motion passed:  (7:0) 
Commissioners Dusek and Martin were absent. 



Commissioner Luck made the motion to approve the zone change from Central 
Area (CA) and Multi-Family Two (MF2) to Single Family One (SF1) and 
Commissioner Talley made a second. 

Motion passed:  (7:0) 
Commissioners Dusek and Martin were absent. 



 1

 
 
 
 ORDINANCE NO. _______________ 

 
[PLANNING NO. Z-FY-09-16] 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, APPROVING A ZONING CHANGE FROM THE CENTRAL 
AREA DISTRICT (CA) AND THE MULTIPLE FAMILY TWO DISTRICT 
(MF2) TO THE SINGLE FAMILY ONE DISTRICT (SF1) FOR ALL OF 
BLOCKS 1 AND 26, MOORE’S FIRST ADDITION; ALL OF BLOCKS 4, 7, 
8, 9, & 10, AND BLOCK 3, LOTS 2-4, L.R. TAYLOR ADDITION; AND 
OUTBLOCKS 263-2A, 2B, 2C, 2D, AND 23, TEMPLE ORIGINAL; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 
  
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS,   

THAT: 
 
Part 1: The City Council approves a zoning change from the Central Area District 

(CA) and the Multiple Family Two District (MF2) to the Single Family One District (SF1) 
for all of Blocks 1 and 26, Moore’s First Addition; all of Blocks 4, 7, 8, 9 & 10, and Block 3, 
Lots 2-4, L.R. Taylor Addition; and Outblocks 263-2A, 2B, 2C, 2D, and 23, Temple 
Original, more fully described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part hereof for all 
purposes. 
 

Part 2: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 
changes to the City Zoning Map accordingly. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid by the 
final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not 
affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this 
ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City Council without the 
incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 4: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 
 

Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 



 2

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 6th day of 

August, 2009. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 20th day of August, 2009. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       __________________________________ 

WILLIAM A. JONES, III, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Clydette Entzminger     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary     City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
08/06/09 
Item #8 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Lonzo Wallace, Fire Chief 
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  FIRST READING — PUBLIC HEARING - Consider adopting an ordinance 
amending Chapter 12, “Fire Prevention and Protection,” of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Temple, Texas, by adopting the 2006 International Fire Code. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Conduct public hearing and adopt ordinance as presented in item 
description, on first reading, and schedule second reading and final adoption for August 20, 2009. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The City is currently operating under the 1997 Standard Fire Prevention Code; 
this ordinance would update the City of Temple’s ordinance to the 2006 International Fire Code.  The 
City has previously adopted the International Building and International Mechanical Codes, and by 
adopting the International Fire Code, the City will have a series of codes with similar terminology and 
the ability to cross-reference each other. 
 
Meetings were held with stakeholders such as Temple Area Builders Association and local 
developers as well as the following departments: engineering, planning and development, legal and 
the fire department.  The fire department was able to implement standards developed through these 
meetings, allowing a great deal of feedback from those citizens and staff members who would be 
most affected by the change in the code. 
 
Though there have been several significant changes, many if not all of them are already been 
implemented and enforced through the adopted 2006 International Building Code. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Ordinance  



 
1 

 

 
 
 ORDINANCE NO. ______________________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AMENDING CHAPTER 12, “FIRE PREVENTION AND 
PROTECTION," OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, BY ADOPTING THE 2006 INTERNATIONAL FIRE 
CODE; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN 
OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1:  Chapter 12, "Fire Prevention and Protection," of the Code of Ordinances of 
the City of Temple, Texas, is amended to read as follows: 

 
 Chapter 12 
 FIRE PREVENTION AND PROTECTION 
 
 ARTICLE I. IN GENERAL 
 
Sec. 12-1. Appointment qualifications, general powers, and duties of the fire chief.  
 

(a) The fire chief of the fire & rescue department shall be appointed by the city 
manager, with approval of the city council. The fire chief shall be skilled in the management 
of the department and in the conduct thereof, and in the fighting and control of fires and 
conflagrations, and shall devote his entire time to the services of the department under such 
rules and regulations as may be laid down by the city manager and/or city council from time 
to time. 
 

(b) The fire chief, under the direction of the city manager, shall have control of all fire 
stations and apparatus in the city, shall direct the department and preside over same in its 
efforts to extinguish all fires and conflagrations, and shall at all times be ready with his 
department for all the services which are usually expected of an efficient department. 
 

(c) Wherever fire chief appears in this chapter, it shall mean the fire chief or his 
designee.  
 
Sec. 12-2. Appointment qualifications, general powers, and duties of the fire code 
official. 
 

(a) The fire prevention division is hereby created. Such division shall be in the fire & 
rescue department with the fire code official being a member of that division and reporting 
directly to the fire chief. 



 
2 

 

 
(b) The fire code official shall be appointed by the fire chief. The fire code official 

shall be skilled in investigations, inspections, management and shall devote his time to 
educating the public in fire safety while enforcing federal, state, and local laws as they 
pertain to fire prevention. The fire code official must be a licensed peace officer, in 
accordance with Article 2.12 of the Texas Code of Criminal Procedure, unless otherwise 
approved by the fire chief.   
 

(c) Wherever fire code official appears in this chapter, it shall mean the fire code 
official or his designee.  
 

(d) When, in the opinion of the fire code official, further investigation of a fire is 
necessary, he shall take or cause to be taken the testimony on oath of all persons supposed to 
be cognizant of any facts or to have means of knowledge in relation to the matter under 
investigation, and shall cause the same to be reduced to writing.  
 

(e) The fire code official shall have the power to summons witness before him to 
testify in relation to any matter which is, by the provisions of this chapter, a subject of 
inquiry and investigation, and may require the production of any book, paper, document, or 
information deemed pertinent thereto. The fire code official is hereby authorized and 
empowered to administer oaths and affirmation to any persons appearing as witnesses before 
him.  
 

(f) All investigations held by or under the direction of the fire code official may, in his 
discretion, be private, and persons other than those required to be present may be excluded 
from the place where such investigation is held, and witnesses may be kept separate and apart 
from each other and not allowed to communicate with each other until they have been 
examined.  
 

(g) Any witness who refuses to be sworn, or who refuses to appear to testify, or who 
disobeys any lawful order of the fire code official, or who fails or refuses to produce any 
book, paper, document or information touching any matter under examinations, or who 
commits any contemptuous conduct during an investigation or inquiry, after being summoned 
to give testimony in relation to any matter under investigation as provided in this article, may 
be charged with a misdemeanor, and it shall be the duty of the fire code official to cause all 
such offenders to be prosecuted.  
 

(h) When the fire code official determines that the condition of any premises creates a 
serious fire hazard dangerous to human life, he may order the utility company or companies 
to disconnect the utility service until the hazardous condition is removed. In cases of 
emergency or in situations where a utility company does not respond to or comply with the 
order of the fire code official shall have the authority to immediately disconnect or cause the 
disconnection of the utility service. Any person whose property is affected by the act or order 
of the fire code official shall have the right of direct appeal to the city manager.   
 
Sec. 12-3. Definitions.  
 



 
3 

 

In this chapter:  
 

Fire Lane shall mean an off-street area that is accessible to the public and is to remain 
free and clear of parked and standing vehicles in order to provide access to commercial 
buildings for emergency response purposes. This term includes specifically marked areas in 
public parking lots.  
 

Private Fire Apparatus Access Road shall mean a road that extends from the property 
line of a private property to within 150 feet of all points on a commercial building located on 
that property, to include private streets and access roadways.  
 

The route that a fire hose would be laid shall mean the routing of fire hose from either 
a public or approved on-site fire hydrant to the fire apparatus along the length of the public 
roadway and/or approved private fire lanes.  
 

Article II. Adoption of Fire Prevention Code 
 
Sec. 12-4. Adoption of fire prevention code.  
 
There is hereby adopted for the purpose of prescribing regulations governing conditions 
hazardous to life and property from fire and explosion, that certain code known as the 
International Fire Code 2006, International Code Council, as well as Appendices B, D, E, F, 
and G, as it now exists and as it may be revised from time to time, and the whole thereof, 
save and except:  
 

(a) Exclusions as noted in Article III of this chapter; 
 

(b) Revisions as noted in Article IV of this chapter; 
 

(c) Additions as noted in Article V of this chapter; and  
 

(d) Such portions as are hereinafter modified and amended, of which code not less 
than three (3) copies have been and now are filed in the office of the building official and the 
same are hereby adopted and incorporated as fully as if set out at length herein, and from the 
date of which this article shall take effect, the provisions thereof shall be controlling within 
the city limits. 
 
 

Article III. Exclusions of International Fire Code 2006 
 
The following provisions of the International Fire Code 2006 are excluded:  
 

(a) Exclude Chapter 3, “General Precautions Against Fire,” Section 307, “Open 
Burning and Recreation Fires,” but see Section 12-14, “Controlled Burning,” herein. 
 

(b) Exclude Chapter 5, “Fire Service Features,” Section 505, “Premises 
Identification,” Subsection 505.1, “Address Numbers,” but see Chapter 32, “Streets and 



 
4 

 

Sidewalks,” Section 32-9, “Residence and Building Address Numbering,” from the city code.  
 

(c) Exclude Chapter 33, “Explosives and Fireworks,” in its entirety, but see Section 
12-13, “Fireworks,” herein.   
 

(d) Exclude Chapter 5, “Fire Service Features,” Section 508, “Fire Protection Water 
Supplies,” Subsection 508.5, “Fire Hydrant Systems,” but see Section 12-16, “Fire 
Hydrants,” herein. 
 

(e) Exclude Chapter 1, “Administration,” Section 105, “Permits,” Subsection 105.6, 
“Required operational permits,” Part 105.6.35, “Private Fire Hydrant Exception,” but see 
Section 12-16, “Fire Hydrants,” herein. 
 

(f) Exclude Chapter 3, “General Precautions Against Fire,” Section 308, “Open 
Flames,” Subsection 308.3, “Open Flames,” Part 308.3.1, “Open-flame Cooking Devices 
Exception,” but see Section 12-14 b, “Recreational Fires and Outside Fires for Domestic 
Purposes,” herein. 
 

(g) Exclude Chapter 9, “Fire Protection Systems,” Section 906, “Portable Fire 
Extinguishers,” Subsection 906.1, “Where Required Exception,” but see Section 12-9, Table 
906.3 (1), “Fire Extinguishers for Fire Hazards,” and Section 12-10, Table 906.3 (2), 
“Flammable or Combustible Liquids with Depths of less than or equal to 0.25-inch,” herein. 
 

Article IV. Revisions of International Fire Code 2006 
 
Sec. 12-5. Adjustment to Chapter 1, “Administration.” 

 
(a) Adjustment to Chapter 1, “Administration,” Section 101, “General,” Subsection 

101.1, “Title,” amended to read as follows: 
 

(1) In the title insert “The City of Temple.” 
 

(2) Replace all references to “the ICC Electrical Code” with “the currently 
adopted edition of the City of Temple Electrical Code.” 

 
(b) Adjustment Chapter 1, “Administration,” Section 105, “Permits,” Subsection 

105.1, “General,” Part 105.1.1, “Permits Required,” amended to read as follows: 
 

Permits required by this code shall be obtained from the construction safety division 
of the city. Permit fees, if any, shall be paid prior to issuance of the permit. Issued 
permits shall be kept on the premises designated therein at all times and shall be 
readily available for inspection by the fire code official.  

 
(c) Adjustment to Chapter ,1 “Administration,” Section 108, “Board of Appeals,” 

Subsection 108.1, “Board of Appeals Established,” amended to read as follows: 
 

Refer to Chapter 7, “Buildings,” of the City of Temple Code of Ordinances. 



 
5 

 

 
Sec. 12-6. Adjustment to Chapter 8, “Interior Finish, Decorative Materials and 
Furnishings,” Section 806, “Decorative Vegetation in New and Existing Buildings,” 
subsection 806.1, “Natural Cut Trees,” amend to read as follows:  
 

Natural cut trees shall be prohibited in all commercial occupancies as well as Group R 
occupancies, excluding one and two family dwellings, apartments, and townhomes.  

 
Sec. 12-7. Replace Table 906.3(1), “Fire Extinguishers for Class A Fire Hazards,” 
with the following table:  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Fire Extinguisher Requirement Based on Travel Distance 
 

TYPE OF 
HAZARD 

BASIC MINIMUM 
EXTINGUISHER 
RATING 

MAXIMUM TRAVEL 
DISTANCE TO 
EXTINGUISHERS 
(FEET) 

Light (Low) 5 lb, ABC 75 feet 

Ordinary 
(Moderate) 5 lb, ABC 75 feet 

Extra (High) 5 lb, ABC 75 feet 

Fire Extinguisher Requirement Based on Square Footage 
 

 LIGHT (LOW) 
HAZARD 
OCCUPANCY 

ORDINARY(Moderate) 
HAZARD OCCUPANCY 

EXTRA (High) 
HAZARD 
OCCUPANCY 

Minimum 
Rated Single 
Extinguisher 

5 lb. ABC 5 lb. ABC 5 lb. ABC 

Maximum 
Floor Area Per  
Unit  

3,000  
square feet 

1,500 
square feet 

1,000  
square feet 

Maximum  
Travel Distance 
to Extinguisher 

75 feet 75 feet 75 feet 



 
6 

 

Sec. 12-8. Replace Table 906.3(2), “Flammable or Combustible Liquids with Depths 
of Less than or Equal to 0.25-inch,” with the following table:  
 
Sec. 12-9. Adjustment to Chapter 14, “Fire Safety During Construction and 
Demolition,” Section 1404, “Precautions Against Fire,” Subsection 1404.5, “Fire 
Watch,” amend to read as follows:  

 
When required, as determined by the fire code official, certified firefighter(s) from the 
fire & rescue department shall be provided as an on-site fire watch for building 
construction or demolition.  

 
Sec. 12-10. Adjustment to Chapter 33, “Explosives and Fireworks,” Section 3307 
“Blasting,” Subsection 3307.1, “General,” amend to read as follows:  
 

Blasting operations shall be conducted only by approved, competent operators 
familiar with the required safety precautions and the hazards involved and in 
accordance with the provisions of NFPA 495 and Section 12-23, “Extraction 
Operations Regulations.”  

 
Sec. 12-11. Adjustment to Chapter 38, “Liquefied Petroleum Gases,” Section 3801, 
“General,” 3801.1 “Scope,” amend to read as follows:  
 

Storage, handling, and transportation of liquefied petroleum gas (LP-gas) and the 
installation of LP-gas equipment pertinent to systems for such use shall comply with 
this chapter, the Texas Railroad Commission Rules governing LP-gas and NFPA 58. 
Properties of LP-gases shall be determined in accordance with Appendix B of NFPA 
58. 

 
Sec. 12-12. Adjustment to Appendix D, “Fire Apparatus Access Roads.” 
 

(a) Section D103, “Minimum Specifications,” amended as follows: 
 

(1) Exclude Table D103.4, “Requirements for Dead-end Fire Apparatus Roads.” 
 

(2) Subsection D103.4, “Dead-ends,” amend to read as follows:  
 

Public Dead-end fire apparatus access roads in excess of 150 feet (45,720 
mm) in length shall be designed in accordance with the City of Temple 
Design and Development Standards Manual.  

 
(3) Subsection D103.5, “Fire apparatus road gates,” amend to read as follows:  

 
5. Electric gates shall be equipped with a lock box of a type approved 

by the fire & rescue department and contain a manual release. The 
release will be used by fire & rescue personnel for emergency 
access in the event of a power failure. Any manual release devices 
used for emergency access to a property shall be approved by the 



 
7 

 

fire code official.  
 

(4) Subsection D103.6, “Signs,” amend to read as follows:  
 

Where required by the fire code official, private fire apparatus access 
roads shall be marked with a permanent sign reading, “NO 
PARKING—FIRE APPARATUS ROAD,” as depicted in Figure 
D103.6. Signs shall have a minimum dimension of 18 inches (305 mm) 
wide by 24 inches (457 mm) high and have red letters on a white 
reflective background. Signs shall be posted on one or both sides of the 
private fire apparatus road, as required by Section D103.6.1 or 
D103.6.2.  

 
(b) Section D106, “Multiple-Family Residential Developments,” amend to read as 

follows: 
 

(1) D106.1, “Projects having 1-75 dwelling units.” Multiple-family residential 
projects having 1-75 dwelling units shall have residential subdivision 
Entrance/Access roads designated as required by the city’s Design & 
Development Standards Manual.  

 
(2) D106.2, “Projects having 76-150 dwelling units.” Multiple-family residential 

projects having 76-150 dwelling units shall have residential subdivision 
Entrance/Access roads designated as required by the City’s Design & 
Development Standards Manual. The exception to this sub-section is 
excluded. See Article II of this chapter.  

 
(3) D106.3, “Projects having 151-300 dwelling units.” Multiple-family 

residential projects having more than 151-300 dwelling units shall have 
residential subdivision Entrance/Access roads designated as required by the 
City’s Design & Development Standards Manual.  

 
(4) D106.4, “Projects having 301 or more dwelling units.”  Multiple-family 

residential projects having 301 or more dwelling units shall have residential 
subdivision Entrance/Access roads designated as required by the City of 
Temple Design & Development Standards Manual.  

 
 

(c) Section D107, “One- or Two- Family Dwelling Residential Developments,” amend 
to read as follows:  
 

(1) D107.1, “Developments having 1-75 dwelling units.”  One- or Two-Family 
residential developments having 1-75 dwelling units shall have residential 
subdivision Entrance/Access roads designated as required by the city’s 
Design & Development Standards Manual.  

 
(2) D107.2, “Developments having 76-150 dwelling units.” One- or Two-



 
8 

 

Family residential having 76-150 dwelling units shall have residential 
subdivision Entrance/Access roads designated as required by the City’s 
Design & Development Standards Manual. The exception to this sub-section 
is excluded. See Article II of this chapter.  

 
(3) D107.3, “Developments having 151-300 dwelling units.” One- or Two-

Family residential having more than 151-300 dwelling units shall have 
residential subdivision Entrance/Access roads designated as required by the 
City’s Design & Development Standards Manual.  

 
(4) D107.4, “Developments having 301 or more dwelling units.”  One- or Two-

Family residential having 301 or more dwelling units shall have residential 
subdivision Entrance/Access roads designated as required by the City of 
Temple Design & Development Standards Manual.  

 
Article V. Additional Provisions Related to Fire Prevention and Protection 

 
Sec. 12-13. Fireworks. 
 

(a) Definitions. 
 

Distributor means a person who: 
a. imports fireworks into this state; or  
b. sells fireworks to:  

1. a jobber, retailer, or other distributor for resale; or 
2. a holder of a single public display permit, a multiple public display permit, 

or another fireworks permit. 
  

Fireworks means a composition or device:  
a. designed for entertainment to produce a visible or audible effect by 

combustion, explosion, deflagration, or detonation; and 
b. defined by 49 C.F.R. Section 173.56(j)(1996).  

 
Fireworks 1.3G means a large fireworks device:  

a. primarily designed to produce visible or audible effects by combustion, 
deflagration, or detonation; and  

b. classified as a 1.3G explosive by the department in 49 C.F.R. Part 173 (1996).  
 

Fireworks 1.4G means a small fireworks device:  
a. primarily designed to produce visible or audible effects by combustion, 

deflagration, or detonation;  
b. that complies with the construction, labeling, and chemical composition 

requirements of the United States Consumer Product Safety Commission in 16 
C.F.R. Part 1507 (1996), or the most recently adopted version of that rule; and  

c. that is classified by the department in 49 C.F.R. Part 173 (1996).  
 

Illegal fireworks means a fireworks device possessed, sold, manufactured, discharged, 



 
9 

 

or transported in violation of this chapter.  
 

Jobber means a person who purchases fireworks only for resale to retailers.  
 

Manufacturer means a person, firm, corporation, or association who makes fireworks.  
 

Person means an individual or entity, including an owner, manager, officer, employee, 
or occupant.  
 

Public display means the igniting of Fireworks 1.3G for public or private amusement.  
 

Pyrotechnic operator means an individual who, by experience, training, and 
examination, has demonstrated the necessary skill and ability for safely assembling, 
discharging, and supervising public displays of Fireworks 1.3G or Fireworks 1.4G.  
 

Pyrotechnic special effects operator means an individual who, by experience, training, 
and examination, has demonstrated the necessary skill and ability for safely assembling, 
discharging, and supervising proximate displays of Fireworks 1.3G or Fireworks 1.4G.  
 

Retailer means a person who purchases fireworks for resale only to the general public.  
 

(b) Exemptions.  
 

This section does not apply to:  
 

(1) a toy pistol, toy cane, toy gun, or other device that uses paper or plastic caps 
in sheets, strips, rolls, or individual caps that contain not more than an 
average of 25 hundredths of a grain of explosive composition per cap and 
that is packed and shipped under 49 C.F.R. Part 173 (1996); 

 
(2) a model rocket or model rocket motor designed, sold, and used to propel 

recoverable aero models; 
 
(3) the sale or use of, in emergency situations, pyrotechnic signaling devices or 

distress signals for marine, aviation, or highway use; 
 
(4) the use of a fusee or a railway torpedo by a railroad; 
 
(5) the sale of blank cartridges for:  

i. use in a radio, television, film or theater production; 
ii. a signal or ceremonial purpose in an athletic event; or 

iii. an industrial purpose; or 
 

(6) the use of a pyrotechnic device by a military organization.  
 

(c) General prohibition against possession, sale, manufacture, discharge, or 
transportation.  Except as otherwise specifically provided in this section, it shall be unlawful 



 
10 

 

for any person to possess, sell, manufacture, discharge, transport, or otherwise assemble, 
store, receive, keep, offer or have in his possession with intent to posses, sell, manufacture, 
transport, discharge, cause to be discharged, ignite, detonate, fire or otherwise set in action 
any fireworks of any description.  

 
(d) Permitted transportation. It shall be lawful for any distributor, jobber, 

manufacturer, pyrotechnic operator, pyrotechnic special effects operator, or retailer to 
transport fireworks in accordance with the interstate commerce commission regulations 
regarding the transportation of explosives and other dangerous articles by motor, rail, and 
water.  
 

(e) Illegal fireworks as a nuisance; seizure and destruction, etc.  The presence of any 
fireworks within the jurisdiction of the city in violation of this section is hereby declared to 
be a common and public nuisance. The fire code official is directed and required to seize and 
cause to be safely destroyed any fireworks found in violation of this article. Any member of 
the fire prevention division of the fire & rescue department or any police officer of the city or 
any other duly constituted peace officer is empowered to stop the transportation of and detain 
any fireworks found being transported illegally or to close any building where any fireworks 
are found stored illegally until the fire code official can be notified in order that such 
fireworks may be seized and destroyed in accordance with the terms of this section. 
Notwithstanding any penal provision of this article, the city attorney is authorized to file suit 
on behalf of the city or the fire code official, or both, for such injunctive relief as may be 
necessary to prevent unlawful storage, transportation, keeping or use of fireworks within the 
jurisdiction of the city and to aid the fire code official in the discharge of his duties and to 
particularly prevent any person from interfering with the seizure and destruction of such 
fireworks, but it shall not be necessary to obtain any such injunctive relief as a prerequisite to 
such seizure and destruction.  

 
(f) Section provisions to apply within five thousand feet of the city limits. This section 

shall also be applicable and in force within the area immediately adjacent and contiguous to 
the city limits and extending for a distance outside the city limits for a total of five thousand 
(5,000) feet, and it shall be unlawful to do or perform any act in violation of this Article 
within such area of five thousand (5,000) feet outside the city limits; provided that this 
Article shall not apply within any portion of such five thousand (5,000) foot area which is 
contained within the city limits or extraterritorial jurisdiction of any city.  
 

(g) Right of entry to enforce section. The fire code official is hereby authorized to 
enter any building where the unlawful presence of fireworks is suspected in order to inspect 
the same for the presence of such fireworks; but such authority does not include the right to 
enter a private dwelling or apartment.  
 

(h) Public displays; when permitted.  A public display of fireworks shall be permitted 
when made in compliance of the terms and conditions of this article.  
 

(i) Application for permit.  Any adult person or any firm, co-partnership, corporation 
or association planning to make a public display of fireworks shall first make written 
application for a permit to the fire code official at least seventy-two (72) hours in advance of 



 
11 

 

the date of the proposed display. No city permit shall be issued until a permit for said 
purposes has been issued by the State of Texas.  
 

(j) Issuance or denial and term of permit; permit non-transferable.  It shall be the 
duty of the fire code official to make an investigation as to whether the display as proposed 
by the applicant for a permit under this section shall be of such a character that it may be 
hazardous to property or dangerous to any person, and he shall, in the exercise of reasonable 
discretion, grant or deny the application, subject to the conditions prescribed in this section. 
In the event the application is approved, a permit shall be issued for the public display by the 
fire code official. The fire code official shall determine what fire protection safety measures 
will be required before, during and after the display and it is the responsibility of the 
permittee to make sure the fire protection measures are enforced.   Such permit shall be valid 
for a period of time designated on the permit but can be extended by the fire code official. 
The permit is non-transferable and shall only be good for one display. In the event the permit 
is denied by the fire code official, he shall notify the applicant of the denial, in writing.  

 
(k) Insurance or bond required. The applicant for a display permit under this section 

shall, at the time of making application, furnish proof that he carries compensation insurance 
for his employees, as provided by the laws of this state, and he shall file with the fire code 
official a certificate of insurance evidencing the carrying of public liability insurance in an 
amount not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) issued by an insurance carrier 
authorized to transact business in the state, for the benefit of the person named therein as 
assured, as evidence of ability to respond to damages in at least the amount of one million 
dollars ($1,000,000), such policy to be approved by the city. In lieu of insurance, the 
applicant may file with the fire code official, a bond in the amount of one million dollars 
($1,000,000) issued by an authorized surety company approved by the city, conditioned upon 
the applicant’s payment of all damages to persons or property which shall or may result from 
or be caused by such public display of fireworks, or any negligence on the part of the 
applicant or his agents, servants, employees, or subcontractors in the presentation of the 
public display. The insurance policy shall name the city as an additional insured, and the 
bond shall cover the city.  

 
(l) Only aerial displays permitted.  Any fireworks display authorized under this article 

shall be limited to an aerial display.  
 

(m) Storage of material prohibited in the city.  The material to be used for a public 
display authorized by this article shall not be stored within the city limits, but shall be 
brought in on the date of the public display and then shall be taken immediately to the place 
of display for further handling and storage; except that such materials may be stored within 
the city limits in a secured storage area designated by the fire code official.  
 

(n) Hazardous conditions prohibited.  Any person overseeing a display of fireworks 
under this article shall be a competent, adult person, an experienced pyrotechnic operator and 
approved by the fire code official. No person shall handle fireworks at a public display unless 
such person has been approved by to do so by the fire code official. The names of all 
experienced pyrotechnic operators shall be designated on the permit issued for the public 
display.  



 
12 

 

 
(o) Firefighter to be present.  For each public display of fireworks under this section, 

not less than two (2) firefighters of the city shall be in attendance during the display. The 
expense of such firefighters at the display shall be borne by the applicant for the permit.  
 
 
Sec. 12-14. Controlled Burning 
 

(a) Burning of debris and other inflammable materials, generally.  
 

(1) Permit. It shall be unlawful for any person to burn trash, brush, tree limbs, 
grass, trees, leaves, paper, boards, planks, lumber, or any other character of 
debris or inflammable materials whatsoever in the city, except in an 
incinerator or container which has been approved, in writing, by the fire 
code official. An exception shall be considered by the fire code official on an 
individual basis when and after the Texas Commission on Environmental 
Quality (TCEQ) has issued, in writing, a permit to so burn debris and other 
inflammable materials.  

 
i. A copy of the TCEQ letter of determination or permission to conduct 

a controlled burning must be presented to the fire code official or his 
designee.  

 
ii. The fire code official shall inspect the location of a controlled burn 

and shall determine if the burn can be safely conducted before any 
actual burning occurs.  

 
iii. The fire code official may require the following, depending on 

conditions found during the controlled burn site inspection:  
 

a. A specified number of individuals be present with fire 
extinguishing devices and appliances; 

b. Fire breaks to be cut around the area to be burned; 
c. A trench to be dug and any burning be conducted in the trench; 

or 
d. Any other requirements that the fire code official may deem 

necessary to safely conduct the controlled burn.  
 

(2) A controlled burn that the TCEQ has authorized and that has been approved 
by the fire code official must meet criteria as outlined in the remainder of 
this section.  

 
(3) Burning shall be commenced when the wind will carry smoke and other 

pollutants away from the city or any residential, recreational, commercial, or 
industrial area, navigable water, public road, or landing strip which may be 
affected by the smoke. Burning shall not be conducted when a shift in wind 
direction is predicted which could produce adverse effects to persons, 



 
13 

 

animals, or property during the burning period. If at any time the burning 
causes or may tend to cause smoke to blow onto or across a road or highway, 
it is the responsibility of the person initiating the burn to post a flag person 
on affected roads in accordance with the requirements of the Department of 
Public Safety.  

 
(4) Burning must be conducted downwind of, or at least three hundred (300) 

feet from any structure located on adjacent properties unless prior written 
approval is obtained from the adjacent occupant with possessorory control.  

 
(5) Burning shall be conducted in compliance with the following meteorological 

and timing considerations:  
 

i. The initiation of burning shall commence no earlier than one hour 
after sunrise. Burning shall be completed on the same day not later 
than one hour before sunset, and shall be attended by a responsible 
party at all times during the active burn phase when the fire is 
progressing. In cases where residual fires and/or smoldering objects 
continue to emit smoke after this time, such areas shall be 
extinguished if the smoke from these areas has the potential to create 
a nuisance or traffic hazard conditions. In no case shall the extent of 
the burn area be allowed to increase after this time.  

 
ii. Burning shall not be commenced when surface wind speed is 

predicted to be less than six miles per hour (mph) (five knots) or 
greater than 23 mph (20 knots) during the burn period. This 
information can be obtained by contacting the Draughon-Miller 
Central Texas Regional Airport or the National Weather Service.  

 
(6) Per TCEQ Rules & Regulations, heavy oils, asphaltic materials, items 

containing natural or synthetic rubber, or any material which may produce 
an unreasonable amount of smoke must not be burned.  

 
(7) An incinerator or container used for burning of any material mentioned in 

this section (12-20) shall be located so that smoke will not become a 
nuisance to occupants of surrounding building and such incinerator or 
container shall not create a hazard to surrounding property. All incinerators 
must meet any regulation set forth by the TCEQ.  

 
(8) Any and all burning of debris and other inflammable materials will be 

extinguished immediately if determined by the fire code official to be unsafe 
or constituting a hazard to the environment or interferes with the reasonable 
use of any properties.  

 
(9) The fire code official is authorized to order the extinguishment by the permit 

holder, another person responsible or the fire department of an open burning 
that creates or adds to a hazardous or objectionable situation.  



 
14 

 

 
(b) Recreational Fires and Outside Fires for Domestic Purposes. 
 

(1) Open burning in approved containers shall be allowed without a permit at 
single-family homes, duplexes, and town homes, subject to the regulations 
contained herein.  

 
(2) Fires shall be limited to a maximum 3 feet diameter and 2 feet in height, 

must be contained in a non-combustible chimenea, barbeque pit, outdoor 
fireplace, fire pit, or other method approved by the fire code official.  

 
(3) All openings in the container or fire pit must be covered with wire mesh or 

other screening materials that will prevent the passage of sparks and ember.  
 

(4) Fires must be kept at least 10 feet from any structure or combustible exterior 
wall. 

 
(5) Fires must be constantly attended.  

 
(6) No such fire or container used for an open burning may be used on any 

porch, deck, balcony, or other portion of a building; within any room space; 
or under any building overhang.  

 
(7) The burning of yard waste, leaves, brush, vines, evergreen needles, branches 

smaller than 3 inches in diameter, untreated lumber, garbage, paper products, 
or anything other than firewood as set forth herein is prohibited.  

 
(8) The fire code official, police officer, or code enforcement officer may order 

any open fire, or use of a chimenea, outdoor fireplace, or fire pit which 
creates a nuisance to be extinguished.  

 
(9) All chimineas must be extinguished by 1:00 a.m.  

 
(c) Burning of garbage, petroleum products and motor vehicles prohibited. The 

burning of garbage in any form, including petroleum products, automobiles, other motor 
vehicles or any part thereof for wrecking or salvage purposes in or on any lot or other 
premises within the city limits is hereby prohibited.  

 
(d) Fire prohibited in streets, alleys and on or in public property. It shall be unlawful 

for any person to light or have lighted any fire in or on any street, alley, thoroughfare, or 
public property, except in designated areas or where authorized by the fire official. 
 
Sec. 12-15. Private Fire Apparatus Access Road and Fire Lanes.  
 

(a) Maintenance. 
 

(1) A property owner shall at all times maintain and keep in good repair all 



 
15 

 

private apparatus access roads and fire lanes on the premises.  
 

(2) The owner shall maintain all signs and/or markings in good condition and 
legible at all times.  

 
(b) Abandonment of Private Fire Apparatus Access Roads and Fire Lanes. No owner 

or person in charge of any premises served by a private fire apparatus access road shall 
abandon or close any such fire apparatus access road without complying with the following 
procedure:  

 
(1) A request to the fire code official shall be made in writing by the owner 

stating the reason for abandonment of the private fire apparatus access road;  
(2) The fire code official shall determine if said property is no longer subject to 

the requirements of this code;  
(3) The fire code official shall either approve or deny the request for 

abandonment and notify the owner, in writing, within 10 days of receiving 
the request; and   

(4) No private fire apparatus access road may be abandoned until the fire code 
official has approved the abandonment, in writing.  

 
(c) Authority to Determine Location.  The locations of fire lanes and private apparatus 

access roads shall be determined by the fire code official in conformity with the provisions of 
this article.  

 
(d) Location of Private Fire Apparatus Access Roads and Fire Lanes.  No building, 

other than single-family or two-family dwellings, shall be constructed so that any part of the 
perimeter of the building is greater than one hundred and fifty (150) feet from a public way 
or public place unless the owner or property manager constructs and maintains a private 
apparatus access road or fire lane having a minimum width of twenty (20) feet and a 
minimum overhead clearance throughout of no less than thirteen (13) feet six (6) inches and 
terminating within one hundred and fifty (150) feet from the furthermost point of said 
building. The same being reflected on the first plat of the property.  
 

(e) Restrictions. 
 

(1) Private apparatus access road or fire lanes shall not be used as loading zones.  
 
(2) There shall be no parking in any private apparatus access road or fire lane at 

any time.  
 

(f) Posting of Signage and Markings for Fire Lanes and Fire Hydrants.  
 

(1) All required fire lanes shall be conspicuously marked and shall have signage 
posted that shall read “Fire Lane—No Parking,” and all required fire 
hydrants on private property shall be marked “Fire Hydrant—Do Not 
Obstruct.”  

(2) Signage shall be rectangular signs with red striping;  



 
16 

 

i. Rectangular signs shall be a minimum of 18” width x 24” height. 
They will have a white background with red lettering and be made of 
reflective material.  

ii. Striping will consist of a 5” wide red strip with 4” high white letters.  
(3) Required fire lane signage shall be placed no less than thirty (30) feet and no 

greater than forty (40) feet apart.  
(4) Required fire hydrant markings shall be placed on both sides of a hydrant 

and at a distance of fifteen (15) feet from the hydrant.  
 

(g) Private Dead-end Fire Apparatus Access Roads.   Private dead-end fire apparatus 
access roads in excess of 150 feet (45,720mm) in length shall be provided with a 120 foot 
hammerhead, 60 foot “Y,” or 96 foot diameter cul-de-sac in accordance with figure D103.1 
of the 2006 International Fire Code.  
 
Sec. 12-16. Fire Hydrants 
 

(a) Authority to determine location.  The fire chief shall determine the location of fire 
hydrants in conformity with the provisions of this section.  

 
(b) Fire hydrants; location. 

 
(1) As residential zoned property is developed, fire hydrants shall be located at a 

maximum spacing of six hundred (600) feet as measured along the length of 
the roadway and no part of any structure shall be farther than five hundred 
(500) feet from the fire hydrant as measured by the route that a fire hose 
would be laid.  

 
(2) As non-residential zoned property is developed, fire hydrants shall be 

located a maximum spacing of three hundred (300) feet as measured along 
the length of the roadway and no part of any structure shall be further than 
five hundred (500) feet from the fire hydrant as measured by the route that a 
fire hose is laid.  

 
(c) Restrictions. 

  
(1) Type of fire hydrants. All required fire hydrants shall be of the national 

standard three-way breakaway type no less than five and one-fourth (5 ¼) 
inches in size and shall conform to the provisions of the latest American 
Water Works Association (AWWA) specifications C-502 and shall be 
placed upon approved water mains of no less than six (6) inches in size.  

 
(2) Gate valves shall be placed on all fire hydrant leads and within three feet of 

the point of connection to the water main.  
 

(3) Required fire hydrants shall be installed in such a manner that the breakaway 
point will be more than three (3) inches, and not greater than five (5) inches, 
above the ground surface.  



 
17 

 

 
(4) A spacing of no less than eighteen (18) inches shall be provided between the 

center of the barrel of the large steamer connection and the finished grade 
surface.  

 
(5) No fire hydrant located on a six-inch (6 inch) dead-end water main shall be 

located more than one thousand eight hundred 1,800 ft. from a six-inch (6 
inch) or greater main.  

 
(6) No six-inch looped water main shall exceed three thousand five hundred 

(3,500) feet in length.  
 

(7) Fire hydrants shall be installed on a water main that is separate from the 
domestic water supply, except when it is determined by the fire code official 
that the required maximum one (1) hour demand plus the needed minimum 
fire flow of one thousand (1,000) gallons per minute will be met by alternate 
installation.  

 
(8) Fire hydrants located on public property shall be located a minimum of two 

(2) feet and a maximum of four (4) feet behind the curb line, where a curb 
exists.  

 
(9) All fire hydrants placed on private property shall be adequately protected by 

either curb stops, concrete posts or other methods, as approved by the fire 
code official. Such stops or posts shall be maintained by the property owner 
or manager.  

 
(10) All fire hydrants shall be installed so that the steamer connection faces the 

fire lane or street.  
 

(11) Fire hydrants, when placed at intersections or access drives to parking lots, 
when practical, shall be placed so that no part of a fire truck connected to the 
hydrant will block the intersection or parking lot access.  

 
(12) Post, fences, vehicles, growth, trash, storage and other materials or objects 

shall not be placed or kept near fire hydrants, fire department inlet 
connections or fire protection system control valves in a manner that would 
prevent such equipment or fire hydrant from being immediately discernible. 
The fire department shall not be deterred or hindered from gaining 
immediate access to fire protection equipment or fire hydrants.  

 
(13) Fire hydrants located on private property shall be accessible to the fire 

department at all times and free of any type of obstruction that would hinder 
their use (e.g., vegetation). A 3-foot clear space shall be maintained around 
the circumference of fire hydrants.  

 
(14) The fire code official shall have the authority to approve a variance of up to 



 
18 

 

ten percent (10%) of the footage requirements found at Sec. 12-16, B, parts 
(1) and (2).  

 
(d) Maintenance. 
 

(1) All fire hydrants shall be inspected, flushed and painted at least once annually 
and such inspections, flushing and painting shall be the responsibility of fire & 
rescue. Fire hydrants shall be color coded as follows:  

 
i. Less than 500 gpm – Red Bonnet 
ii. 500-999 gpm – Yellow Bonnet 
iii. 1000-1499 gpm – Green Bonnet 
iv. Over 1500 gpm – Blue Bonnet 
 

(2) Any maintenance or repairs require to keep a fire hydrants in proper working 
order, other than the maintenance found at a subsection above, shall be the 
responsibility of the property owner or manager of the property on which the 
fire hydrant is located.  

 
(e) Use; opening and closing.  The fire chief shall prescribe the manner in which all 

fire hydrants shall be opened or closed. No person shall open or close any fire hydrant unless 
authorized to do so by the chief.  
 
 
Sec. 12-17. Extraction Operations Regulations  
 

(a) Purpose. 
 

(1) In order to promote the health, safety, and welfare of those who work or 
reside near extraction operations, and to protect air quality and the water 
resources of the city, the regulations in this section are applicable to 
extraction operations.  

 
(2) This section shall apply to all extraction operations conducted within the city 

or within 5000 feet of the city limits.  
 
(b) Definitions.  

 
In this section:  

 
Blasting shall mean the practice or occupation of extracting heavy masses of rock, or 
other materials imbedded in the ground, by means of explosives or blasting agents.  

 
Extraction operations shall mean the use of a lot or tract of land primarily for 
extraction of materials (including, but not limited to, limestone, rock, sand, gravel, or 
soil, but not oil or natural gas).  

 



 
19 

 

Extraction site shall mean the location of materials or rock removal or extraction 
operations as delineated by a site plan or a certificate of occupancy.  

 
Regulatory authority shall mean the city. 

 
(c) Blasting.  All blasting activity that falls within the scope of this section shall 

comply with the following provisions;  
 

(1) Permit required. 
  

i. An appropriate blasting or explosives permit must be acquired from 
the regulatory authority prior to any blasting activity or preparation 
for blasting activity at an extraction site. 

 
ii. A blasting or explosives permit will authorize blasting for the 

extraction of materials (e.g., rock or stone) only at the extraction site 
designated on the permit.  

 
iii. The extraction site operator, or designated representative, may apply 

for a blasting or explosives permit in accordance with the following 
procedures:  

 
a. The applicant shall submit a completed permit application 

form and fee, as required by the regulations contained in the 
2006 International Fire Code, as adopted and amended by 
the city. The permit fee shall be in an amount set by 
resolution of the city council.  

 
b. The fire code official shall have thirty (30) days in which to 

approve or deny a permit application.  
 

c. Any party aggrieved by the denial of a permit or inaction by 
the fire code official may appeal such decisions to the 
Building Board of Appeals, in writing. Upon receipt of an 
appeal notification, the Board shall take the actions required 
to review the appeal, in accordance with the 2006 
International Fire Code.  

 
d. The application shall contain the following information:  

 
1. Name of the operator(s) conducting the blasting;  
2. Identification of extraction site;  
3. Description of conditions, if any, which may cause 

possible adverse blasting effects;  
4. Normal extraction operations schedule; 
5. Type of explosives or blasting agents to be used; 
6. Type of stemming; 



 
20 

 

7. Name(s) of licensed blasters on the job; 
8. Copy of Mine Safety Health Administration (MSHA) 

Certificate of Training (Form 5000-23) for all 
personnel involved in the extraction operations.  

9. Copy of Insurance Certificate of Blasting Liability 
Coverage 

 
(2) Insurance required. 
  

i. Before a permit is issued, the applicant shall obtain and maintain 
general liability insurance having limits of not less than one million 
dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence for bodily injury and property 
damage combined with one million dollars ($1,000,000) or greater 
annual aggregate throughout the permitted period for the purpose of 
the payment of all damages to persons or property which arise, or are 
caused by, the conduct of any act or omission authorized by the 
permit. The general liability insurance shall name the city as an 
additional insured with a waiver of subrogation in favor of the city. 
The policy shall contain a provision requiring the insurance company 
to furnish the city with thirty (30) days advance written notification 
on any cancellation or non-renewal of the policy.  

 
ii. Evidence of compliance with this requirement shall be considered as 

having been met when the policy, a copy thereof, or a certificate of 
insurance has been filed with, and approved by, the fire code official. 
Such policy shall include an endorsement that the fire code official 
shall be notified at least thirty (30) days in advance in the event the 
policy or policies are canceled. The city may cancel a permit for any 
violation of this section.  

 
(3) Regulatory Compliance. All blasting operations located within an extraction 

site shall comply with the applicable provisions of the 2006 International 
Fire Code and with this section, as well as all applicable local, state, and 
federal regulations concerning industrial noise and dust levels and applicable 
drainage, water and air standards.  

 
(4) Annual permit renewal required.  

 
i. In addition to compliance with local, state, or federal regulations, the 

operator shall be required to comply with the provisions of this 
section by renewing a permit annually before the anniversary date of 
the permit.  

 
ii. Upon renewal, the extraction site operator shall:  

 
a. certify in writing that the blasting activities at the permitted 

extraction site are anticipated to remain materially unchanged 



 
21 

 

from the activities described on the permit application; or 
b. provide all relevant information relating to material changes at 

the permitted extraction site to the fire code official for review;  
c. pay the annual permit fee; and  
d. file a current certificate of insurance which complies with this 

section.  
 

iii. A blasting permit will remain in force and effect, provided that the 
blasting activities at the extraction site specified in the permit are 
anticipated to remain materially unchanged, the permittee has 
complied with the requirement of this section during the preceding 
permit year, and the annual renewal requirements have been met.  

 
(5) Hours of operation. The hours during which extraction operations may take 

place by blasting shall be at any time during the hours between 8:00 a.m. and 
5:00 p.m. Extraction by blasting shall be prohibited on Saturdays, Sundays, 
and legal holidays unless a variance is obtained from the fire code official 
based upon public safety concerns or extraordinary economic considerations. 
  

 
(6) Monitoring of Blasting.  

 
i. The extraction site operator shall monitor each blast to accumulate 

data with respect to seismographic and air blast effects of the blasting 
activity, as required by state and federal law. The extraction site 
operator shall conduct independent monitoring of blasting events, if 
directed, and to the extent and frequency reasonably required by the 
regulatory agency.  

 
ii. Information generated in the form of reports or other data from this 

monitoring shall be submitted to the fire code official within seventy-
two (72) hours of each blasting event.  

 
iii. Monitoring information shall include:  

 
a. actual date and time of the blast;  
b. type of explosives or blasting agents used; 
c. technical data and material safety data sheets for all explosives 

or blasting agents used;  
d. total pounds of explosives used in each blast;  
e. number, spacing, stemming and depth of holes;  
f. maximum pounds per delay; 
g. firing sequence, delay sequence, and typical hole load diagrams;  
h. location and distance of extraction operation from seismographs; 
i. weather conditions at time and location of blast; 
j. seismograph data; 
k. and ground vibrations or air blast records which shall include:  



 
22 

 

1. Type of instrument, sensitivity and calibration signal of 
certification of annual calibration.    

2. Exact location of instrument and the date, time and 
distance from the blast;  

3. Name of person and firm taking the reading as well as 
the person analyzing the seismic record; and 

4. The vibration and air blast level recorded.  
 

(7) Safety Standards. The extraction site operator is responsible and required to 
comply with all applicable provisions of any state or federal law or 
applicable regulations promulgated by the Occupational Safety Health 
Administration (OSHA), Mine Safety Health Administration (MSHA), 
Alcohol, Tobacco, and Firearms (ATF), or any other executive agency of the 
state or federal government relating to use, handling, transportation, storage, 
or detonation of explosives or blasting agents.  

 
(8) Records and Inspections. 

 
i. The holder of a blasting permit shall make the extraction operations 

site available to the fire code official for inspection at all times during 
regular business hours.  

 
ii. The permittee shall retain a record of blast and monitoring 

information for at least the past five (5) years to include date of a 
blast.  

 
iii. All records, including monitoring records referenced in subsection 

(vi)(c) above, relating to blasting activities shall be made available to 
the fire code official during normal business hours within seventy-two 
(72) hours of request.  

 
(d) Control of Adverse Effects. 
 

1. Air Blast (Noise) Limits. For the purpose of this section, the air overpressure 
and related noise generated by the use of explosives or blasting agents in 
extraction operations shall be measured by the air blast created thereby. Air 
blast shall not exceed 134 dB peak (± 3dB) at the location of any dwelling, 
public building, school, church, or community or institutional building outside 
the permit area, except as provided in subsection (e) of this section.  

 
2. Ground vibration. In all blasting operations, except as otherwise authorized in 

subsection (e) below, the maximum ground vibration shall not exceed one (1) 
inch per second at the location of any dwelling.  

 
3. Monitoring Requirement. The operator shall conduct monitoring to ensure 

compliance with the air blast standards and ground vibration standards. Air 
blast and ground vibration measurements of blasts must be performed to the 



 
23 

 

extent required this section.  
 

4. Flyrock. Flyrock traveling in the air or along the ground shall not be cast from 
the blasting site beyond the area under the control of the operator.  

 
5. Exception. The maximum air blast and ground-vibration standards of this 

section shall not apply at the following locations:  
 

i. At structures owned by the permittee and not leased to another 
person; 

ii. At structures owned by the permittee and leased to another person, if 
a written waver by the lessee has been obtained.  

 
Sec. 12-18. Business Registration. 
 

(a) Purpose. Business registration is a procedure administered by fire & rescue, in 
conjunction with the Utilities Business Office, which assures that all businesses within the 
city are registered for 911 services, inspected and comply with all city codes.  

 
(b) Registration prerequisite to doing business in the city. All businesses shall comply 

with the registration requirements of this article as a precondition of initiating or continuing 
any business within the city. For the purpose of this article, the term “business” includes any 
commercial enterprise, school, church or governmental office located within the city limits. 
Each occupant of a building used by a business shall have responsibility for complying with 
the registration requirements of this section.  
 

(c) Registration procedure.  
 

i. When a business owner applies for utilities he or she shall fill out a 
business registration form and return to fire & rescue prior to the 
business receiving utilities or opening its doors for business.  

 
ii. Registration or re-registration with the city is required prior to 

changing the name, ownership, operator, location, or use of an 
existing business. 

 
Article VI. Miscellaneous 

 
Sec. 12-19. Establishment of limits of the fire district.  
 
Beginning at the point of intersection of the south line of Calhoun Avenue with the east 
line of North 5th Street; thence in southerly direction along the east line of North 5th 
Street to the south line of Barton Avenue; thence in a westerly direction along said south 
line of Barton Avenue to the point of intersection with the east right-of-way of the Gulf, 
Colorado and Santa Fe Railroad; thence in a southeasterly direction along the east line of 
South 9th Street, if extended; thence in a southerly direction with said line to the north 
line of Avenue D; thence in a easterly direction with said line to the east line of South 1st 



 
24 

 

Street; thence in a southerly direction along said line to the north line of Avenue E; thence 
in an easterly direction along said line, if extended, to the west line of 6th Street, if 
extended; thence in a northerly direction along said west line of 6th Street, if extended, to 
the north line of Avenue A; thence in an easterly direction along said line to the west line 
of 8th Street; thence in a northerly direction with said line to the south line of Central 
Avenue; thence in a westerly direction with said line to the west line of 6th Street; thence 
in a northerly direction along said line to the south line of Adams Avenue; thence in a 
westerly direction along said line to the west line of 4th Street; thence in a northerly 
direction along said line to the south line of Barton Avenue; thence in a westerly direction 
along said line to the west line of 2nd Street; thence in a northerly direction along said 
line to the south line of Calhoun Avenue; thence in a westerly direction along said line to 
the point of beginning. 
 
Sec. 12-20. Unauthorized use of fire apparatus.  
 
It shall be unlawful for any person, under any pretext whatever, other than for the 
purposes for which they were intended in fire & rescue, to take or use any engine, truck, 
ladder, fire axe, or other apparatus belonging to or in possession of the department, or any 
member or company thereof, or to break, deface, or injure the same.  
 
Sec. 12-21. Injuring or driving over fire hose.  
 
It shall be unlawful for any person to cut, deface, tear or otherwise injure, or drive any 
vehicle over any fire hose belonging to the city or any fire department that is providing 
mutual aid to the city.  
 
Sec. 12-22. Reward for arrest and conviction of arsonists.  
 
The city hereby offers a reward of five hundred dollars ($500) for the arrest and 
conviction of any person for the crime of arson committed within the city limits. The sum 
of five hundred ($500) is hereby appropriated out of any funds belonging to the city not 
already appropriated for some other purpose for the payment of such reward.  
 
Sec. 12-23. New materials, processes or occupancies which may require permits.  
 
The fire chief shall act as a committee to determine and specify, after giving affected 
persons an opportunity to be heard, any new materials, processes or occupancies, which 
shall require permits, in addition to those enumerated in this chapter. The fire chief shall 
post such lists in a conspicuous place in their offices, and distribute copies thereof to 
interested persons.  
 
Sec. 12-24. Exemptions. 
 
Nothing contained in this ordinance shall be construed as applying to the regular military 
or naval forces of the Untied States, the duly authorized militia of the State, or the police 
and fire departments of the city in the proper performance of their duties.  
 



 
25 

 

Sec. 12-25. Permit Fees. 
 
The city council shall, by resolution, set the amount of all permit fees required by this 
chapter. A copy of any resolution setting permit fees shall be maintained in the office of 
the fire code official.  
 
Sec. 12-26. Enforcement. 
 
This chapter shall be enforced by the fire chief.  
 

Part 2:  Penalties 
 

(a) Criminal Offenses. Any person or persons, firm or corporation which violates 
any of the provisions of this chapter may be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon 
conviction, shall be fined an amount not exceeding two thousand ($2,000) dollars for 
each offense and each violation hereof shall be deemed a separate and distinct offense for 
each of said days and shall be punishable as such.  
 

(b) The city attorney may seek remedies at law or in equity to prevent a violation 
of this chapter 

 
Part 3:  If any provision of this ordinance or the application of any provision to any 

person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or 
applications of the ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 
application, and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 

 
Part 4: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 

accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 
 

Part 5: The Code of Ordinances of the City of Temple, Texas, as amended, shall 
remain in full force and effect, save and except as amended by this ordinance. 
 

Part 6:  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 6th day 
of August, 2009. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 20th  day of August, 2009. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 

_______________________________ 
WILLIAM A. JONES, III, Mayor 



 
26 

 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
______________________    _______________________________ 
Clydette Entzminger     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary     City Attorney  



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
08/06/09 
Item #9 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Jonathan Graham, City Attorney 
  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:   FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING – Consider adopting an ordinance 
amending Chapter 37, "Traffic," Article IV, "Stopping, Standing and Parking," of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Temple, Texas, by amending Section 37-93, entitled, "Two-Hour Parking 
Zone," to provide that the City Manager may suspend by decree the fine for parking longer than two 
hours in the downtown area during public events or when the municipal parking lot adjacent to City 
Hall is closed. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Conduct public hearing and adopt ordinance as presented in item 
description, on first reading, and schedule second reading and final adoption for August 20, 2009. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  Approval of this ordinance will amend Chapter 37, “Traffic,” of the Code of 
Ordinances to provide that the City Manager may suspend by decree the fine for parking longer than 
two hours in the downtown area during public events or when the municipal parking lot adjacent to 
City Hall is closed. Since parking space in the downtown area is limited, imposing 2-hour parking fines 
during public events is contrary to the purpose of inviting citizens and guests to enjoy public events in the 
downtown area.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Minor loss of revenue for parking tickets issued during the time when the 
municipal parking lot is closed for public events. 
 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Ordinance 



 1

       Added Text 
                Deleted Text 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. _____________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AMENDING CHAPTER 37, "TRAFFIC," ARTICLE IV, 
"STOPPING, STANDING AND PARKING," OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, BY AMENDING 
SECTION 37-93, ENTITLED, "TWO-HOUR PARKING ZONE," TO 
PROVIDE THAT THE CITY MANAGER MAY SUSPEND BY DECREE 
THE FINE FOR PARKING LONGER THAN TWO HOURS IN THE 
DOWNTOWN AREA DURING PUBLIC EVENTS OR WHEN THE 
MUNICIPAL PARKING LOT ADJACENT TO CITY HALL IS CLOSED; 
PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING A PENALTY; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 WHEREAS, the municipal parking lot is frequently closed  for public events; 
 
 WHEREAS, parking space is in the downtown area is limited and imposing fines for 
parking longer than two hours during public events is contrary to the purpose of inviting citizens 
and guests to enjoy public events in the downtown area; 
 
  WHEREAS, the City Council desires to authorize the City Manager to suspend by 
decree the fine for parking longer than two hours in the downtown area during public events or 
when the municipal parking lot adjacent to City Hall is closed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: The City Council amends Chapter 37, "Traffic," Article IV, "Stopping, Standing 
and Parking," of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Temple, Texas, by amending Section 37-
93, entitled "Two-Hour Parking Zone," to read as follows: 
 
Section 37-93. Two-Hour Parking Zone. 
 
 (a) The Zone area in the City of Temple, Texas, shown on the drawing attached hereto as 
Exhibit “A,” a copy of which is kept on file in the City Secretary’s Office, and is most 
particularly described as the north side of Barton Avenue (between Main and 2nd Streets), south 
side of Barton Avenue (between 3rd & 1st Streets), south side of Adams Avenue (between 1st & 
Main), north side of Central Avenue (between 1st & 4th Streets), south side of Central Avenue 



 2

(between 3rd & 4th Streets), north side of Avenue A (between 1st & 4th Streets), south side of 
Avenue A (Between 1st & 2nd Streets), west half of south side of Avenue A (between 2nd & 4th 
Streets), south side of Avenue B (between Main & 2nd Streets), east & west side of 1st Street 
(between Calhoun & Adams Avenue), west side of 1st Street (between Central & Avenue A), 
north half of the east side of 1st Street (between Central & Avenue A), south half of the east side 
of 1st Street (between Avenue A & B), east and west side of Main Street (between Calhoun and 
Avenue B), east and west side of 2nd Street (between Barton & Avenue B), is hereby designated 
a two-hour parking zone, except as otherwise posted, and appropriate signs shall be erected 
giving notice of such two-hour limitation, and, except as provided at Subsection (b), it shall be 
unlawful for any person to leave standing or parked any vehicle for a period of more than two (2) 
hours, and each successive two (2) hours that a vehicle shall be left continuously parked in such 
zone shall constitute a separate offense. 
 
 (b) The city manager is authorized to suspend this Section by decree during public events or 
when the municipal parking lot adjacent to City Hall is closed. 
 
 Part 2: Chapter 37, entitled, "Traffic," of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Temple, 
Texas, as amended, shall remain in full force and effect save and except as amended by this 
ordinance. 
 
 Part 3: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. 
 
 Part 4: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid by the final 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of 
the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this ordinance, since the 
same would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance of 
any such invalid phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 
 Part 5: This ordinance shall take effect from the date of its passage, in accordance with 
the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is accordingly so ordained. 
 
 Part 6: Any person or persons, firm or corporation which violates any of the provisions 
of this chapter shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be fined not 
less than fifty ($50.00) dollars nor more than five hundred ($500.00) dollars for each offense and 
each violation hereof shall be deemed a separate and distinct offense for each of said days and 
shall be punishable as such. 
 
 Part 7: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 6th day of  
August, 2009. 
 



 3

 PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 20th day of August, 2009. 
 
      THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS  
 
             
      WILLIAM A. JONES, III, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
             
Clydette Entzminger    Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary     City Attorney 



 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
08/06/09 
Item #10 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Jonathan Graham, City Attorney 
  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:   FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING – Consider adopting an ordinance 
extending the life of preliminary plats for single family residential subdivisions that were: (1) approved 
in the past 2 years; (2) extended by the approval of a final plat for a phase of the subdivision in the 
past 2 years; or (3) that would have expired in the past 2 years, by giving them an additional life of 2 
years from the effective date of this ordinance. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Conduct public hearing and adopt ordinance as presented in item 
description, on first reading, and schedule second reading and final adoption for August 20, 2009.  
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The City’s Subdivision Ordinance provides that a preliminary plat for a subdivision 
expires 2 years from the date of approval absent an extension of the life of that preliminary plat. The 
ordinance further provides that the life of a preliminary plat can be extended for 2 years if a final plat 
is approved for a phase of the subdivision and the developer begins construction of the required 
subdivision improvements. 
 
The current economic recession in the United States has caused a slowdown in the build out of local 
residential subdivisions which could cause the preliminary plats for a number of residential 
subdivisions to expire, resulting in the developer having to file a new preliminary plat for those phases 
of existing residential subdivisions which have not been final platted. 
 
Approval of this ordinance will allow extending the life of preliminary plats for single family residential 
subdivisions that were: (1) approved in the past 2 years; (2) extended by the approval of a final plat 
for a phase of the subdivision in the past 2 years; or (3) that would have expired in the past 2 years, 
by giving them an additional life of 2 years from the effective date of this ordinance. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Affected subdivisions 
Ordinance 



Name Expires 
Canyon Ridge 12/20/06 
Ranch at Woodland Trails 11/20/08 
Carriage House 03/06/09 
Lago Terra 11/05/09 
Aberdeen Heights 09/15/10 
 



 
 1 

 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ___________________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, EXTENDING THE LIFE OF PRELIMINARY PLATS FOR 
SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL SUBDIVISIONS THAT WERE: (1) 
APPROVED IN THE PAST TWO YEARS; (2) EXTENDED BY THE 
APPROVAL OF A FINAL PLAT FOR A PHASE OF THE SUBDIVISION 
IN THE PAST TWO YEARS; OR (3) THAT WOULD HAVE EXPIRED IN 
THE PAST TWO YEARS, BY GIVING THEM AN ADDITIONAL LIFE OF 
TWO YEARS FROM THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THIS ORDINANCE; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE; DECLARING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

___________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Whereas, Section 33.32(f), “Preliminary plat term,” provides that a preliminary plat 
for a subdivision shall expire two years from the date of approval absent an extension of the 
life of that preliminary plat; 
 

Whereas, Section 33.32(g), “Extension of plat term,” provides that the life of a 
preliminary plat shall be extended for two years if a final plat is approved for a phase of the 
subdivision and the developer begins construction of the required subdivision improvements; 
 

Whereas, the current economic recession in the United States has caused a slowdown 
in the build out of local residential subdivisions which could cause the preliminary plats for a 
number of residential subdivisions to expire, which would result in the developer having to 
file new preliminary plats for those phases of existing residential subdivisions which have not 
been final platted; and 
 

Whereas, the Staff recommends that the City Council consider extending the life of of 
preliminary plats for single family residential subdivisions that were: (1) approved in the past 
two years, (2) extended by the approval of a final plat for a phase of the subdivision in the 
past two years, or (3) that would have expired in the past two years, by giving them an 
additional life of two years from the effective date of this ordinance. 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS THAT: 
 

Part 1: Findings. The statements contained in the preamble of this ordinance are true 
and correct and are adopted as findings of fact hereby. 
 

Part 2: (a) Authority of the Planning Director to Extend the Term of Certain 
Single Family Residential Preliminary Plats. The City Council finds it is in the public 
interest to extend the life of existing residential preliminary plats, and residential preliminary 



 
 2 

plats that may have expired in the past two years by operation of City ordinances. According, 
the City Council hereby authorizes the Director of Planning to administratively extend the 
life of residential preliminary plats that: (1) have expired in the past two years, (2) were 
extended by operation of law in the past two years by the filing of a final plat on a phase of 
the subdivision, or (3) were approved within the past two years, so that those residential 
subdivision preliminary plats covered by this ordinance shall not expire until the two years 
after the effective date of this ordinance.  

 
(b) Further Extensions of the Term of Affected Preliminary Plats. Provided that 

preliminary plats the term of which are extended under this ordinance may be further 
extended under Section 33.32(g) of the City Code by the filing of a final plat on a phase of 
such subdivision and the commencement of construction of the required subdivision 
improvements therein by the developer of such subdivision. 

 
(c) Process for Requesting Extension of the Term of Certain Preliminary Plats 

under this Ordinance. The Director of Planning shall give written notice to the developers 
of single family residential subdivisions that have a preliminary plat described in Section 2(a) 
above notifying them that they may request an extension of the term of their plat for a term of 
two years, or in the case of a preliminary plat that expired in the past two years of their right 
to request renewal of their preliminary plat for a term of two years. The Planning Director 
shall approve requests for an extension or renewal of a preliminary plat that satisfies the 
requirements of this ordinance, and his approval shall cause such preliminary plat to have a 
two year term running from the effective date of this ordinance. 
 

Part 3: Severability. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that 
the sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, 
if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared 
invalid by the final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity 
shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of 
this ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City Council without the 
incorporation in this ordinance of any such invalid phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or 
section. 
 

Part 4: Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after 
its passage in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, 
and it is accordingly so ordained. 
 

Part 5: Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting 
at which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of 
the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meeting Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading on the 6th day of August, 2009. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second and Final Reading on the 20th day of August, 
2009. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS     
 



 
 3 

 
               

WILLIAM A. JONES, III, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Clydette Entzminger     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary     City Attorney 



 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
08/06/09 

Item #11(A)-(B) 
Regular Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Bruce Butscher P.E., Director of Public Works 
Michael Newman P.E., Assistant Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:   FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING – Consider adopting ordinances 
establishing the prima facie speed of motor vehicles on a certain section of SH 36/LP363, within the 
City limits, as follows: 
 

(A) The speed limit on Loop 363 access roads will be increased from 40 mph to 45 mph from 
Airport Road to a point 2,375 feet south of FM 2305 and from 30 mph to 50 mph from a 
point 2,375 feet south of FM 2305 to South 5th Street; and  

(B) The speed limit on Loop 363 will be increased from 55 mph to 60 mph from Airport Road to 
South 5th Street. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Conduct public hearing and adopt ordinances as presented in item 
description, on first reading, and schedule second reading and final adoption for August 20, 2009. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  Based on Traffic Engineering Studies by the State, TxDOT has requested the City 
adopt ordinances setting the prima facie speed of motor vehicles on a certain section of SH 36/LP363 
Frontage Road and main roadway as follows: 
 

(A) The speed limit on Loop 363 access roads will be increased from 40 mph to 45 mph from 
Airport Road to a point 2,375 feet south of FM 2305 and from 30 mph to 50 mph from a 
point 2,375 feet south of FM 2305 to South 5th Street. 

(B) The speed limit on Loop 363 will be increased from 55 mph to 60 mph from Airport Road to 
South 5th Street. 

 
We are required by TxDOT to re-adopt this speed limit at this time with changes being posted. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Map 
Ordinances 



Loop 363 Speed Limit Change
Airport Rd. to 5th Street

Lake Jim Thornton

H
 K

 D
O

D
G

EN

M

H

31
ST

R

1S
T

ADAMS

3R
D

25
TH

AIRPORT

INTERSTATE 35

57
TH

CENTRAL

5T
H

MIDWAY

THORNTON

H
IC

KO
R

Y

INTERSTATE 35

ADAMS

I

L

R

M

H

F

31
S

T

D

G

1S
T

P

A

Z

C

7T
H

M
A

IN

9T
H

B

T

25TH

11
TH

H
 K

 D
O

D
G

E
N

15
TH

N

AIRPORT

2N
D

INTERSTATE 35

43
R

D

19
TH

57
TH

E

ADAMS

35
TH

33
R

D

CENTRAL

SCOTT

21
S

T

GENERAL BRUCE

HOPI

U

17
TH

23
R

D

51
S

T

A
PA

C
H

E

47
TH

K

J

K
E

LL
E

R

DEER

S

AN
TELO

PE

29
TH

O
LAF

ELM

IRVIN

55
TH

205

45
TH

LARK

FRENCH

FILLY

SAULSBURY

49
TH

41
S

T

37
TH

BARTON

ER
IE

BIRDCREEK

ERMINE

GILA

HOUSTON

DOWNS

FOX

O
A

KD
AL

E

Q

5T
H

CHISHOLM

THORNTON

GARFIELD

O

LO
W

E
S

SCOTT & W
HITE

PIN OAK

BUFFALO

S
U

N
FLO

W
ER

S
W

 W
E

S
T

MIDWAY

WHISPERING OAKS

39
TH

HANCOCK

53
R

D

61ST

TWIN OAKS

S
W

 E
AST

BR OOKL AWN

BRIAR CLIFF

D
AK

O
TA

BUNKER HILL

3R
D

EAGLE

ASH

C
H

E
Y

E
N

N
E

BATTLE

STADIUM

ELK

COMMERCE

G
U

Y

WREN

IRA YOUNG

H
IC

K
O

R
Y

SH
AD

Y 
HI

LL

PECO
S

O
A

KL
AW

N
V

IL
LA

G
E

G
R

E
E

N
V

IE
W

TU
C

S
O

N

27
TH

COTTONWOOD

13
TH

SW NORTH

C
E

A
R

LE
Y

G
ILLM

EISTER

LAWNWOOD

TRENTON
R

O
B

IN

D
O

D
G

E

W
O

O
D

BR
ID

G
E

P
H

O
E

N
IX

BRAY

D
R

APER

O
A

K
R

ID
G

E

D
AISY

Y
O

R
K

TO
W

N

B
R

A
ZO

S

CHURCH

ROSEWOOD

M
O

N
TAN

A

IROQUOIS

VA
N

 D
Y

C
K

P
E

C
A

N
 V

ALLE
Y

MOCKINGBIRD

TYLER

G
R

A
N

D

LYNX

LE
X

IN
G

TO
N

CREEKVIEW

M
EA

D
O

W
 O

AK
S

CHEVY

JO
H

N
 P

A
U

L  
J O

N
E

S

C
O

R
D

O
VA

FAWN

JAGUAR

CH E RO
K

E
E

LIBERTY

LAS CIENEGA

Q
U

AI
L

LI
V

E
 O

AK

R
ED

W
IN

G

B
E

TS
Y 

R
O

S
S

BROOKHAVEN

GLENWOOD

BL
U

E
 J

AY

SIERRA BLANCA

WILDFLOWER

AZALEA

EL C
A

M
IN

O

BE
LL

FALL C
R

E
EK

B
O

N
H

A
M

JACKSON

W
E

S
T 

G
AT

E

LAS
 M

O
R

AS

IN
W

O
O

D

D ANIELS

VALLEY FORGE

MARVIN R FELDER

B
LU

E
B

IR
D

C
O

N
C

O
R

D

G
O

VE
R

N
M

E
N

T

BRIARWOOD

GEORGE

DEL NORTE

T
W

E
LV

E
 O

A
K

S

LAS
 C

R
U

C
ES

TI
C

O
N

D
E

R
O

G
A

CALHOUN

SA
R

AT
O

G
A

PAR
K 

PL
AC

E

D
E

LA
W

A
R

E

TRINITY

AN
A

C
A

C
H

O

C
O

TTIN
G

H
AM

M
A

M
A 

D
O

G

W
ES

TP
O

IN
T

G
ER

O
N

IM
O

BRYKERW OOD

PAUL REVERE

PARNELL

TR
O

Y

BIRD CREEK

KUYKENDALL

EL
 C

AP
IT

AN

REDBIRD

ARROWHEAD

JACK WHITE

BR
AN

D
YW

IN
E

NORTHWOOD

PATRICK HENRY

L IBERTY HILL

CHADEL

A USTIN

GAZELLE

OAK
CR

EE
K

N
O

R
TH

 C
R

EEK

M
O

O
D

Y

R
E

D
 C

O
AT

ARAPAH
O

JA
C

K
 B

A
S

K
IN

BURLINGTON

RED RIVER

WILLIAMSON

CELE
ST

E

65
TH

WILSON

S
A

LA
D

O

EXECUTIVE

R
O

G
E

R
S

SHADY O
A

K
S

W
ES

TW
O

O
D

BL
A

C
KF

O
O

T

PECAN BLUFF

CAMDEN

SA
BI

N
E

NECHES

PRESTON OAKS

M
A

D
IS

O
N

KING GE ORGE

DURANGO

WILLOWOOD

MEADOW CREEK

SANTA ANNA

RIVER O

A
KS

WESTVIEW

OAKWOOD

G
R

E
EN

BR
IA

R

T
11

TH

HOUSTON

3R
D

3R
D

CALHOUN

GENER
AL

 B
RU

C
E

1S
T

49TH

A

M

61
ST

33

RD

57
TH

53
R

D

35
TH

CALHOUN

BURLINGTON

ER
IE

I

A
PA

C
H

E

S
C

O
TT & W

HITE

K

DOWNS

K K

49
TH

53
R

D

EAGLE

ELM

23
R

D

P

D

N

D

33R
D

5T
H

5T
H

51
S

T

21
S

T

7T
H

11
TH

15
TH

J

ADAMS

13
TH

INTERSTATE 35

43R
D

H
 K

 D
O

D
G

E
N

G

CALHOUN

19
TH

15
TH

BLA
C

KFO
O

T

R

55
TH

JA

CKSON

T

1S
T

ELM

17
TH

H K DODGEN

53
R

D

ELM

K

J

FRENCH

17
TH

G

IRVIN

E

9T
H

45
TH

EL C
A

PITAN

VALLEY FORGE

5T
H

J

BLA
C

KFO
O

T

29
TH

C

13
TH

21
S

T

41
S

T
41

S
T

3R
D

33R
D

H

27
TH

43
R

D

27
TH

27
TH

19
TH

G
E

N
E

R
A

L 
B

R
U

C
E

49TH

H
 K

 D
O

D
G

E
N

G
E

N
E

R
A

L 
B

R
U

C
E

51
S

T

DOWNS

CENTRAL

U

D
A

K
O

TA

7T
H

B

2N
D

33
R

D

K

47
TH

O

15
TH

2N
D

J

E

G
EN

ER
AL

 B
RUCE

BARTON

9T
H

1 in = 500 feet

8

Drawn By:
Chris Peal
29 July 09

(254)298-5665

SPEED LIMITS
40 mph to 45 mph

30 mph to 50 mph

55 mph to 60 mph

Speed Limit on Loop 363 access roads will
be raised from 40 m.ph. to 45 m.p.h. from
Airport Road to a point 2,375ft South of F.M.
2305 and from 30 m.ph. to 50m.p.h. from a
point 2,375ft South of F.M. 2305 to S. 5th St.
The speed limit on Loop 363 will be raised
from 55m.p.h to 60m.p.h. from Airport Rd. to
S. 5th St.

H
 K

 D
O

D
G

EN

ADAMS
ADAMS

H
 K

 D
O

D
G

E
N

ERM
INE

FOX

O
LA

F

AN
TE

LO
PE

G
R

E
E

N
V

IE
W

FI
LL

Y

SUNFLOWER

DEER

KUYKENDALL

GAZELLE

RED RIVERBRAZOSB
LU

E
B

O
N

N
E

T

WESTVIEW

H
 K

 D
O

D
G

E
N

H
 K

 D
O

D
G

E
N

1 inch = 300 feet



 
 1 

 ORDINANCE NO. ________________________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, PROVIDING FOR REASONABLE AND PRUDENT PRIMA 
FACIE MAXIMUM SPEED LIMITS ON THE SH36/LOOP 363 
FRONTAGE ROAD WITHIN THE CITY LIMITS; PROVIDING A 
REPEALER; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY FOR VIOLATIONS NOT TO 
EXCEED $500 FOR EACH VIOLATION; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN 
OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

               
 

WHEREAS, an engineering and traffic investigation has been made to determine the 
reasonable and prudent prima facie maximum speed for motor vehicles on the SH36/Loop 
363 frontage road within the city limits; 
 

WHEREAS, these traffic investigations and engineering studies have determined the 
reasonable and safe prima facie maximum speed limits, as more fully described herein; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to approve these speed limits for the benefit of the citizens for the promotion of the 
public health, welfare, and safety. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF TEMPLE, TEXAS: 
 

Part 1: The City Council finds that the reasonable and prudent prima facie maximum 
speed limit for vehicular traffic on the SH36/Loop 363 frontage road is as follows: 

 
Starting at M.P. 02.255, the speed limit shall be 45 MPH for a distance of 
0.449. The speed limit shall then be 50 MPH for a distance of 1.958 miles 
ending at M.P. 3.194. 

 
Part 2: It shall be unlawful for any person to drive or operate a motor vehicle, bicycle, 

or other vehicle of any kind, whether or not motor powered, on that portion of the roadways 
described above under the conditions described herein, at a speed greater than is reasonable 
and prudent under the circumstances then existing, but any speed in excess of the reasonable 
and prudent prima facie maximum speed limits as set forth in Part 1 hereof shall be prima 
facie evidence that such speed is not reasonable or prudent and that it is unlawful. 

 
Part 3:  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 

ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. 
 
Part 4: A person who violates a provision of this ordinance is guilty of a separate 

offense for each day or portion of a day which the offense is committed, continued, or 
permitted, and each offense is punishable by a fine not to exceed $500. 
 



 
 2 

Part 5: If any provision of this ordinance or the application of any provision to any 
person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or 
applications of the ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 
application, and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 

Part 6: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 
 

Part 7: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading on the 6th day of August, 2009. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 20th day of August, 2009. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 

 
_______________________________ 
WILLIAM A. JONES, III, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________   ______________________________ 
Clydette Entzminger     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary     City Attorney 



 
 1 

 ORDINANCE NO. ________________________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, PROVIDING FOR REASONABLE AND PRUDENT PRIMA 
FACIE MAXIMUM SPEED LIMITS ON THE SH36/LOOP 363 WITHIN 
THE CITY LIMITS; PROVIDING A REPEALER; PROVIDING FOR A 
PENALTY FOR VIOLATIONS NOT TO EXCEED $500 FOR EACH 
VIOLATION; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE. 

               
 

WHEREAS, an engineering and traffic investigation has been made to determine the 
reasonable and prudent prima facie maximum speed for motor vehicles on the SH36/Loop 
363 within the city limits; 
 

WHEREAS, these traffic investigations and engineering studies have determined the 
reasonable and safe prima facie maximum speed limits, as more fully described herein; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to approve these speed limits for the benefit of the citizens for the promotion of the 
public health, welfare, and safety. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF TEMPLE, TEXAS: 
 

Part 1: The City Council finds that the reasonable and prudent prima facie maximum 
speed limit for vehicular traffic on the SH36/Loop 363 is as follows: 

 
Starting at M.P. 0.255, the speed limit shall be 60 MPH for a distance of 2.939 
miles ending at M.P. 3.194. 

 
Part 2: It shall be unlawful for any person to drive or operate a motor vehicle, bicycle, 

or other vehicle of any kind, whether or not motor powered, on that portion of the roadways 
described above under the conditions described herein, at a speed greater than is reasonable 
and prudent under the circumstances then existing, but any speed in excess of the reasonable 
and prudent prima facie maximum speed limits as set forth in Part 1 hereof shall be prima 
facie evidence that such speed is not reasonable or prudent and that it is unlawful. 

 
Part 3:  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 

ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. 
 
Part 4: A person who violates a provision of this ordinance is guilty of a separate 

offense for each day or portion of a day which the offense is committed, continued, or 
permitted, and each offense is punishable by a fine not to exceed $500. 
 



 
 2 

Part 5: If any provision of this ordinance or the application of any provision to any 
person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or 
applications of the ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 
application, and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 

Part 6: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 
 

Part 7: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading on the 6th day of August, 2009. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 20th day of August, 2009. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 

 
_______________________________ 
WILLIAM A. JONES, III, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________   ______________________________ 
Clydette Entzminger     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary     City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
 

08/06/09 
Item #12 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Bruce Butscher, Director of Public Works 
Michael Newman, Assistant Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING – Consider adopting an ordinance 
establishing school crosswalks and setting speed limits within school zones to conform to school 
schedules. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Conduct public hearing and adopt ordinance presented in item 
description, on first reading, and schedule second reading and final adoption for August 20, 2009. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: In August of 2008 the City adopted an ordinance establishing school crosswalks 
and setting limits within school zones as agreed upon by the City, TISD and BISD. TISD has 
requested a signalized school zone be installed at Scott Elementary on West Avenue P between 
South 39th Street and South 49th Street at 20 mph east and west bound from the hours of 7;00am – 
8:30am and 2:00pm – 3:45pm.  TISD has also requested that the two signalized school zones at 
Jefferson Elementary and Lamar Middle School on North 3rd Street be consolidated into one 
extended signalized school zone at 25mph north and south bound from the hours of 7:00am – 
8:30am and 2:45pm – 4:30pm.  The ordinance needs to be updated to accommodate these changes. 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
List of school crossings  
Ordinance 
 
 



Cones Flags

A. Crossing guard works crosswalk
on MLK Blvd and Ave J

A. Crossing guard works Crosswalk
in school parking area

A. Crossing Guard works Crosswalk Yes Yes
Works E Ave B and S 24th ST

No No
A. No Crosswalk 

A. Crossing Guards (2) Works Crosswalk Yes Yes
At N 3rd St and W. Walker Ave
B. Crossing Guard works Crosswalk
at N 3rd ST and Industrial Blvd this is a 
controlled signal light.
C. Flashing lights on N 3rd St are North of 
W. Walker Ave and North of W Shell Ave.

A. Crossing Guard will work Crosswalks
W. Nugent Ave and Cearley Rd. Yes Yes
B. Flashing lights on W. Nugent Ave west 
and east of Cearley Rd

A. One way south from W Ave K to W Ave
L

Dickson Elementary
1100 S 33rd St One Way Time as Posted

7:00 to 8:30
14:00 to 15:00

City of Temple
School Zones

Schools Zone Times

Yes

Cater Elementary
4111 Lark Trail

B. School Zone is on Lark Trail infront of 
School

Yes Yes

Bethune Elementary
510 E Ave J

B. School Zone is on E Ave J and S 10th St.  
The front and westside of school

Yes

Emerson Elementary
1400 E Ave B

Hector P. Garcia Elementary
2525 Lavendusky Dr

Jefferson Elementary
400 W. Walker Ave

Flashing Lights

06:30 to 08:30
14:45 to 16:30

Kennedy-Powell Elementary
3707 W. Nugent Ave

Flashing Lights

06:30 to 08:30
14:45 to 16:30

Meridith-Dunbar
1717 E Ave J

Flashing Lights

14:00 to 15:30

C. One Way on S 10th St from E Ave I to
E Ave J

One Way Time as Posted
7:00 to 8:30



A. Crossing Guard will work Crosswalks
at S 30th St and E. Ave J Yes Yes
B. Flashing lights on S 30th St 
C. One Way on E Ave J from S 30th St to
S 34th St at posted times

Cones Flags

A. Crossing Guards will work Crosswalks Yes Yes
on S 5th St
B. Flashing lights on S 5th St north and 
south of school

A. Crossing Guard will work Crosswalk
on W Ave P 
B. Crossing Guard will work Crosswalk Yes Yes
on W Ave M @ S 45th St. 
C. Flashing lights on W Ave P east of 
S 49th St and west of S 39th St.

A. Crossing Guard will work Crosswalk Yes Yes
on Pin Oak @ East Dr. 
B. One way on Pin Oak from East Dr. to 
Mesquite at posted times

A. Crossing Gruard will work Crosswalk
on Apache @ Deer Tr
B. Crossing Guard will work Crosswalk Yes Yes
on Apache @ Gila 
C. Flashing lights on Apache North of Deer
Tr. South of Gila.

A. Flashing Lights on Midway Dr. east and
west of school.

A. Flashing lights on N 3rd St are North of 
W. Walker Ave and North of W Shell Ave.

Scott Elementary
2301 W Ave P 

Flashing Lights

Schools Zone Times

06:30 to 08:30
14:45 to 16:30

06:30 to 08:30
14:45 to 16:30

Raye Allen Elementary
5015 S 5th St

Flashing Lights

One Way Time as Posted
7:00 to 8:30

14:00 to 15:00

City of Temple
School Zones

06:30 to 08:30
14:45 to 16:30

Thornton Elementary
2900 Pin Oak Dr

School Zone Signs

Bonham Middle School
4600 Midway Dr

Flashing Lights

Western Hills Elementary
600 Arapaho 

Flashing Lights

06:30 to 08:30

07:00 to 08:30
15:00 to 16:30

Lamar Middle School
2120 N 1st St

07:30 to 8:30
14:30 to 16:00

14:45 to 16:30

06:30 to 08:30
14:45 to 16:30

One Way Time as Posted
7:30 to 8:30

14:30 to 16:00

Flashing Lights



B. One way on N 1st St from W Park Ave 
to W. Virgina Ave at posted times

Cones Flags

A. Crossing Guard will work Crosswalk
on W Ave M @ S 19th St
B. One way on S 19th St from W Ave R to 
W Ave M

A. Flashing Lights on N 31st St north
of W Barton Ave and North of W Houston 
Ave

A. School Zone on Barton from N 31st St to
North 27th St 

A. Flashing lights on FM 2305 in front of 
school 

A. Flashing lights on South Pea Ridge
in from of school

A. School Zone on Stone Hollow Dr in 
front of school.
B. School Zone on Prairie Lark on northside
of school
B. School Zone on on Westfield on 
southside of school

A. Flashing lights on Tarver in front of 

Lake Belton Middle School
8815 Tarver

School Zone Signs

7:00 to 8:30

Tarver Elementary
7949 Shone Hollow Dr

7:00 to 8:30
14:30 to 16:00

14:15 to 15:00
School Zone Signs

Flashing Lights

7:15 to 8:00

7:15 to 8:00
14:15 to 15:00

Joe M. Pirtle Elementary 
714 South Pea Ridge Rd

B.I.S.D

Lakewood Elementary
11200 FM 2305

Flashing Lights

415 N 31st St

City of Temple
School Zones

Schools Zone Times

Flashing Lights

07:00 to 16:00

07:00 to 16:30
1414 W Barton Ave

School Zone SignsTemple High School Campus

Travis Middle School
1500 S 19th St 

Temple High School

One Way Time as Posted
7:30 to 8:30

14:30 to 16:00

One Way Time as Posted
7:30 to 8:30

15:00 to 16:00



school. 14:30 to 16:00



 

 
1

ORDINANCE NO. ____________________ 
 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 

TEXAS, ESTABLISHING SCHOOL CROSSWALKS IN THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE; PROVIDING FOR REASONABLE AND PRUDENT PRIMA 
FACIE MAXIMUM SPEED LIMITS IN THE SCHOOL ZONES; 
DECLARING FINDINGS OF FACT; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY 
FOR VIOLATIONS NOT TO EXCEED $500 FOR EACH VIOLATION; 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; PROVIDING A REPEALER; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the City Staff and the Temple Independent School District worked 
together to establish recommended school crosswalk locations in the City of Temple and 
entered into an interlocal agreement in 1997 regarding the designation and equipping of 
school zones within the City; 
 
 Whereas, the Temple Independent School District and the City of Temple desire to 
update the crosswalk and school zone time schedule; 
 
 Whereas, an engineering and traffic investigation has been made to determine the 
reasonable and prudent prima facie maximum speed for motor vehicles within the school 
zones; 
 
 Whereas, it has been determined by these traffic and engineering investigations that 
the reasonable and safe prima facie maximum speed limit shall be 20 miles per hour; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to approve the school crosswalks, including the speed limits within the school zones, 
for the benefit of the citizens for the promotion of the public welfare and safety. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: The City of Temple hereby establishes the school crosswalk locations, which 
are more fully described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and made a part hereof for all 
purposes. 
 
 Part 2: The Director of Public Works is authorized to proceed with installation of 
flashing lights and school crossing painting and signage, as needed, for the locations 
described in Exhibit A. 
 
 Part 3: The reasonable and prudent prima facie maximum speed limit for vehicular 
traffic within the school zones described in Exhibit A, shall be established at 20 miles per 
hour on the days when school is in session.  
 
 Part 4: It shall be unlawful for any person to drive or operate a motor vehicle, 
bicycle, or other vehicle of any kind, whether or not motor powered, on that portion of the 
roadways described above under the conditions described herein, at a speed greater than is 
reasonable and prudent under the circumstances then existing, but any speed in excess of the 
reasonable and prudent prima facie maximum speed limits as set forth in Part 3 hereof shall 



 

 
2

be prima facie evidence that such speed is not reasonable or prudent and that it is unlawful. 
 
 Part 5: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. 
 
 Part 6: A person who violates a provision of this ordinance is guilty of a separate 
offense for each day or portion of a day which the offense is committed, continued, or 
permitted, and each offense is punishable by a fine not to exceed $500. 
 
 Part 7: If any provision of this ordinance or the application of any provision to any 
person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or 
applications of the ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 
application, and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
 Part 8: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 
 
 Part 9: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 6th day of 
August, 2009. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 20th day of August, 2009. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
   
              
       WILLIAM A. JONES, III, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Clydette Entzminger     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary     City Attorney 
 
  



Cones Flags

A. Crossing guard works crosswalk
on MLK Blvd and Ave J

A. Crossing guard works Crosswalk
in school parking area

A. Crossing Guard works Crosswalk Yes Yes
Works E Ave B and S 24th ST

No No
A. No Crosswalk 

A. Crossing Guards (2) Works Crosswalk Yes Yes
At N 3rd St and W. Walker Ave
B. Crossing Guard works Crosswalk
at N 3rd ST and Industrial Blvd this is a 
controlled signal light.
C. Flashing lights on N 3rd St are North of 
W. Walker Ave and North of W Shell Ave.

A. Crossing Guard will work Crosswalks
W. Nugent Ave and Cearley Rd. Yes Yes
B. Flashing lights on W. Nugent Ave west 
and east of Cearley Rd

A. One way south from W Ave K to W Ave
L

A. Crossing Guard will work Crosswalks
at S 30th St and E. Ave J Yes Yes
B. Flashing lights on S 30th St 
C. One Way on E Ave J from S 30th St to
S 34th St at posted times

14:00 to 15:30

C. One Way on S 10th St from E Ave I to
E Ave J

One Way Time as Posted
7:00 to 8:30

06:30 to 08:30
14:45 to 16:30

One Way Time as Posted
7:00 to 8:30

14:00 to 15:00

06:30 to 08:30
14:45 to 16:30

Meridith-Dunbar
1717 E Ave J

Flashing Lights

14:45 to 16:30

Kennedy-Powell Elementary
3707 W. Nugent Ave

Flashing Lights

Jefferson Elementary
400 W. Walker Ave

Flashing Lights

06:30 to 08:30

Emerson Elementary
1400 E Ave B

Hector P. Garcia Elementary
2525 Lavendusky Dr

Yes

Cater Elementary
4111 Lark Trail

B. School Zone is on Lark Trail infront of 
School

Yes Yes

Bethune Elementary
510 E Ave J

B. School Zone is on E Ave J and S 10th St.  
The front and westside of school

Yes

City of Temple
School Zones

Schools Zone Times

Dickson Elementary
1100 S 33rd St One Way Time as Posted

7:00 to 8:30
14:00 to 15:00



Cones Flags

A. Crossing Guards will work Crosswalks Yes Yes
on S 5th St
B. Flashing lights on S 5th St north and 
south of school

A. Crossing Guard will work Crosswalk
on W Ave P 
B. Crossing Guard will work Crosswalk Yes Yes
on W Ave M @ S 45th St. 
C. Flashing lights on W Ave P east of 
S 49th St and west of S 39th St.

A. Crossing Guard will work Crosswalk Yes Yes
on Pin Oak @ East Dr. 
B. One way on Pin Oak from East Dr. to 
Mesquite at posted times

A. Crossing Gruard will work Crosswalk
on Apache @ Deer Tr
B. Crossing Guard will work Crosswalk Yes Yes
on Apache @ Gila 
C. Flashing lights on Apache North of Deer
Tr. South of Gila.

A. Flashing Lights on Midway Dr. east and
west of school.

A. Flashing lights on N 3rd St are North of 
W. Walker Ave and North of W Shell Ave.
B. One way on N 1st St from W Park Ave 
to W. Virgina Ave at posted times

One Way Time as Posted
7:30 to 8:30

15:00 to 16:00

Flashing Lights

07:30 to 8:30
14:30 to 16:00

14:45 to 16:30

06:30 to 08:30
14:45 to 16:30

One Way Time as Posted
7:30 to 8:30

14:30 to 16:00

07:00 to 08:30
15:00 to 16:30

Lamar Middle School
2120 N 1st St

Bonham Middle School
4600 Midway Dr

Flashing Lights

Western Hills Elementary
600 Arapaho 

Flashing Lights

06:30 to 08:30

Raye Allen Elementary
5015 S 5th St

Flashing Lights

City of Temple
School Zones

14:45 to 16:30

06:30 to 08:30
14:45 to 16:30

Thornton Elementary
2900 Pin Oak Dr

School Zone Signs

Scott Elementary
2301 W Ave P 

Flashing Lights

Schools Zone Times

06:30 to 08:30



Cones Flags

A. Crossing Guard will work Crosswalk
on W Ave M @ S 19th St
B. One way on S 19th St from W Ave R to 
W Ave M

A. Flashing Lights on N 31st St north
of W Barton Ave and North of W Houston 
Ave

A. School Zone on Barton from N 31st St to
North 27th St 

A. Flashing lights on FM 2305 in front of 
school 

A. Flashing lights on South Pea Ridge
in from of school

A. School Zone on Stone Hollow Dr in 
front of school.
B. School Zone on Prairie Lark on northside
of school
B. School Zone on on Westfield on 
southside of school

A. Flashing lights on Tarver in front of 
school.

1500 S 19th St 

Temple High School

One Way Time as Posted
7:30 to 8:30

14:30 to 16:00

07:00 to 16:30
1414 W Barton Ave

School Zone SignsTemple High School Campus

Flashing Lights

07:00 to 16:00
415 N 31st St

City of Temple
School Zones

Schools Zone Times
Travis Middle School

B.I.S.D

Lakewood Elementary
11200 FM 2305

Flashing Lights

7:15 to 8:00
14:15 to 15:00

Joe M. Pirtle Elementary 
714 South Pea Ridge Rd

14:15 to 15:00
School Zone Signs

Flashing Lights

7:15 to 8:00

Tarver Elementary
7949 Shone Hollow Dr

7:00 to 8:30
14:30 to 16:00

14:30 to 16:00

Lake Belton Middle School
8815 Tarver

School Zone Signs

7:00 to 8:30




